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MANLY WARRINGAH FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION Ltd. 
(Established  1947) 

 

Seventy Second Annual General 
Meeting Notice of Meeting 

 

Notice is hereby given to the Members of the MWFA Ltd that the 72nd Annual General 
Meeting of the 

Manly Warringah Football Association Ltd. will be 
held at the Manly Warringah Football Club (South 
Creek Rd, Dee Why) Monday 25th November 2019 

commencing 7.30 p.m. 

AGENDA 
1. Welcome and confirmation of Chair for the meeting 
2. Attendees (as per attendance book) 
3. Apologies 
4. Quorum 
5. Proxy appointments 
6. Confirm the Minutes of the 2018 A.G.M 
7. Matters arising from the 2018 A.G.M. Minutes 
8. Presentation of Meritorious Service Awards 
9. Nomination of Life Member 
10. Presentation and adoption of the 2019 Annual Report 
11. Presentation of the 2019 Financial Report 
12. Adoption of 2020 Budget (including consideration of Honorariums) 
13. Presentation of the 2019 Auditors Report 
14. Appointment of Auditor for 2020 
15. Questions regarding the MWFA Ltd business and operations 
16. Election of Directors 
17. Confirmation of Committees 

I. Audit Committee 
II. Disciplinary Committee 

III. Appeals Committee 
IV. Competitions Committee 
V. Registration and Grading Committee 

18. Special Resolutions – Notice of Motion 
I. Adoption of By-Laws 

Proposed amendments to the MWFA By-Laws as part of the switch from an Incorporated 
Association to a Company Limited by Guarantee, as per document circulated to Clubs 
following the November Council of Clubs Meeting. 

II. Adoption of 2020 Playing Rules 
Proposed amendments to the MWFA Playing Rules, as per document circulated to Clubs 
following the November Council of Clubs Meeting. 

 
19. Affiliation of Clubs 

 

Please join the Executive and Management Committee for refreshments. 
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OFFICE BEARERS FOR 2019 
 

President Mr Jeff Smit 

Senior Vice President Mr Duncan Kerr 

Senior Vice President (Federation Football) Mr Keith Pester 

Secretary Mrs Linda Ward 

Treasurer Mr Joseph Sorbara  

Vice President (Sub-Juniors) Mr Tony Davies 

Vice President (Junior Competition) Mr David Brennan 

Vice President (Seniors Competition) Mr Terry Gatward 

Vice President (Junior Womens Competition) Mr Daniel Cook 

Vice President (Senior Women’s Competition) Mr Roland Winter 

Registrar Mrs Annette Burgoyne 
Graham Registrar Mrs Linda Beaugeard 

Registrar Mr Peter Auld 

Minute Secretary Mrs Gillian Hunt 

Masters Mr Mark Sheppard 
 

DELEGATES 
 

FNSW Delegates  Mr Jeff Smit 
 Mr Duncan Kerr 
FNSW Association Standing Comm Mr Jeff Smit 
FNSW NPL 1 Standing Committee  Mr Jeff Smit 
FNSW Inter-Club 1 Zone Council Mr Jeff Smit 

MWFRA Inc Mr Jeff Smit 

MWP Sporting Union Mr David Mason 
Mr Keith Pester 
Mr Jeff Smit 
Mr Duncan Kerr 
Mr Richard Hooker 
Mr Roland Luke 

 Mr Warren Meppem 

SUB-COMMITTEES 

Judiciary Sub-Committee 
Mr Dave Wilson 

Mr Tony Cavalieri 
Mr Cas Greco 

Mrs Ange Carey 
Mr Wayne Terrey 

Mr Craig McBurnie (MWFRA Representative) 

Mr Keith Pester - Secretary 
 

Appeals Sub-Committee 
Mr Ed Neill 

Mr Warren Meppem 
Mr David Anglicas 

Mr Stuart Nairn 
Mr Andy Saunders  

 
P & D Sub-Committee 
Ms Michele Edwards 

Mr Neville Drake 
Mr Roy Sider 

Mr George Malouf 
Ms Phillipa McNamara 
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Competitions Sub-Committee 
Mr Richard Wright 

Mr Michael Sestanovich 
Mr Greg Dick 

Mr John Mesite 
 

Player Grading Sub-Committee 
Mr Duncan Kerr 

Mr James Raphael 
Mr Jeff Smit 

Mr Scott Larsen 
Ms Blair McEwen 

 
General Purpose Tribunal 

Mr Nick Beaugeard 
Mr Ross Brown 
Mr Bruno Cara 

Mr Michael Sestanovich  
Mr Richard Wright 

 

 

LIFE MEMBERS 

 
Mr Brian Emery, Dee Why SC Mr Cyril Sutton 
Mrs Leonie Parker, MWLSA Mrs Jackie Higgins, MWLSA 
Mr Warren Meppem, MWLSA 
Mr Wayne Connor, CPYC 
Mr Eric Beckett, St Augustines, CPYC Mr Trevor Croal, CPYC 
1993 
Mr Charles Vale, Wakehurst SC 1994 
Mr Mike Speed, Dee Why SC 1996 
Mrs Linda Ward, CC Strikers 1999 
Mr Keith Pester Wakehurst SC 2000 
Mr Graeme Kellow CC Strikers 2001 
Mr Ray Fanning MWFC 2004 
Mr Don Gale Pittwater RSL 2004 
Mr Ted Blackwood Narrabeen YCFC 2005 
Mr Greg Carroll MWFA, Pittwater RSL 2010 
Mr Andrew Edwards MWFA, Wakehurst FC 2013 
Mr David Tomlinson MWFA, Manly Allambie United FC 2013 
Ms Rhonda Ferguson MWFA, HSU FC 2015 
Mr Ed Neill MWFA 2018 
 

Deceased Life Members 
 
Mr F Curtis 

Mr R J Parker  
Mr Reg Gillings 
Mr Don Balmain 
Mr George Hudson 
Mr Len Lems  
Mr Fred Alder  
Mr Syd Russell (2007) 
Mrs Shirley Bones (2008) 
Mr Mal Ticehurst (2009)  
Mr John Tilley (2010) 
Mr Fred Bones (2010)  
Mr Bruce Smith (2011) 
Mr Col Jones (2011) 
Mrs Lorna Gale (2013) 
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FNSW STATE AWARDS 
 
 

Charles Valentine Medal 
 

Mr Keith Pester 2012 

 

George Churchward Medal 
 

Mr Fred Bones 1996 
Mrs Linda Ward 2006 
Mr Ray Fanning 2014 

 

State Award 
 

Mr Fred Bones 1991 
Mr Robert (Mal) Ticehurst 1992 
Mr Eric Beckett 1996 
Mr Syd Russell 1998 
Mr Charles Vale 1999 
Mrs Lorna Gale 2000 
Mr Don Gale 2000 
Mrs Linda Ward 2001 
Mr Roland Luke 2003 
Mr Keith Pester 2004 
Mr John Mesite 2005 
Mr Neville Drake 2007 
Mrs Connie Greco 2008 
Mr Cass Greco 2008 
Mr John Koster 2009 
Mr David Anglicas 2010 
Mr David Broughton 2011 
Mr Roy Sider 2012 
Mr Richard Wright 2013 
Mr Michael Bosschieter 2014 
Mr Edward Neill 2015 
Mr Tony Davies 2016 
Mr Jeremy Toivonen 2017 
Mr Richard Hooker 2018 
Mr Michael Sestanovich 2019 
 

 

Soccer Sydney Meritorious Service Award 
 

Mr Greg Carroll 2005 
Mr Andrew Edwards 2005 
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FOOTBALL NSW STATE AWARD  
 
Michael Sestanovich – Manly Vale Football Club 

 
 
Michael has been a huge contributor to the Manly 

Warringah Football Association where he has held 

many roles with both the MWFA and the Manly 

Vale Football Club. 

Michael first became involved in football when he 

played for Manly Vale Football Club as a 6-year-

old and is still a registered player with Manly Vale 

in the Over 35 competition. 

As a young man he played representative football 

with both Apia & Manly Warringah. He had great 

success at Apia in their youth league sides 

winning the NSW Championship before moving to 

Manly Warringah for his senior football including a 

number of years as part of the First Grade squad.. 

After finishing his representative career, Michael 

returned Manly Vale Football Club where he 

played Premier League until 2008 and still plays Over 35 football in 2019. 

Michael was Manly Vale Premier League Coach in 2009, 2020 and 2011 and spent 

countless years and hours coaching his two children (Lara and Daniel) as well as wife (Lee-

Anne), under the Manly Vale badge. 

In 2009, Michael was awarded the MWFA Meritorious Service Award, having previously won 

the 2002 Manly Vale Clubman of the Year Award. 

Off the field, Michael has spent time on committees of both Manly Warringah Football 

Association and Manly Vale Football Club. 

He has been a Committee member at Manly Vale for more than 20 years, previously in the 

positions of President and Coaching Director and currently as Competition Secretary and 

Gear Steward. He also helps out where required attending all club presentation days to 

assist set-up/pack down and the handout of trophies. Over the years Manly Vale has been 

trying to elevate its processes and objectives to a more professional and efficient standard, 

through this process Michael offers wise counsel and assistance when required. Overall he 

is an outstanding club member and when not playing or coaching will be seen watching a 

Manly Vale game.  

Michael is also a current member of the MWFA Competitions Committee and the General-

Purpose Tribunal (GPT). 

Michael’s contribution to football on the Northern Beaches has been outstanding and MWFA 

strongly believes his contribution deserves recognition with the Football NSW State Award. 
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MEMBER CLUBS OF THE MWFA 
 
Avalon Soccer Club Founded (1982) 
Beacon Hill Football Club (Founded 1964) 
Belrose Terrey Hills Raiders Football Club (Founded 1986 * see below)  
Brookvale Football Club (Founded 1972 * see below) 
Collaroy Cromer Strikers Football Club (Founded 1995* see below)  
Curl Curl Youth Club (Founded 1958) 
Dee Why Football Club (Founded 1947) 
Forest Killarney Football Club (Founded 1962 * see below) 
Harbord Seasiders United Football Club (Founded 2004 * see below)  
Manly Allambie United Football Club (Founded 1992 * see below)  
Manly Vale Football Club (Founded 1951) 
Mosman Football Club (Founded 1966) 
Narrabeen Football Club (Founded 1965) 
Pittwater RSL Football Club (Founded 1964) 
Seaforth Football Club (Founded 1963) 
St Augustines Soccer Football Club (Founded mid 1960’s) 
Wakehurst Football Club (Founded 1968) 
 

Over the years there have been a number of amalgamations of MWFA Clubs to form the 
current 17 Clubs. A brief history is given below:  
 

• Avalon Junior and Senior Clubs merged in 1982. 

• Belrose Rangers Soccer Club (founded 1978) and Terrey Hills Soccer Club merged in 

1986 to become the BTH Raiders Football Club. 

• Brookvale FC started as Manly Milan Soccer Club in 1962 and then changed 
name to 

• Brookvale FC in 1971. 

• Manly Soccer Club (founded 1949) and Allambie Soccer Club (founded 1963) merged in 

1992 to become the Manly Allambie United Football Club 

• Forest Killarney Soccer Football Club formed in 1962 with 2 teams and then split in 

1969 to form Killarney Heights Soccer Club and Forest Soccer Club. These two Clubs 

then merged again in 1993  to form Forest Killarney Football Club 

• Cromer Strikers Soccer Club and Collaroy Plateau Youth Club merged in 1995 to 
form 

• Collaroy Cromer Strikers Football Club. 

• Pittwater was formed in 1964 as a soccer section of the Pittwater RSL Youth Club. In 
1966 the Football Section became a separate entity - what is now Pittwater RSL FC.  

• Harbord Diggers Soccer Club (founded 1947/48) and Seasiders Soccer Club (Men’s 
founded 

• 1982 and joined by Queenscliff Women’s in 1991) merged in 2004 to form Harbord 
Seasiders - United Football Club 
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MWFA LIFE MEMBER AWARD 
 

Ed Neill – MWFA Life Member 

Ed Neil’s involvement with MWFA dates back over 33 years. His proud 
achievements started with the Wakehurst Football Club when he first coached his 
son’s team back in 1985 under7’s. Ed served as President for 5 years from 1989-
1993 and as Registrar for 6 years 1995-2000. 

As President, he was a mover and shaker in the proposal to turn the road corridor at 
Hew’s Parade into playing fields. He put a lot of work into this to get Wakehurst a 
home. Although this was eventually defeated by the residents, Hew’s Parade 
became Wakehurst’s Sub-Junior ground in 1991 and in 1992 the Car Park was built 
and in 1993 the present Canteen/Storage building was completed.  

Both Ed and Col Pithis worked tirelessly to get this done. During his tenure the 
demountable building was put at Lionel Watts as a Club Canteen and Meeting 
place. During these times, Ed continued the tradition of opening his house on Friday 
nights for Coaches and Managers to collect information and socialize to give a true 
Club spirit. Ed Neil was awarded Life Membership of Wakehurst Football Club in 
1997. 

Manly Warringah Football Association- Ed’s time at Wakehurst was inter-twined with 
MWFA. From approximately 1990, Ed developed a computerized Registration 
System for MWFA and its Clubs. Ed maintained this program for the Association 
and its Clubs until the introduction of “My Football Club” in 2006. In 1997, he also 
developed a system to assist the Referee’s with ‘payments for games covered’ and 
in 2000, he incorporated the MWFA System into ‘i-sport’ which remained in place 
until the introduction of ‘My Football Club’ in 2006. 

Ed served on the Management Committee in 1992 and 1993 as Vice-President of 
Sub Juniors. He was also honoured with the MWFA Meritorious Award in 2004. 

Ed’s involvement and passion for the Appeals Committee is legendary dating back 
to 1996, giving 22 years and the last 8yrs as Chairman. 

In 2015, Ed was awarded a ‘Football NSW State Award’ for services to football. This 
award was in recognition of his tireless efforts and services to football in their local 
community. This State Award formally recognizes individuals who have provided 
consistent and valuable service at the club or association level. 
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HISTORY OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

  

Year President Secretary Treasurer Senior Vice President 

1947 F Alder G Hudson G Hudson 

1948 F Alder G Hudson T Burke 

1949 F Alder G Hudson W Fogarty 

1950 R A Baker G Hudson/J Tilley J McClelland 

1951 R A Baker J Tilley M Alagich/C West 

1952 R A Baker J Tilley J Ayre 

1953 R A Baker J Tilley J Baker 

1954 R A Baker J Tilley J Miller 

1955 R A Baker J Tilley R A Baker 

1956 R A Baker J Tilley R A Baker 

1957 R J Parker J Tilley H Freeman 

1958 R J Parker J Tilley H Freeman 

1959 R J Parker F Curtis A Cowie 

1960 R J Parker F Curtis A Cowie 

1961 J Tilley F Curtis B Emery 

1962 A Cowie/R Parker R Tetstall A C Carlson 

1963 A Cowie B Emery A C Carlson 

1964 J Thomson B Emery B Knight 

1965 B Emery C Sutton B Knight 

1966 B Emery C Sutton B Knight 

1967 B Emery C Sutton B Knight 

1968 B Emery C Sutton B Knight 

1969 C Jones C Sutton B Knight 

1970 C Jones C Sutton B Knight R Gillings 

1971 C Jones C Sutton R Gillings R Gillings 

1972 F Bones F Parker R Gillings F Finch 

1973 F Bones K Atkinson R Gillings N Lawrence 

1974 F Bones K Atkinson R Gillings N Lawrence 

1975 F Bones K Atkinson R Gillings N Lawrence 

1976 F Bones J Nettheim R Gillings J Castely 

1977 F Bones J Nettheim R Gillings J Castely 

1978 J Castely F Bones R Gillings F Bones 

1979 J Castely L Lems R Gillings M Samuels 

1980 M Samuels L Lems L Lems F Bones 

1981 J Castely/W Connor L Lems E Beckett K Donnell 

1982 W Connor L Lems E Beckett D Hardyman 

1983 W Connor L Lems E Beckett M Ticehurst 

1984 W Connor L Lems E Beckett M Ticehurst 

1985 W Connor L Lems E Beckett M Ticehurst 

1986 W Connor S Russell E Beckett M Ticehurst 

1987 W Connor W Connor E Beckett M Ticehurst 

1988 F Bones S Russell E Beckett M Ticehurst 

1989 F Bones S Russell E Beckett K Pester 

1990 F Bones S Russell E Beckett C Vale 

1991 C Vale S Russell E Beckett F Bones 

1992 C Vale S Russell E Beckett F Bones 

1993 C Vale S Russell E Beckett Mrs L Ward 

1994 C Vale S Russell E Beckett Mrs L Ward 

1995 Mrs L Ward S Russell E Beckett G Kellow 

1996 Mrs L Ward S Russell E Beckett G Kellow 

1997 Mrs L Ward S Russell E Beckett G Kellow 

1998 Mrs L Ward S Russell E Beckett G Kellow / K Pester 

1999 Mrs L Ward S Russell E Beckett G Kellow / K Pester 

2000 Mrs L Ward S Russell E Beckett G Kellow/ K Pester 

2001 Mrs L Ward R Turner E Beckett G Kellow/K Pester 

2002 Mrs L Ward R Turner/S Russell S Christie/D Tomlinson K Pester/R Fanning 

2003 Mrs L Ward S Russell D Tomlinson K Pester/R Fanning 

2004 Mrs L Ward S Russell D Tomlinson K Pester/R Fanning 

2005 Mrs L Ward S Russell D Tomlinson K Pester/R Fanning 

2006 R Fanning A Edwards D Tomlinson K Pester/J Smit 

2007 R Fanning A Edwards D Tomlinson K Pester/ J Smit 

2008 R Fanning A Edwards D Tomlinson K Pester/J Smit 
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2009 R Fanning A Edwards D Tomlinson K Pester/J Smit 

2010 R Fanning A Edwards D Tomlinson K Pester/J Smit 

2011 R Fanning A Edwards D Tomlinson K Pester/J Smit 

2012 R Fanning A Edwards D Tomlinson K Pester/J Smit 

2013 R Fanning A Edwards D Tomlinson K Pester/J Smit 

2014 R Fanning A Edwards R Carollo K Pester/ J Smit 

2015 J Smit A Edwards R Carollo K Pester /D Wilson 

2016 J Smit A Edwards J Sorbara K Pester /D Wilson 

2017 J Smit A Edwards J Sorbara K Pester /D Wilson 

2018      J Smit                            Mrs L Ward                      J Sorbara                                  K Pester /D Kerr 

2019      J Smit                            Mrs L Ward                      J Sorbara                                  K Pester /D Kerr 

 

HISTORY OF MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OFFICERS 
 

VICE PRESIDENTS 
 

 
Year Vice President 
1980 K Donnell 
1981 J Scane, J Payne, M Ticehurst 
1982 J Scane, J Payne, M Ticehurst 
1983 J Scane, J Payne 
1984 J Scane, J Payne, P Lovett (Resigned) 
1985 J Scane, J Payne, D Charlton 
1986 D Tice, L Parker, J Loupis (Resigned) 
1987 D Tice, J Delaney , T Broughton 
1988 D Tice, C Vale, T Broughton 
1989 M Ticehurst, C. Vale,  I Turner (Resigned) 
1990 M Ticehurst, T Byrnes, M Pittman 
1991 M Ticehurst, T Byrnes, L Ward 

 
Year Subjunior Junior Senior Women Trophies 

1992 E Neill T Byrnes B Stocks   

1993 E Neill T Byrnes B Stocks   

1994 S Thompson T Byrnes B Stocks   

1995 G Carroll T Byrnes G Kellow M Beckett  

1996 G Carroll  T Byrnes M Beckett  

1997 G Carroll  T Byrnes F Bond L Gale 

1998 G Carroll A Edwards R Turner F Bond(res)/N Midlane L Gale 

1999 G Carroll A Edwards R Turner N Midlane L Gale 

2000 G Carroll A Edwards R Turner S Dundon  

2001 G Carroll A Edwards D Anglicas S Dundon  

2002 G Carroll A Edwards D Anglicas J Mastroianni  

2003 G Carroll A Edwards D Anglicas R Ferguson  

2004 G Carroll A Edwards D Anglicas R Ferguson  

2005 G Carroll A Edwards D Anglicas R Ferguson  

2006 G Carroll D Brennan J Mesite R Ferguson  

2007 G Carroll D Brennan J Mesite R Ferguson L Gale 

2008 G Carroll D Brennan J Mesite R Ferguson L Gale 

2009 G Carroll D Brennan J Mesite R Ferguson L Gale 

2010 G Carroll D Brennan J Mesite R Ferguson L Gale 

2011 G Carroll D Brennan J Mesite R Ferguson L Gale 

2012 G Carroll D Brennan D Broughton R Ferguson L Gale 

2013 G Carroll D Brennan D Broughton R Ferguson  

2014 G Carroll D Brennan D Wilson R Ferguson  

2015 T Davies D Brennan D Wilson R Ferguson  

2016
 

G 
Carroll
 

D 
Brenna

n
 

D 
Wilson
 

R 
Fergus

T Davies D Brennan D Wilson L Walker  

2017 T Davies D Brennan T Gatward L Walker  

2018 T Davies D Brennan T Gatward R Winter  

2019 T Davies D Brennan T Gatward R Winter (Seniors) D Cook (Juniors)  
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REGISTRAR 

 

 
Year Registrar 

1947 G. Hudson 

1948 V Pomering 

1949 J Ayre 

1950-1952 J Baker 

1953 R Watson & F Cranfield 

1954 -1956 F Cranfield 

1957- 1958 F Curtis 

1959-1960 B Emery 

1961 R J Parker 

1962 B Emery 

1963 R Alford 

1964-1965 No Record 

1966-1969 F Finch & S Finch 

1970-1971 F Bones 

1972-1977 S Bones 

1972-1974 S Finch (Junior) 

1974-1977 B Smith (Junior) 

1975-1999 B Smith 

2000-2006 B Smith (Junior) & L Gale (Senior) 

2007-2011 M Edwards (Junior) & L Gale (Senior) 

2012-2013 D Graham, M Edwards & L Gale 

2014-2017 D Graham, M Edwards & P Auld 

2018 A Burgoyne, M Edwards & P Auld 

2019 A Burgoyne, L Beaugeard & P Auld 

 

 

ASSISTANT SECRETARY 

 

 

 

 
 
 
  

Year Assistant Secretary 

1947 G. Hudson 

1948 G. Hudson 

1949 J. Ayre 

1950 J Baker 

1951 J Ayre 

1952 J Ayre 

1953 M Cossins 

1954 -1956 R J Parker 

1957 L McClelland 

1958 A Pitter 

1959 A James 

1960-1963 A Pitter 

1964-1979 No Records 

1980-1982 S Bones 

1983-1985 J Loupis 

1986-1995 S Bones 

1996-1998 S Bones 

1999 No Appointment 

2000-2017 T Davies 

2018 - 2019 No Appointment  
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ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS 2019 
 

 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

 

Name Office 
Maximum 

Management-9 
Maximum 
Council-8 

J Smit 
L Ward 
J Sorbara 
D Kerr 
K Pester 
T Davies 
T.Gatward 
D Brennan 
D Cook 
R Winter 
P Auld 
L Beaugeard 
A Burgoyne 

President 
Secretary 
Treasurer 
Snr Vice President 
Snr Vice President 
Vice President (Sub Juniors) 
Vice President (Seniors) 
Vice President (Juniors) 
Vice President (Junior Women) 
Vice President (Senior Women) 
Registrar 
Registrar 
Registrar 

9 
8 
7 
8 
6 
9 
8 
8 
6 
8 
6 
7 
8 

7 
8 
5 
7 
8 
8 
7 
4 
5 
8 
7 
8 
8 

 

 
 
 
 

CLUB ATTENDANCE AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 2019 
 

 

Club 
Maximum 
Council-8 

Avalon 
Beacon Hill 
Brookvale 
BTH Raiders 
CC Strikers 
Curl Curl 
Dee Why 
Forest Killarney 
Harbord Seasiders United 
Manly Allambie  
Manly Vale 
Mosman 
Narrabeen 
Pittwater 
Seaforth 

St Augustines 

Wakehurst 

8 

8 

8 

8 

8 

8 

8 

8 

8 

8 

8 

8 

8 

8 

8 

6 

8 
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MWFA ADMINISTRATION  

 
Full time and part time salaried staff: 
 

• David Mason  – CEO  

• Angela Crandell – Receptionist 

• Lee-Anne Sestanovich – Administration Manager 

• Karon Saunders – Assistant Manager, Competitions 
and Admin 

• Derek Turner -  Accounts Manager 

• Keith Pester – Judiciary Secretary 

• Eugene Lawrenz – Community Coach Development Manager 

• Gillian Hunt – Minutes Secretary 
 

HISTORY OF STAFF EMPLOYMENT 
 
General Manager Position established in May, 

2000. 

• Jeremy Toivonen commenced May, 2000 to 4th July 2017. 
 
Chief Executive Officer Position Established in July 2017. 

• David Mason 24th July 2017  
 
Administrator position established in April, 2005. 

• Vanessa Henderson employed as Office Manager April, 2005 to 25th September,2009. 

• Lee-Anne Sestanovich 12th December, 2009 

• Karon Saunders 22nd March 2017 
 
Part Time Receptionist position established in February, 2008. 

• Kim McCormick 25th February, 2008 to 10th March, 2009. 

• Lee-Anne Sestanovich 9th March, 2009 to 11th December, 2009 

• Jan Patterson 11th December, 2009 to 17th June, 2011 

• Angela Crandell 18th July 2011 

• Louise Blair 1st July 2013 to August 2016 
 
Technical Director and Youth Development position established in July, 2003. 

• Phil Moss from July, 2003 to May 2010.Phil resigned to take up a position with the 
Central Coast Mariners A-League Team.  

• Richy Williams from June 2010 to November 2011. Richy resigned to return to 
Wales with his family 

• Craig Midgley from October 2011 to 9th December 2015. Craig resigned to join 
family in north Queensland 

 
Community Coach Development Manager position established in 2017 

• Chris Adams from March 2017 to 23rd November 2018 

• Eugene Lawrenz 4th February 2019 
 
Judiciary Secretary Position established as a part time position in 2008. 

• Syd Russell up to December, 2008. 

• Keith Pester from December, 2008. 
 
Accounts Manager Position established as a part time position in 2006. 

• Barbara Cifala from 2006 to October 2014 

• Derek Turner from January 2015  
 
Minutes Secretary established as a part time position in 2017. 

• Kelly Sargent from 13th June 2017 to 1 April 2019 

• Gillian Hunt from 6th May 2019 
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                            PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
 
Congratulations to all of us - We are No. 1 in NSW 

The Manly Warringah Football Association was officially recognized by Football NSW as the biggest 

association in NSW in 2019. 

It was the first time the MWFA had been the largest football association in NSW and was a ringing 

endorsement for all players, coaches, officials, volunteers and parents who make up our football community 

on the Northern Beaches. 

The official figures for the 2019 season saw 18,406 registered players in the winter competitions with more 

than 6,500 also playing in registered Summer Soccer competitions run by MWFA clubs. 

When we add the 502 players registered to play football for Manly United and MWFA representative teams 

from the age of 9 through to the senior men’s and women’s teams, there is now almost 19,000 registered 

winter participants. 

The season started with an Over 35 / Over 45 event at Cromer Park to raise money for one of our participants, 

Richard Tombs, who suffered a serious spinal injury in an Over 35s match in 2018. The day raised almost 

$100,000 for Richard and his family and highlighted the sense of community that is strong within the MWFA. 

Congratulations to Curl Curl Football Club for winning the Men’s Grand Final, Brookvale for the winning the 

MWFA Men’s Premier League Premiership, Manly Vale for claiming the  Women’s Premier League 

Premiership and Beacon Hill for taking out the Women’s PL Grand Final. 

Congratulations to Belrose Terrey Hills, Harbord Seasiders United and Manly Vale for winning promotion to 

the expanded Men’s Premier League in 2020 with Manly Vale claiming its place following a 1-0 win over Dee 

Why in the first MWFA Playoff match. 

Congratulations also to Belrose Terrey Hills and Pittwater for winning the respective AL1 and WAL1 

competitions and Seaforth PL and Manly Vale WPL for taking out the MWFA Challenge Finals. 

The CCC Program continued to grow with 13 clubs taking part in the program. 2019 saw the MWFA invest 

back into the CCC Clubs through reimbursement of money for putting CCC’s through a C Licence or through 

the purchase of equipment. 

The CCC continues to drive the MWFA and Clubs’ strategy to ensure more young players are able to play 

under a quality coaching environment that increases enjoyment and learning. 

The 2019 season saw the introduction of a new Registration system through Football Federation Australia, 

Play Football, which had challenges and the work of the MWFA and Club Registrars in getting all players onto 

the field should be applauded. 

Facilities improvements also continued in 2019 with two new synthetic fields at Lionel Watts opening towards 

the back end of the season. That now brings the number of synthetic pitches on the Northern Beaches to 

seven. 

Special thanks must go to Belrose Terrey Hills Football Club and Forest Killarney Football Club for this 

assistance in working with the MWFA to ensure the disruption to Wakehurst was minimized during the 

construction of the fields. 

The synthetic project will continue into the future with Northern Beaches Council already making 

announcements that the next project will take place at Millers Reserve with Careel Bay put forward as a 

suggested option following Millers. 

 

Off the field, the MWFA also took some important steps forward in 2019. 
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The MWFA formally changed its company status from an Incorporated Association to a Company Limited by 

Guarantee. This 18 month process was instigated by the NSW Office of Fair Trading as the MWFA had 

passed the threshold in terms of turnover and assets. 

The MWFA joined with the Manly Warringah District Soccer Football Club (MWDSFC) and Manly United to 

receive a $500,000 Federal Government grant to assist with the much-needed upgrade of the Cromer Park 

Clubhouse and administration building. 

The Federal Government grant, driven by the Federal Member for Mackellar Mr Jason Falinksi MP, was 

boosted by funding from the MWFA, MWDSFC and Manly United to put together a package that will allow a 

$1.8 million redevelopment of the facility. 

The development of the Clubhouse will continue the drive to increase use of Cromer Park for the grassroots 

clubs – on and off the field. Once completed, the new Clubhouse will also provide opportunity for clubs to 

hold fundraising functions to further drive revenue for grassroots clubs. 

2019 saw the evolution of the MWFA Men’s Premier League Match of the Round at Cromer Park with the 

reserve grade game also played on a Saturday night. The MWFA also increased the number of local 

grassroots matches played on Cromer Park 1 and 2 to ensure the facility is truly available to all players. 

The MWFA AYL teams performed well in 2019. The U13 team took out the Premiership and lost a tense 

Grand Final while the U5 and U16 teams also made the semi finals. The AYL programs continues to improve 

with players already taking the step from AYL to Boys Youth League. 

The MWFA once again hosted all Grand Finals at Cromer Park with every MWFA competition decided at 

Cromer Park over the three days. The excitement everyone from the U12s through to the Over 45s – men 

and women – has by playing a Grand Final as part of an event at one venue is something we should be 

proud of. 

A huge thank you to the dedicated MWFA staff for their hard work to allow 18,406 people to enjoy their 

football on a weekly basis. To Lee-Anne Sestanovich, Karon Saunders, Angela Crandell, Eugene Lawrenz 

and Sigrid Mulherin (MWFRA), thank you for your work throughout the year. 

The MWFA would also like to acknowledge the work of the Manly United staff in supporting the MWFA staff 

and functions and keeping the entire Northern Beaches eco-system at the centre of all decisions to ensure 

unity drives the future prosperity and growth of the sport. 

We would like to acknowledge the MWFRA, led by President Toby Williams. The MWFA and MWFRA had a 

close relationship in 2019 and that will continue into the future as we work towards joint initiatives to help 

grow the referee base. 

A special thanks to the members of the Executive and Management Committees and all of the various 

committees and panels that help MWFA regulate the competitions and put in a lot of hours. 

The greatest recognition must go to the volunteers at our 17 Member Clubs and the MWFRA that are the 

fabric of our sport. From Club Presidents to the groundsmen, BBQ helpers to Committee Members; 18,046 

people would not be able to play each weekend without your tireless dedication and efforts. 

Thanks to all for a great 2019 and we look forward to making further strides forward in 2020. 

 

           Jeff Smit   David Mason 

           MWFA President  MWFA CEO 
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MWFA MERITORIOUS SERVICE AWARDS  
 

1985 Ted Blackwood Warriewood 1993 Lionel Stacey Narrabeen YC 

1985 Don Tice Harbord Diggers 1994 W (Billy) Glasgow Harbord Diggers 

1985 Bruce Hutton Curl Curl YC 1994 Bev Hessell Manly Allambie 

1986 Velma Sestanovich Manly Vale 1994 Wes Jamieson BTH 

1986 Joan Finlay Manly 1994 Chris Doran Wakehurst 

1986 Don Logan Seasiders 1994 Robert Turner Forest Killarney 

1986 Terry Allen Avalon 1994 Bev Brewer Harbord Diggers 

1986 John Mesite Brookvale 1994 Jean Young Curl Curl YC 

1987 Tony Seaman Curl Curl YC 1994 Bob Dunn MWSA Reps 

1987 Warren Squires Curl Curl/Dee Why 1994 Peter van Wensveen Collaroy Plateau 

1987 John Wainwright Manly Vale 1995 Peter Campanella Brookvale 

1987 Reg Smith Seaforth YC 1995 Michael Rogan Narrabeen YC 

1987 Fred Parker  1995 Rhonda Withers Seasiders 

1987 John Bailey Harbord Diggers 1995 Graham Sutherland Manly Allambie 

1987 Mike Carlowe Mosman 1996 Graham Berry St Augustines 

1988 Terry O’Connell Pittwater RSL 1996 Steve Gosling CC Strikers 

1988 Beryl MacDougall Sporting Union 1997 Michael Bosschieter Narrabeen YC 

1988 Denzyl Joyce Sporting Union 1997 Max Turnbull Manly Vale 

1988 Cyril Jack MWSRA 1997 Rob Hessell Manly Allambie 

1988 Albert Siddons Forest 1997 Ida Rigoni CC Strikers 

1988 Trevor Croal Collaroy Plateau 1997 Cas Greco Manly Vale 

1988 John Loupis Mosman 1998 Roland Luke Avalon 

1988 Graeme Coates Seaforth YC 1998 Noel Robertson St Augustines 

1988 Marios Economides Allambie 1998 Mick Meechan MWSA Reps 

1988 John Maunder Wakehurst 1998 David Anglicas St Augustines 

1989 Neil Davison Manly Vale 1998 David Mollard Mosman 

1989 Peter Clarke Collaroy Plateau 1999 Bill Mc Burnie MWSRA 

1989 Paul Rudgley Pittwater RSL 1999 Con Pithis Wakehurst 

1989 Lorna Gale Pittwater RSL 1999 Vince Macri MWSA Dolphins 

1989 John Ward Collaroy Plateau 1999 Ray Fanning MWSA 

1989 Don Gale Pittwater RSL 2000 Ross & Debbie Cordukes CC Strikers 

1990 Jim Delaney Long Reef 2000 Paul Connah Dee Why 

1990 Val Jefferson Allambie 2001 Greg Fennell Dee Why 

1990 John Fitzgerald Wakehurst 2001 Tony Davies Beacon Hill 

1990 Alice Marshall Manly SC 2001 Neville Drake BTH 

1990 Pedro Lopez Curl Curl YC 2001 Sam Mesite Brookvale 

1990 John Bashford Manly Vale 2001 Henry Schydlo Pittwater RSL 

1990 Ron Coffey Curl Curl YC 2001 David Broughton Seasiders 

1990 Kevin Martin Collaroy Plateau 2001 Lizetta Femia Brookvale 

1991 Dave Clapham Manly Vale 2002 John Nicotra St Augustines 

1991 Keith Pester Wakehurst/MWSC 2002 Michael & Roz DeRome Curl Curl 

1991 Dennis Bayley Manly Vale 2003 Peter Fennell Narrabeen YC 

1991 Judy Head Seaforth YC 2003 Greg Carroll MWSA 

1991 John Henson BTH 2003 Lyn & Keith Radford Seaforth YC 

1991 Scott Campbell Balgowlah RSL 2003 Tom Miles Manly Vale 

1991 Frank Molinaroli Curl Curl YC 2003 Peter Symonds Pittwater RSL 

1992 Alan Hoy Harbord Diggers 2004 Jeff Smit St Augustines 

1992 Michael Wilson Pittwater RSL 2004 Ed Neill MWFA 

1992 Phil Smealie Seaforth YC 2005 Kim Linay Beacon Hill 

1992 Linda Ward Collaroy Plateau 2005 Tim Riley  

1992 Robyn Skene Wakehurst 2005 Peter Tracey HSU 

1992 Connie Greco Manly Vale 2005 Wayne McSorley CC Strikers 

1992 Wendy Thompson Manly Allambie 2005 Richard Hooker CC Strikers 

1992 Steve Springett Forest Killarney 2005 Colin Barry Forest Killarney 

1992 Linda Bell Manly Allambie 2005 Joan Croal CC Strikers 

1992 Michael Deane MWSC Ltd 2005 Rocky Carlino Brookvale 
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1993 John Catchpool Manly Allambie 2005 Peter Auld Manly Vale 

1993 Don Tice Harbord Diggers 2006 Tony Bruzzano Manly Vale 

1993 Bob Verduin Wakehurst 2006 Annette Burgoyne Pittwater RSL 

1993 Judy Kellow Cromer YC 2006 Brian Geoghegan Brookvale 

1993 Ted Byrnes Collaroy Plateau 2006 John & Kerrie Koster Beacon Hill 

1993 Michael Speed Dee Why 2006 Dylis Graham Avalon 

 

 

MWFA MERITORIOUS SERVICE AWARDS 
 

2006 Andrew Edwards Wakehurst & MWFA 2012 Richard Wright Seaforth 

2006 Bryan Floyd Wakehurst 2012 Dave Wilson Seaforth 

2007 Jim Trevenar MUFC 2013 Drew Benjamin Wakehurst 

2007 David & Debbie Scott Beacon Hill 2013 Jay Tofferi Narrabeen 

2007 Colin Ritchie Pittwater 2013 Caroline Musik Wakehurst 

2007 David Waller Seaforth 2013 Trevor Watson Manly Allambie 

2007 Mike Kirk Avalon 2014 Anita Paul Forest Killarney 

2007 David Tomlinson Manly Allambie 2014 Karen Carlson Beacon Hill 

2008 Tony Cavalieri Brookvale 2014 Vince Vescio Beacon Hill 

2008 Ross Downie BTH Raiders 2014 David Brennan Wakehurst / MWFA 

2008 Rick Asher Avalon 2015 Sam Femia Brookvale 

2009 Warren Meppem Forest Killarney 2015 Maria (Pachi) Jones Mosman 

2009 Paul Mulligan HSU 2015 Ludo Ledieu Curl Curl YC 

2009 Suzy Broughton HSU 2016 Linda Wright Seaforth 

2009 Michael Sestanovich Manly Vale 2016 Stuart Nairn Dee Why 

2009 Alistair Campbell Avalon 2016 Wayne Brown Avalon 

2010 David Howell Manly Allambie 2017 Christine Noldus Avalon 

2010 John Kowtan Avalon 2017 John Tansley Beacon Hill 

2010 Larry Duke Narrabeen 2017 Maria Pollard Beacon Hill 

2010 Michele Winston MWFA 2018 David Lavings Curl Curl  

2010 Marc Adam Dee Why 2018 Caroline Hodges Manly Vale 

2011 Neil Burgoyne Pittwater 2018 Neil Blundell Manly Vale 

2011 Sandra Parkin Narrabeen 2018 Keith Wainwright Manly Vale 

2011 Roger Graham Avalon    

 

 

MERITORIOUS SERVICE AWARDS 

 
Caroline Hodges – Manly Vale FC 

Caroline Hodges has been an incredible contributor to Manly Vale Football Club over the past ten plus 

years. As the daughter of former Manly Vale President, PL coach and player Les Cratchley it was almost 

inevitable that she would be brought up in the Manly Vale club family. After marrying David Hodges she 

spent many hours at the club with children Surrey, Lucy and Daniel and was a team Manager. In 2006 

when Connie decided to handover Caroline already a committee member volunteered to take over the 

running of the canteen and assisted by David has grown the Manly Vale Canteen into a vibrant hub of the 

clubs activity over the weekend.  

 

Ensuring it is staffed across both days and stocked with tempting fare for old and young the canteen has 

continued to set the benchmark across MWFA. Just as importantly for the club is that the canteen has 

grown in the funding contribution it has made to the clubs finances and continues to be the major source of 

funding after playing fees. Caroline has been a staunch member of the Manly Vale Committee for the last 

twenty years and continues to be a bastion of the clubs family and community spirit. Manly Vale FC is very 

fortunate to have the contribution of Caroline and her family and is proud to nominate her for the MWFA 

Meritorious Service award. 
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Keith Wainwright – Manly Vale FC 

Keith Wainwright is the longest serving member of the Manly Vale Football club indeed he is the 

only member that was involved with the club during its previous incarnation as Brookvale, it 

became Manly Vale in 1961. The Wainwright family had a large influence on the club, with father 

Ted a coach for several years and 4 brothers all playing for the Club. John and Keith were both to 

have a hand in running the Club, John as President and Keith as Premier League Coach. Although 

Keith went on to represent the District and Area in rep teams he always returned to Manly Vale. As 

he aged he became more involved in lower division teams and was a key organiser of the Sunday 

Summer masters and its move into the MWFA family. 

 For the past 10 years Keith has been the patron of Manly Vale FC. He has recently been coaching 

a number of Manly Vale Women's teams as well as helping develop the skills of his grandchildren. 

Keith is passionate in his recollection of the club and areas football history and will happily engage 

with anyone on his this his favourite topic. Manly Vale FC is very fortunate to have the contribution 

of Keith and is proud to nominate him for the MWFA Meritorious Service award. 

Neil Blundell – Manly Vale FC 

Neil Blundell has been a key contributor to the football and committee of Manly Vale FC for over 

ten years. As a young footballer he represented Auburn & Blacktown City. After moving into the 

area he joined our strong AL4 team and then was a pioneer of our early Over 35 and 45 teams. He 

also took up coaching junior teams with an approach that always encouraged effort and 

development rather than results.  

He has twice stepped into Assistant Manager Roles for our PL squads. For the last 10 years Neil 

has been managing the Over 35/45 Senior Men's teams and has grown the participation to 6 

teams, actively involved in the clubs committee he has always been a willing contributor to the 

clubs progress. He is also currently coaching our under 16/1 team. Manly Vale FC is very fortunate 

to have the contribution of Neil and is proud to nominate him for the MWFA Meritorious Service 

award. 

James Raphael – Mosman FC 

James Raphael is the epitome of a great club man and someone who has contributed to 
Association and local football in a wide range of capacities since he joined the club in 2005. 

He has coached numerous club senior men’s and women’s teams over the years and was the 
volunteer coach for the Club’s AL1/AL1R squad over the 2018 winter season. His coaching 
achievements include being a former Club Director of Coaching, Premier League Coach, and 
coach of the Club’s WAL1 and WAL2 teams. 

James has also served in various capacities within the Club including as Secretary, Judiciary 
Member and as Club Representative at Council of Clubs meetings. 

At Association level, James has been a member of the Player Grading Sub-Committee since its 
inception in 2016. He has also coached teams from the MUFC Metropolitan U10s, U11s and U12s 
teams as well as having been a coach to MUFC NPL Boys league U13 and U14 teams. 

As a longstanding member of the MWFRA, James has mentored numerous referees over the 
years as well as making a substantial contribution as a referee himself. He was Referee of the 
Year in 2008 and refereed the semi-final of the FNSW Champion of Champions game in 2009. In 
2008, he was Vice President of the MWFRA and President for 2009 – 2010. 

He is the ‘go to’ man for odd jobs at Mosman Football Club despite having moved from 
Mosman many years ago. He is always ready to provide a helping hand whether it is 
dismantling goal posts or moving barbeques in his trusty ute. 
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Club football could not function without people like James who give so willingly of their time and 
knowledge. In addition, football within the Manly Warringah Football Association has been the 
better for his involvement over many years. Mosman Football Club has pleasure in nominating 
James for a MWFA Meritorious Service Award for 2018. 

Steve Kiddle – Pittwater RSL FC 

Steve has been with the club since 2009 when his son joined the U7’s. He became the Age co-
ordinator the following year & has been doing that ever since. His son is now in the U16’s. 

Steve was instrumental in starting the massive gala day we put on for the U6-U9 – with jumping 
castles, face painting etc & has made it the success that it is today. 

Steve became the club secretary in 2016, without missing one meeting, he has kept us all in 
line with his ‘actions to be taken’ 

You can find Steve at Kitchener most Saturday mornings & some Sundays, helping set up the 
canteen & BBQ, setting up fields. Steve is our ‘go to guy’, his efforts in keeping Pittwater RSL 
FC running are enormous. 
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MWFA PERPETUAL AWARD HISTORY 
 

Year President’s Cup 
Syd Russell Memorial 
Secretary’s Shield 

Executive Award 

1979 Terrey Hills   

1980 Belrose - Terrey Hills   

1981 Forest   

1982 Wakehurst   

1983 Forest   

1984 Wakehurst   

1985 Pittwater RSL Collaroy Plateau YC Brookvale 

1986 Wakehurst Beacon Hill YC M.A.F.S.C. 

1987 Wakehurst Manly SC Brookvale 

1988 Wakehurst Cromer YC Pittwater RSL 

1989 Wakehurst Manly Vale Manly Vale 

1990 Wakehurst Allambie Brookvale 

1991 Wakehurst Wakehurst Mosman 

1992 Pittwater RSL Brookvale Curl Curl YC 

1993 Pittwater RSL BTH Raiders Mosman 

1994 Pittwater RSL Seaforth YC Beacon Hill YC 

1995 Collaroy Cromer SC Narrabeen YC Wakehurst 

1996 Pittwater RSL Pittwater RSL Mosman 

1997 Pittwater RSL Avalon Wakehurst 

1998 Pittwater RSL CC Strikers Wakehurst 

1999 Wakehurst/Pittwater Harbord Diggers Beacon Hill Y 

2000 Wakehurst St Augustines Wakehurst 

2001 Wakehurst BTH Raiders Wakehurst 

2002 Beacon Hill YC Mosman Mosman 

2003 Seaforth YC Forest Killarney Pittwater RSL 

2004 Wakehurst Manly Vale Pittwater RSL 

2005 Wakehurst CC Strikers Forest Killarney 

2006 Wakehurst Mosman CC Strikers 

2007 Wakehurst Curl Curl Beacon Hill 

2008 Manly Allambie Seaforth Avalon 

2009 Wakehurst Forest Killarney Manly Vale 

2010 Wakehurst Narrabeen CC Strikers 

2011 Wakehurst Wakehurst CC Strikers 

2012 Wakehurst BTH Raiders Pittwater 

2013 Avalon Manly Vale Seaforth 

2014 St Augustines  Harbord Seasiders Utd Pittwater RSL 

2015 Forest Killarney Forest Killarney Pittwater RSL 

2016 CC Strikers Wakehurst Wakehurst 

2017 Wakehurst Narrabeen Wakehurst 

2018 Wakehurst Pittwater RSL Wakehurst 

2019 Forest Killarney Forest Killarney BTH Raiders 
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MWFA PERPETUAL AWARD HISTORY cont. 
 

Year 
Ron Savell Award 

Men’s Premier League 
Trent Patton Award 

Men’s AL 1 

Judy Head Award 
Women’s Open 

1979    

1980 Curl Curl YC   

1981 Pittwater RSL   

1982 Pittwater RSL   

1983 Pittwater RSL   

1984 Pittwater RSL   

1985 Pittwater RSL   

1986 Seaforth YC   

1987 Belrose Terrey Hills   

1988 Belrose Terrey Hills   

1989 Mosman   

1990 Mosman   

1991 Mosman   

1992 Brookvale Mosman  

1993 Pittwater RSL Pittwater RSL  

1994 Pittwater RSL Wakehurst  

1995 Brookvale Wakehurst BTH Raiders WAL 2 

1996 Pittwater/Wakehurst Avalon Seasiders WAL 1 

1997 Narrabeen YC Belrose Terrey Hills Manly Vale WAL 3 

1998 Wakehurst Wakehurst Wakehurst WAL 3A 

1999 Mosman/Avalon Forest Killarney Pittwater WAL 3A 

2000 Mosman Manly Vale Manly Vale WAL 2 

2001 Mosman Seaforth Strikers WPL 

2002 Beacon Hill YC Mosman Wakehurst WPL 

2003 Avalon Wakehurst Not Awarded 

2004 Mosman Wakehurst Pittwater WAL 1 

2005 Wakehurst BTH Raiders Manly Vale WAL 1B 

2006 Beacon Hill BTH Raiders Brookvale WAL1 Manly Vale WAL1 B 

2007 Beacon Hill Manly Allambie Brookvale WPL Manly Vale WPL 

2008 Manly Allambie Pittwater RSL Pittwater WPL 

2009 Forest Killarney Beacon Hill Harbord Seasiders Utd WPL 

2010 Wakehurst St Augustines Manly Vale WPL B 

2011 Manly Allambie Beacon Hill Pittwater WPL 

2012 Wakehurst Beacon Hill Brookvale WPL 

2013 Wakehurst Harbord Seasiders Utd Manly Vale WPL B 

2014 Wakehurst Wakehurst Brookvale WPL Wakehurst WPL 

2015 Wakehurst Avalon Wakehurst WPL 

2016 Mosman Harbord Seasiders Utd Wakehurst WPL 

2017 CC Strikers Avalon Manly Vale WPL/WAL1 

2018 CC Strikers HSU Manly Vale WPL  

2019 CC Strikers Wakehurst Mosman WAL1 
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MWFA PERPETUAL AWARDS JUNIORS 2019 
 

Trophy Category Winner 

Presidents Cup Champion Junior Club Forest Killarney 

Union Jack Trophy Best Performed Junior Div 1 Team 

BTH Raiders W15/1 
Pittwater W12/1 

 

Soccer Post Defence Trophy Junior Team with Best Defence Wakehurst W14/2 

Craig McGrath Encouragement Award 
Junior Team Needing Most 
Encouragement 

HSU U15/3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MWFA PERPETUAL AWARDS SENIORS 2019 
 

Trophy Category Winner 

Executive Award Champion Senior Club BTH Raiders 

Trent Patton AL 1 Fair Play Award Wakehurst 

Judy Head Women’s Open Fair Play Award Mosman 

Ron Saveall Premier League Fair Play Award CC Strikers 

Syd Russell Memorial Secretary’s 
Shield 

Best Club Administration 
Giuseppe Guerrera – 
Forest Killarney  

Soccer Post Website Trophy Best Website CC Strikers 
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PREMIER LEAGUE INDIVIDUAL AWARDS HISTORY 
 
 

LORNA GALE PL PLAYER OF THE YEAR 
 
 

1984 Dale Halpin Seaforth YC 

1985 Neil Edwardson Brookvale FC 

1986 Greg Harpur Seaforth YC 

1987 Mark Kroschell Brookvale FC 

1988 Jurgen Muller Mosman FC 

1989 Dudley Fox Brookvale FC 

1990 Gary Sandtner Seasiders 

1991 Simon Euers Brookvale FC 

1992 Stuart Cleary Seasiders 

1993 No awards  

1994 No awards  

1995 Simon Rhead Wakehurst FC 

1996 Aaron Ferguson Pittwater RSL 

1997 Ross Etherington Wakehurst FC 

1998 Adam Townsend BTH Raiders 

1999 No awards  

2000 Mark Nicholson CC Strikers 

2001 Roland Webber Pittwater RSL 

2001 Wayne Pierce Brookvale FC 

2002 Bobby Colville Mosman FC 

2003 Ross Etherington Brookvale FC 

2004 Adam Townsend Wakehurst FC 

2005 Roland Weber Pittwater RSL 

2006 Bobby Colville Forest Killarney 

2007 Paul Mulligan HSU 

2008 Chris Hallett BTH Raiders 

2009 Kai Alagich Wakehurst FC 

2010 Robin Woods Manly Vale 

2011 Jared West Manly Allambie 

2011 Gregg McKittrick Brookvale FC 

2012 Pascale Julliard Narrabeen FC 

2013 Daniel Bateup Avalon FC 

2013 Pascal Julliard Narrabeen FC 

2014 Jakub Sklenar Narrabeen FC 

2015 Sam Byrne Mosman FC 

2016 Tyson Masters Manly Vale FC 

2017 Cameron White Pittwater RSL 

2018 Luke Curnow CC Strikers FC 

2019 Daniel Deblaere Seaforth FC 
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ROOKIE OF THE YEAR 

 

1984 Joe Smith Manly Vale 

1985 Richard Fry Curl Curl YC 

1986 Paul Smit Manly SC 

1987 Sean Westwood Seaforth YC 

1988 Steven Finlay Manly SC 

1989 Sam Condamitti Brookvale FC 

1990 Daniel Smit Manly SC 

1991 Marcus Von Euw Wakehurs FC 

1992 Milan Jaglica Manly Vale 

1993 No Awards  

1994 No Awards  

1995 Carl McCreath Manly Vale 

1996 Danny Townsend Belrose-Terrey Hills 

1997 Ben Molyneux Wakehurst FC 

1998 Greg McKitterick Pittwater RSL 

1999 No awards  

2000 Mathew Turner Mosman FC 

2001 Danny Moore Wakehurst FC 

2002 Tim Boorman Beacon Hill YC 

 BJ Inkster St Augustines 

2003 Stefano Teghini Pittwater RSL 

2004 Not awarded  

2005 Peter Wye CC Strikers 

2006 Eric Sebulonsen Manly Vale 

2007 Matthew Bowden Belrose-Terrey Hills 

2008 Daniel Greco Manly Vale 

2009 Tom Reeves Pittwater RSL 

2010 Tommy Freemantle Beacon Hill 

2011 Mitchell Marks Manly Vale 

2012 Michael Ball Wakehurst FC 

2013 Angus Thomson St Augustines 

2014 Andrew Green Wakehurst FC 

2015 John Bushnell Wakehurst FC 

2016 Sebastien Szambowski Brookvale FC 

2017 Jack McGinley Seaforth 

2018 Jack Worland HSU AL1 

2019 Oscar Drew Mosman FC 
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GOALKEEPER OF THE YEAR 

 

1984 Mark Chapman Brookvale 

1985 Max Van Leeuwin Terrey Hills 

1986 John Saunders Mosman 

1987 Brett Hersee Manly SC 

1988 Peter Antic Pittwater RSL 

1989 Greg Bower Dee Why 

1990 Leon Brilman Manly Vale 

1991 Leon Brilman Manly Vale 

1992 Warwick Tingle Manly Vale 

1993 No awards  

1994 No awards  

1995 Warwick Tingle Manly Vale 

1996 Warwick Tingle Manly Vale 

1997 Mark Whitby Manly Allambie 

1998 Mark Whitby Manly Allambie 

1999 No awards  

2000 Peter Cveticanin Pittwater RSL 

2001 Hamish Carroll Beacon Hill 

2002 Peter Dougheney Wakehurst FC 

2003 BJ Inkster St Augustines 

2004 Ian Moores Manly Vale 

2005 Ian Moores Manly Vale 

 Hamish Carroll Beacon Hill 

2006 Jamie Kukuron Dee Why 

2007 Darren Sekulic Pittwater RSL 

2008 S Jansen Belrose Terrey Hills 

2009 Dean McCreath Narrabeen 

2010 Peter Dougheney Wakehurst FC 

2011 Brendan Inkster St Augustines 

2012 Peter Dougheney Wakehurst FC 

2013 Ross Fleming Beacon Hill 

 Rocco Papalia Brookvale FC 

 Peter Dougheney Wakehurst FC 

2014 Dean McCreath Pittwater FC 

2015 Rocco Papalia Narrabeen FC 

2016 Scott Bagnall Narrabeen FC 

2017 Dean McCreath Pittwater RSL 

2018 Matthew Smith CC Strikers 

2019 Matthew Smith CC Strikers 

 Daniel Trueman Seaforth FC 
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CLUBPERSON OF THE YEAR 

 

1984   

1985 Michael Reynen Manly SC 

1986 Dave Coady Manly SC 

1987 Dave Flaskas Terrey Hills 

1988 Greg Jones  Allambie 

1989 Terry Allen Avalon FC 

1990 Sam Mesite Brookvale FC 

1991 Michael Soderberg Seasiders 

1992 Les Macedo Pittwater RSL 

1993 No awards  

1994 No awards  

1995 Bryan Moore Manly Vale 

1996 Wesley Ryder Brookvale FC 

1997 Craig Cavanagh Curl Curl YC 

1998 Jim Little Narrabeen FC 

1999 No awards  

2000 Brian Geoghegan Brookvale FC 

2001 No awarded  

2002 Nick Bogunovic Pittwater RSL 

 Michael Sestanovich Manly Vale 

2003 Simon Euers Brookvale FC 

2004 Peter Tracey HSU 

2005 Jeff Smit ST Augustines 

2006 Tony Calboutin Mosman FC 

2007 Mark Ninness Manly Vale 

2008 N Tracey Manly Allambie 

2009 Justin Rainbird Wakehurst FC 

2010 Darren Kynoch-Kelly Forest Killarney 

2011 Chris Rodgers Manly Allambie 

2012 Rocco Papalia Brookvale 

2013 Anthony Vescio St Augustines 

2014 Jordan Perkins Mosman FC 

2015 Peter Robertson St Augustines 

2016 Christopher Rodgers Manly Allambie 

2017 Scott White Manly Vale 

2018 Dean McCreath Pittwater RSL 

2019 Chris Lynch Forest Killarney 

 
COACH OF THE YEAR 

 

2004 David Anglicas St Augustines 

2005 Michael Symons Avalon FC 

2006 Glen Wood Forest Killarney 

2007 Dean Harding Narrabeen FC 

2008 David Bonney Manly Allambie 

2009 David Bonney Manly Allambie 

2010 Nigel Mahoney CC Strikers 

2011 Paul Jeurgens Wakehurst 

2012 Lewis Furlong CC Strikers 

2013 Ian Brooks Pittwater RSL 

2014 Bob Caitlan Manly Vale 

2015 Joe Santarosa Narrabeen FC 

2016 Paul Jeurgens Wakehurst FC 

2017 Ryan Butcher CC Strikers 

2017 Adam Israel Pittwater RSL 

2018 Joshua Aysough Mosman FC 

2019 Matthew Gale and Jordan Lefebvre Seaforth FC 
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GOLDEN BOOT OF THE YEAR 

 

2006 Jurg Dierkes Brookvale FC 

 Stefan Teghini Pittwater RSL 

2007 Simon Teofilo Beacon Hill FC 

2008 R Woods Manly Vale FC 

 F Gigliotti Brookvale FC 

2009 Luke Ryan Manly Allambie 

2010 Mitchell Lensink Pittwater RSL 

2011 Stefan Teghini Pittwater RSL 

2012 Stefan Teghini Pittwater RSL 

2013 Adam Bosward Pittwater RSL 

2014 Jakub Sklenar Narrabeen FC 

2015 Tyson Masters Manly Vale FC 

2016 Matthew Cooper Dee Why FC 

 Tyson Masters Manly Vale FC 

2017 Matthew Cooper Dee Why FC 

2018 Sipan Berti Narrabeen FC 

2019 Justin Hayward Brookvale FC 
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AMATEUR LEAGUE DIVISION 1 INDIVIDUAL AWARDS HISTORY 
AL1 Awards initiated in 2016 

 
 

PLAYER OF THE YEAR 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
GOALKEEPER OF THE YEAR 

 

2016 Timmo Mayer Pittwater RSL FC 

2017 Ashley Hadcroft Mosman FC 

2018 Bryan Howell Manly Allambie FC 

2018 Robert Fleming Belrose-Terrey Hills 

2018 Timothy Noldus Avalon FC 

2019 Jack Worland Harbord Seasiders FC 

 
 

COACH OF THE YEAR 
 

2016 Paul Mulligan Harbord Seasiders FC 

2017 Ratko Lovric Belrose-Terrey Hills 

2018 Paul Mulligan Harbord Seasiders FC 

2019 Paul Mulligan Harbord Seasiders FC 

 
 

GOLDEN BOOT OF THE YEAR 
 

2016 Luke Crunow CC Strikers FC 

2017 Tyson Masters Curl Curl FC 

2018 Tyson Masters Curl Curl FC 

2019 George Harle Belrose-Terrey HIlls 

2019 Benjamin White Harbord Seasiders FC 

2019 Simon Dolling Mosman FC 

 
 
 
 

  

2016 John Stambolieff Curl Curl FC 

2017 Daniel Rodgers Manly Allambie FC 

2018 Ben Sheppard Harbord Seasiders FC 

2019 Jack Brown Belrose-Terrey Hills 

 Bruno Mendes Mosman FC 
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WOMENS PREMIER LEAGUE INDIVIDUAL AWARDS HISTORY 
Note: From 2002-2006 there was no WPL. 

 
PLAYER OF THE YEAR 

 
2000 Laura Roemer Seasiders 

2001 Jenny Carter Pittwater RSL 

2007 Melissa Lawther Wakehurst FC 

2008 No awards  

2009 Amanda Young Forest Killarney 

2009 Di Murace Brookvale FC 

2010 Jess Wootton Beacon Hill 

2010 Tess Adema Avalon FC 

2011 Alice Kirby Avalon FC 

2011 Julia Murphy HSU 

2012 Anna Granberg Manly Vale 

2013 Renae Jolly Pittwater RSL 

2014 Michelle Piggott Manly Vale 

2014 Gabrielle Miles Wakehurst FC 

2015 Alice Kirby Avalon FC 

2016 Jess Wootton Beacon Hill FC 

2017 Anna Nakao Wakehurst FC 

2017 Sarah Moyer Beacon Hill FC 

2018 Lauren Scaramuzza Manly Vale FC 

2019 Jess Wotton Beacon Hill FC 

2019 Bethany Sweeny Beacon Hill FC 

 

ROOKIE OF THE YEAR 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GOALKEEPER OF THE YEAR 

 

 
  

2007 Kate McPhee Avalon FC 

2008 No awards  

2009 Kara Eggleston Manly Vale 

2010 Chelsea Meatchem Avalon FC 

2011 Ellie Van Yzendoon Beacon Hill 

2012 Skye Ludlow CC Strikers 

2013 Marli Jones Wakehurst 

2014 Jessie Williams Seaforth 

2015 Tomika Hillebrand-Shaw Manly Vale 

2016 Nina Hall Beacon Hill 

2016 Gemma Walmsley Manly Vale 

2017 Lucie Crisp Brookvale 

2018 Hannah Keeler Beacon Hill 

2019 Mia Waddington  Manly Vale 

2012 K Eggleston Manly Vale 

2013 Melinda White Pittwater 

2014 Melinda White Wakehurst 

2015 Tara Bradshaw Mosman FC 

2016 Shannon Heath Wakehurst FC 

2017 Amy Scott Beacon Hill FC 

2017 Nicole Rickard HSU 

2018 Lauren Scaramuzza Manly Vale FC 

2019 Lauren Scaramuzza Manly Vale FC 
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COACH OF THE YEAR 

 

2014 Tony Bruzzano Manly Vale 

2015 Donna Stuart Wakehurst FC 

2016 Vince Vescio Beacon Hill 

2017 Tony Bruzzano & Roland Winter Manly Vale FC 

2018 Colin Euers Brookvale FC 

2019 Tony Bruzzano & Roland Winter Manly Vale FC 

 

 

GOLDEN BOOT OF THE YEAR 

 

2007 Hayley Weston Brookvale FC 

2008 No awards  

2009 Briony Mattocks Brookvale FC 

2010 Jemma Euers Brookvale FC 

2011 Eliza Ashcroft Manly Vale FC 

2012 Eliza Ashcroft Manly Vale FC 

 Anna Granberg Manly Vale FC 

2013 Jess Wootton Beacon Hill FC 

 Anna Jamison Manly Vale FC 

2014 Jemma Euers Brookvale FC 

2015 Jemma Euers Brookvale FC 

2016 Jemma Euers Brookvale FC 

2017 Ayse Adalis Beacon Hill FC 

2018 Jess Wootton Beacon Hill FC 

2018 Ayse Adalis Beacon Hill FC 

2019 Naomi Peterson Beacon Hill FC 
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WOMENS AMATEUR LEAGUE DIVISION 1 INDIVIDUAL 
AWARDS HISTORY 

W-AL1 Awards initiated in 2016 

 

PLAYER OF THE YEAR 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GOALKEEPER OF THE YEAR 

 

2016 Alissa Lukomskyj Seaforth FC 

2017 Tayla Carlson Forest Killarney FC 

2018 Kelly Spoerk Mosman FC 

2019 Bree Bowden Seaforth FC 

2019 Monique Frack Brookvale FC 

2019 Lucy Eagleton Beacon Hill FC 

 

COACH OF THE YEAR 

 

2016 David Pugh Pittwater RSL 

2017 Ian Bentham Mosman FC 

2018 Stephen Neilan and Roderick 
MacLean 

Mosman FC 

2019 David Pugh Pittwater RSL 

 

 

GOLDEN BOOT OF THE YEAR 

 

2016 Madeleine Duncan Mosman FC 

2017 Alexandra Valentine Beacon Hill FC 

2018 Madeline Wilson Mosman FC 

2019 Alysha Rowe Pittwater RSL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

2016 Rachael Lewis HSU 

2017 Madeline Cameron Manly Vale FC 

2018 Ayla Blakeman Beacon Hill FC 

2018 Hannah Grimble Mosman FCA 

2019 Amee Dawson Pittwater RSL 
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COMPETITION TROPHY WINNERS 2019 
WOMEN 

 

AG/Div Champions Runners Up KO Winners 

W12/1A Pittwater RSL CC Strikers Pittwater RSL     

W12/1B Beacon Hill FC Wakehurst FC Brookvale FC 

W12/2 Manly Vale FC Forest Manly Vale FC 

W12/3 Seaforth FC Narrabeen FC Manly Vale FC 

W13/1 Dee Why Manly Vale Dee Why 

W13/2 BTH Raiders     Seaforth BTH Raiders     

W13/3 Curl Curl Narrabeen Narrabeen FC 

W14/1 Avalon Pittwater Pittwater RSL     

W14/2 Wakehurst A Manly Vale B Manly Vale A 

W15/1 BTH Raiders     Curl Curl BTH Raiders     

W15/2 Forest Narrabeen Mosman B 

W15/3 CC Strikers Curl Curl Curl Curl FC 

W16/1 Wakehust A Pittwater Pittwater RSL     

W16/2 Avalon B Avalon A Wakehurst     

W18/1 Avalon A Wakehurst Avalon A 

W18/2 BTH Raiders     Pittwater Pittwater RSL     

W30/A Pittwater Forest Pittwater RSL     

W40/A Manly Vale A Curl Curl A Manly Vale     A 

W40/B Brookvale Forest Brookvale     

WAL/1A Pittwater Avalon  Pittwater RSL     

WAL/1B HSU Curl Curl Wakehurst FC 

WAL2A Manly Vale Mosman Mosman A 

WAL3A Manly Vale  Beacon Hill Narrabeen FC 

WAL4A Seaforth A  BTH Raiders     Seaforth FC 

WAL5A Wakehurst A Wakehurst B Wakehurst     A 

WPL Manly Vale Wakehurst Manly Allambie FC 

 



 

P a g e  33 | 100 

 

 
GRAND FINAL WOMENS RESULTS for 2019 

 

AG/Div Home Team Pen Score Score Pen Away Team 

W12/1A Pittwater RSL     
  4 1   

CC Strikers 

W12/1B Beacon Hill     
0 1 1 2 

Brookvale     

W12/2 Manly Vale     
2 1 1 1 

Brookvale     

W12/3 Seaforth     
  0 1   

Manly Vale     

W13/1 Dee Why     
4 1 1 3 

Manly Vale     

W13/2 BTH Raiders     
  3 1   

Curl Curl 

W13/3 Curl Curl 
0 1 1 2 

Narrabeen     

W14/1 Avalon     
4 0 0 5 

Pittwater RSL     

W14/2 Wakehurst A 
  0 2   

Manly Vale  A 

W15/1 Curl Curl Youth   
  0 1   

BTH Raiders     

W15/2 Forest Killarney FC 
0 1 1 2 

Mosman     B 

W15/3 CC Strikers 
  0 3   

Curl Curl  

W16/1 Seaforth     
4 0 0 5 

Pittwater RSL     

W16/2 Wakehurst     
  2 0   

Avalon     A 

W18/1 Avalon     A 
  9 0   

Narrabeen     

W18/2 BTH Raiders     
  0 2   

Pittwater RSL     

W30/A Pittwater RSL     
  2 1   

Mosman     A 

W40/A Manly Vale     A 
  2 1   

Curl Curl  A 

W40/B Brookvale     
  2 1   

Seaforth     

WAL/1A Pittwater RSL     
  2 1   

Beacon Hill     

WAL/1B HSU 
  0 3   

Wakehurst     

WAL2A Manly Vale     
  1 4   

Mosman     A 

WAL3A Narrabeen     
  4 1   

Manly Vale     

WAL4A BTH Raiders     
  3 4   

Seaforth     A 

WAL5A Wakehurst     A 
  1 0   

Avalon     B 

WPL Beacon Hill     
  0 1   

Manly Allambie  
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COMPETITION TROPHY WINNERS 2019 

 
JUNIORS 

 

Age Champions Runner-up KO Winners 

U12/1A Dee Why Curl Curl Curl Curl 

U12/1B Wakehurst BTH Raiders BTH Raiders 

U12/2A St Augustines Manly Allambie Seaforth A 

U12/2B Pittwater Curl Curl CC Strikers 

U12/3A Beacon Hill Forest Killarney Beacon Hill 

U12/3B Avalon Pittwater Avalon 

U12/4A Wakehurst HSU Wakehurst 

U12/4B Avalon A Manly Vale Manly Vale 

U12/5 Manly Allambie HSU BTH Raiders  

U13/1 Forest Killarney Curl Curl Curl Curl 

U13/2 Pittwater Brookvale Brookvale 

U13/3A Wakehurst CC Strikers A CC Strikers A 

U13/3B Manly Allambie Narrabeen Pittwater 

U13/4A Curl Curl BTH Raiders Curl Curl 

U13/4B Manly Vale A St Augustines Avalon B 

U14/1 Forest Killarney Narrabeen Forest Killarney 

U14/2 Forest Killarney Wakehurst Wakehurst 

U14/3A Seaforth CC Strikers St Augustines 

U14/3B Dee Why HSU Brookvale 

U14/4 Pittwater BTH Raiders BTH Raiders 

U15/1 CC Strikers Wakehurst Forest Killarney 

U15/2 Wakehurst A St Augustines Wakehurst A 

U15/3A Manly Vale Forest Killarney Forest Killarney 

U15/3B St Augustines A CC Strikers Avalon 

U16/1 Forest Killarney A Narrabeen Forest Killarney A 

U16/2 Avalon CC Strikers Avalon 

U16/3 Wakehurst Forest Killarney B St Augustines B 

U18/1A Curl Curl A Wakehurst Curl Curl A 

U18/1B Brookvale Seaforth Seaforth 

U18/2 Wakehurst BTH Raiders BTH Raiders 

U18/3 Dee Why Narrabeen Wakehurst 

U18/4 Pittwater A CC Strikers St Augustines B 
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MWFA GRAND FINAL RESULTS for 2019 
 

Age Home Team         Away Team 

U12/1A Beacon Hill 0 (4) v 0 (5) P Curl Curl 

U12/1B Wakehurst 0 v 1   BTH Raiders 

U12/2A Seaforth A 2 v 1   Manly Allambie 

U12/2B CC Strikers 1 (4) v 1 (3) P Curl Curl 

U12/3A Beacon Hill 3 v 0   St Augustines 

U12/3B Avalon 4 v 0   CC Strikers 

U12/4A Wakehurst 2 v 1   Dee Why 

U12/4B Avalon B 0 v 3   Manly Vale 

U12/5 BTH Raiders 1 (4) v 1 (3) P  Beacon Hill 

U13/1 Forest Killarney 0 (3) v 0 (4) P Curl Curl 

U13/2 Pittwater 1 v 4   Brookvale 

U13/3A Wakehurst 0 v 2   CC Strikers A 

U13/3B Manly Allambie 2 (4) v 2 (5) P Pittwater 

U13/4A Curl Curl 3 v 2   BTH Raiders 

U13/4B Avalon B 6 v 0   Seaforth 

U14/1 Forest Killarney 1 v 0   Mosman 

U14/2 Forest Killarney 0 v 2   Wakehurst 

U14/3A Seaforth 2 (5) v 2 (6) P St Augustines 

U14/3B Dee Why 1 v 3   Brookvale 

U14/4 Pittwater 1 (2) v 1 (4) P BTH Raiders 

U15/1 Wakehurst 1 v 2   Forest Killarney 

U15/2 Wakehurst A 1 (4) v 1 (3) P Forest Killarney 

U15/3A Seaforth 1 v 2   Forest Killarney 

U15/3B Avalon 4 v 1   Narrabeen 

U16/1 Forest Killarney A 2 (6) v 2 (5) P Narrabeen 

U16/2 Avalon 3 v 0   CC Strikers 

U16/3 St Augustines B 4 v 3   Brookvale 

U18/1A Curl Curl A 2 (6) v 2 (4) P Forest Killarney 

U18/1B Brookvale 0 v 1   Seaforth 

U18/2 Seaforth 0 (4) v 0 (5) P BTH Raiders 

U18/3 Wakehurst 0 (4) v 0 (3) P St Augustines 

U18/4 St Augustines B 2 v 0   CC Strikers 
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COMPETITION TROPHY WINNERS 2019 
SENIORS 

 

AG/Div Champions Runners Up KO Winners 

M-PL Brookvale Seaforth FC Curl Curl FC 

M-PLR Brookvale Pittwater RSL Pittwater RSL 

AL1 BTH Raiders HSU BTH Raiders  

AL1R BTH Raiders HSU BTH Raiders  

AL2 BTH Raiders St Augustines BTH Raiders  

AL3A Dee Why Manly Vale FC Manly Vale FC 

AL3B Brookvale CC Strikers A Brookvale FC 

AL4 BTH Raiders B Beacon Hill  B Beacon Hill B 

AL5 Pittwater RSL Wakehurst B Pittwater RSL  

AL6 Narrabeen Curl Curl FC Curl Curl FC 

AL7 HSU A Dee Why FC HSU A 

AL8 Dee Why Curl Curl A Dee Why FC 

AL9 Manly Vale Beacon Hill B Seaforth FC 

O35/1 Wakehurst Narrabeen FC Mosman FC 

O35/2 Dee Why Seaforth FC Dee Why FC 

O35/3 Dee Why Brookvale FC Dee Why FC 

O35/4A Pittwater  Wakehurst FC Curl Curl FC A 

O35/4B HSU A Manly Allambie Manly Allambie FC 

O35/5 Curl Curl A Curl Curl B Curl Curl FC B 

O35/6 Forest A Mosman FC Forest Killarney A 

O45/1 Brookvale Mosman FC Brookvale FC 

O45/2 Beacon Hill Manly Allambie Beacon Hill FC 

O45/3 Beacon Hill B Mosman FC Beacon Hill B 
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GRAND FINAL RESULTS SENIORS for 2019 
 

AG/Div Home Team Pen Score Score Pen Away Team  

M-PL Curl Curl    6 0   Seaforth  

M-PLR St Augustines    2 5   Pittwater RSL  

AL1 BTH Raiders    2 1   HSU 

AL1R BTH Raiders    3 1   Avalon  

AL2 BTH Raiders    6 2   Seaforth  

AL3A Dee Why    1 2   Manly Vale  

AL3B Brookvale    4 0   St Augustines  A 

AL4 BTH Raiders B 5 2 2 6 Beacon Hill  B 

AL5 Pittwater RSL    4 0   Brookvale  

AL6 Narrabeen  4 1 1 5 Curl Curl 

AL7 HSU A   6 0   Dee Why 

AL8 Dee Why   3 1   Manly Allambie 

AL9 Manly Vale    0 2   Seaforth B 

O35/1 Wakehurst    1 3   Mosman  

O35/2 Wakehurst  4 1 1 5 Dee Why  

O35/3 Dee Why  3 0 0 2 BTH Raiders  

O35/4A Pittwater RSL   0 1   Curl Curl  A 

O35/4B Manly Vale  A   0 1   Manly Allambie 

O35/5 Curl Curl  A   0 4   Curl Curl B 

O35/6 Forest Killarney A   2 0   Mosman  

O45/1 Mosman    0 1   Brookvale  

O45/2 Pittwater RSL    0 1   Beacon Hill  

O45/3 Beacon Hill B   4 3   Mosman  
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MWFA CHALLENGE CUP 2019 
 

Men 
 

  Home Team       Away Team 

Play-Off Seaforth Football Club 9 v 2 Harbord Seasiders United Football Club 

Round 1 

Dee Why Football Club 4 v 2 Manly Vale Football Club 

BTH Raiders Soccer Club 5 v 0 Manly Allambie United FC 

Brookvale Football Club 0 v 1 Collaroy Cromer Strikers FC 

Seaforth Football Club 3 v 1 Wakehurst Football Club 

Mosman Football Club 1 v 0 St Augustines Football Club 

Pittwater RSL Football Club 5 v 1 Beacon Hill Football Club 

Avalon Soccer Club 1 v 7 Narrabeen Football Club 

Forest Killarney FC 3 v 5 Curl Curl Youth Club 

Round 2 

Dee Why Football Club 1 v 2 BTH Raiders Soccer Club 

Mosman Football Club 2 v 3 Pittwater RSL Football Club 

Narrabeen Football Club 1 v 3 Curl Curl Youth Club 

Collaroy Cromer Strikers FC 1 v 3 Seaforth Football Club 

Semi Final 
BTH Raiders Soccer Club 1 v 2 Seaforth Football Club 

Pittwater RSL Football Club 2 v 6 Curl Curl Youth Club 

FINAL Seaforth Football Club 4 v 0 Curl Curl Youth Club 

 

 
 

Women 
 

  Home Team H   A Away Team 

Round 1 

Pittwater RSL Football Club 1 v 3 Forest Killarney FC 

Manly Allambie United FC 2 v 5 Manly Vale Football Club 

Curl Curl Youth Club 0 v 6 Wakehurst Football Club 

Seaforth Football Club 3 v 1 Brookvale Football Club 

Semi Final 
Forest Killarney FC 1 v 0 Wakehurst Football Club 

Manly Vale Football Club 3 v 1 Seaforth Football Club 

FINAL Forest Killarney FC 0 v 1 Manly Vale Football Club 
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FNSW STATE, ROBERTSON AND CULLINAN CUPS  

MWFA Winners 
 

The State, Robertson (U21) and Bill Cullinan (All Age Men) Cup Knockout Tournaments are 
conducted by Football NSW Community Football for Association based Men’s and Women’s 
Teams and Country Association representative or Club teams. This tournament attracts 
over 700 entries each season and is an opportunity for teams from all areas of Football 
NSW to compete against teams from outside their own Association. The table below shows 
MWFA winners. 

 
Year C

l
u
b 

Division 
1977 Seaforth YC U21 
1991 Wakehurst U16 
1997 Wakehurst U18 
1998 St Augustine U21 
2001 Seasiders AAW 
2002 Pittwater RSLSC U21 
2002 Seasiders SC AAW 
2003 Seasiders SC AAW 
2006 Beacon Hill FC WU14 
2007 Wakehurst WU12 
2008 Brookvale AAW 
2009 Wakehurst U14 
2010 Brookvale U16 
2011 Brookvale AAM 
2012 Seaforth WU18 
2012 Beacon Hill AAW 
2013 Seaforth WU18

88 2013 Wakehurst U18 

2016 Wakehurst U18 

2017 Narrabeen AAM 

2018 CC Strikers U16 

2019 Pittwater RSL W12 

2019 Pittwater RSL W16 

2019 Forest Killarney FC U18 

2019 Avalon FC W18 

 

In 2019 knockout tournaments were held in the following age groups: 

 
Frank Broughton Cup for U12 Boys  
U13, U14, U15, U16, U17 Boys 
U18 Men 
Robertson Cup for U21 Men 
Bill Cullinan Cup for AA Men 
O35 Men 
Cheryl Salisbury Cup for WU12 
U14, U16 Girls 
U18, AA Women  
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FNSW STATE, BROUGHTON AND SALISBURY CUPS for 2019 
 

 
  

Competition Name DATE Home Team Score Away Team 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   28/04/2019 St Ives - Northern Suburbs Assoc 0-1 Curl Curl Youth Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   28/04/2019 Uni of Wollongong FC Jnr - Football South Coast 8-0 Manly Vale FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   5/05/2019 Curl Curl Youth Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 6-0 Prospect United FC - Blacktown Association 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   5/05/2019 Mosman Football Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 0-0 Banksia Tigers - St George 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   5/05/2019 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 1-0 Quakers Hill Tigers - Blacktown Association 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   5/05/2019 Dee Why FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 8-0 Lake Heights JFC - Football South Coast 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   5/05/2019 Glenmore Park FC - Nepean Association 1-4 Wakehurst FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   5/05/2019 Oatley FC - St George 0-4 Beacon Hill - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   19/05/2019 Wakehurst FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 4-1 Earlwood Wanderers FC - Canterbury  

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   19/05/2019 Mosman Football Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 7-1 Strathfield FC - Canterbury Association 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   19/05/2019 Beacon Hill - Manly-Warringah Assoc 0-1 Pagewood Botany FC - Eastern Suburbs 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   19/05/2019 West Pennant Hills Cherrybrook Gladesville Hornsby 2-0 Curl Curl Youth Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   19/05/2019 Auburn District - Granville Association 0-5 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   19/05/2019 Easts FC - Eastern Suburbs 1-2 Dee Why FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   2/06/2019 Dee Why FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 3-0 Parklea SFC - Blacktown Association 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   2/06/2019 Baulkham Hills - Hills Football 2-1 Wakehurst FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   2/06/2019 Mt Pritchard Juniors - Southern Districts Assoc 0-4 Mosman Football Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   2/06/2019 Lilli Pilli - Sutherland Association 7-0 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   23/06/2019 Mosman Football Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 1-2 Lilli Pilli - Sutherland Association 

12 Boys Frank Broughton Cup   23/06/2019 Tahmoor SC - Macarthur Association 3-2 Dee Why FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

12 Girls Cheryl Salisbury Cup   19/05/2019 Minchinbury Jets SC - Blacktown 0-3 Avalon SC - Manly Warringah 

12 Girls Cheryl Salisbury Cup   2/06/2019 Avalon SC - Manly Warringah 0-1 Lilli Pilli - Sutherland 

12 Girls Cheryl Salisbury Cup   2/06/2019 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly Warringah 5-1 Hornsby Heights - Northern Suburbs Assoc 

12 Girls Cheryl Salisbury Cup   2/06/2019 Parklea SFC - Blacktown 2-1 Curl Curl Youth Club - Manly Warringah 

12 Girls Cheryl Salisbury Cup   16/06/2019 Lilli Pilli - Sutherland 1-2 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly Warringah 

12 Girls Cheryl Salisbury Cup   30/06/2019 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly Warringah 2-0 AC United FC - Southern Districts 

12 Girls Cheryl Salisbury Cup   21/07/2019 Parklea SFC - Blacktown 0-4 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly Warringah 

13 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 CC Strikers - Manly-Warringah Assoc 1-2 North Sydney United 1 - Northern Suburbs Assoc 

13 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Mosman Football Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 3-0 West Ryde Rovers - Gladesville Hornsby 

13 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Avalon SC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 4-2 Thirroul JFC - Football South Coast 

13 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Curl Curl Youth Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 0-0 Bligh Park FC - Nepean Association 

13 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Glenmore Park FC - Nepean Association 1-2 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

13 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Epping FC - Gladesville Hornsby 3-0 Seaforth FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

13 Boys State Cup   19/05/2019 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 4-1 Figtree Football Club - Football South Coast 

13 Boys State Cup   19/05/2019 Mosman Football Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 1-4 Balmain & District FC - Canterbury Association 

13 Boys State Cup   19/05/2019 Avalon SC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 3-4 Hornsby Heights - Northern Suburbs Assoc 

13 Boys State Cup   19/05/2019 Glenwood Redbacks - Blacktown Association 1-4 Curl Curl Youth Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

13 Boys State Cup   2/06/2019 Castle Hill United - Hills Football 0-1 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

13 Boys State Cup   9/06/2019 Marrickville FC - Canterbury Association 0-4 Curl Curl Youth Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

13 Boys State Cup   16/06/2019 Mt Pritchard Juniors - Southern Districts Assoc 2-1 Curl Curl Youth Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

13 Boys State Cup   23/06/2019 Enfield Rovers SC - Canterbury Association 0-1 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

13 Boys State Cup   30/06/2019 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 0-2 Balmain & District FC - Canterbury Association 

14 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 5-1 Camden Tigers FC 2 - Macarthur Association 

14 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Narrabeen Football Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 1-2 Cronulla Seagulls - Sutherland Association 

14 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Wakehurst FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 2-3 Dunbar Rovers FC - Eastern Suburbs 

14 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Abbotsford Junior FC - Canterbury Association 2-1 Mosman Football Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

14 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 North Sydney United 3 - Northern Suburbs Assoc 0-3 FF Curl Curl Youth Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

14 Boys State Cup   19/05/2019 Curl Curl Youth Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 0-3 Mt Pritchard Juniors - Southern Districts Assoc 

14 Boys State Cup   19/05/2019 South Coast United FC - Football South Coast 3-2 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

14 Girls State Cup -   5/05/2019 Emu Plains FC - Nepean Association 2-6 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

14 Girls State Cup -   19/05/2019 Kemps Creek United - Southern Districts Assoc 1-7 Avalon SC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

14 Girls State Cup -   19/05/2019 Concord Junior SC - Canterbury Association 1-0 Manly Vale FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

14 Girls State Cup -   19/05/2019 Roselands FC - Canterbury Association 0-6 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

14 Girls State Cup -   19/05/2019 Rouse Hill Rams - Hills Football 2-1 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

14 Girls State Cup -   2/06/2019 Balmain & District FC - Canterbury Association 1-4 Avalon SC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

14 Girls State Cup -   2/06/2019 Northbridge - Northern Suburbs Assoc 0-3 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

14 Girls State Cup -   16/06/2019 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 3-0 Harrington United - Macarthur Association 

14 Girls State Cup -   23/06/2019 Avalon SC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 1-2 Sylvania Heights - Sutherland Association 

14 Girls State Cup -   30/06/2019 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 7-6 Russell Vale Junior FC - Football South Coast 

14 Girls State Cup -   21/07/2019 Sylvania Heights - Sutherland Association 1-0 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 
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Competition Name DATE Home Team Score Away Team 

15 Boys State Cup   28/04/2019 Shellharbour JFC 1 - Football South Coast 3-1 Seaforth FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

15 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 4-3 West Ryde Rovers - Gladesville Hornsby 

15 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Wakehurst FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 0-1 Mt Annan Mustangs 2 - Macarthur Association 

15 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 AC United FC - Southern Districts Assoc 3-2 CC Strikers - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

15 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Balmain & District FC 2 - Canterbury Association 2-1 St Augustines Football Club -Manly-Warringah  

15 Boys State Cup   19/05/2019 Balmain & District FC 1 - Canterbury Association 1-0 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

16 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 6-0 Gymea United - Sutherland Association 

16 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Narrabeen Football Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 2-1 Heffron Hawks FC - Eastern Suburbs 

16 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Wakehurst FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 1-0 Gunners SC - Macarthur Association 

16 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Dolls Point FC - St George 2-0 CC Strikers - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

16 Boys State Cup   5/05/2019 Menai Hawks - Sutherland Association 3-1 St Augustines Football Club -Manly-Warringah  

16 Boys State Cup   19/05/2019 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 2-0 St Mary's Eagle Vale SC - Macarthur Association 

16 Boys State Cup   19/05/2019 Wakehurst FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 4-5 St Patricks - Sutherland Association 

16 Boys State Cup   19/05/2019 Penrith Rovers FC - Nepean Association 3-1 Narrabeen Football Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

16 Boys State Cup   2/06/2019 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 1-0 Ryde Saints Utd - Gladesville Hornsby 

16 Boys State Cup   16/06/2019 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 1-0 Camden Tigers FC - Macarthur Association 

16 Boys State Cup   30/06/2019 Hornsby Heights - Northern Suburbs Assoc 3-0 FF Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

16 Girls State Cup   5/05/2019 Narrabeen Football Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 5-0 Chatswood Rangers - Northern Suburbs Assoc 

16 Girls State Cup   5/05/2019 Seaforth FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 5-0 Northbridge 2 - Northern Suburbs Assoc 

16 Girls State Cup   5/05/2019 Harrington United - Macarthur Association 0-6 CC Strikers - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

16 Girls State Cup   19/05/2019 Narrabeen Football Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 0-2 Engadine Crusaders - Sutherland Association 

16 Girls State Cup   19/05/2019 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 2-1 Maroubra United FC - Eastern Suburbs 

16 Girls State Cup   19/05/2019 Manly Vale FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 2-1 Epping FC - North West Sydney Womens 

16 Girls State Cup   19/05/2019 CC Strikers - Manly-Warringah Assoc 2-1 Engadine Eagles 2 - Sutherland Association 

16 Girls State Cup   19/05/2019 Seaforth FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 3-0 Bossley Sports Club - Southern Districts Assoc 

16 Girls State Cup   19/05/2019 Greystanes FC 2 - Granville Association 3-0 FF Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

16 Girls State Cup   2/06/2019 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 2-1 Manly Vale FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

16 Girls State Cup   2/06/2019 CC Strikers - Manly-Warringah Assoc 2-1 Greystanes FC 2 - Granville Association 

16 Girls State Cup   2/06/2019 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 2-1 Manly Vale FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

16 Girls State Cup   2/06/2019 West Pymble - Northern Suburbs Assoc 1-0 Seaforth FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

16 Girls State Cup   16/06/2019 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 2-0 Lindfield - Northern Suburbs Assoc 

16 Girls State Cup   23/06/2019 CC Strikers - Manly-Warringah Assoc 0-3 West Pymble - Northern Suburbs Assoc 

16 Girls State Cup   30/06/2019 Glenwood Redbacks - Blacktown Association 0-3 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

16 Girls State Cup   21/07/2019 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 5-0 West Pymble - Northern Suburbs Assoc 

17 Boys State Cup   19/05/2019 Harbord Seasiders United FC - Manly Warringah 0-2 Earlwood Wanderers FC - Canterbury Association 

18 Men State Cup   5/05/2019 Pennant Hills 1 - Gladesville-Hornsby 1-3 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

18 Men State Cup   19/05/2019 CC Strikers - Manly-Warringah Assoc 4-2 Strathfield FC 1 - Canterbury Association 

18 Men State Cup   19/05/2019 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 3-2 North Sydney United 1 - Northern Suburbs Assoc 

18 Men State Cup   19/05/2019 Curl Curl Youth Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 1-3 Sans Souci FC - St George 

18 Men State Cup   19/05/2019 Connells Point Rovers FC - St George 3-0 Manly Vale FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

18 Men State Cup   19/05/2019 West Pymble - Northern Suburbs Assoc 3-1 Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

18 Men State Cup   19/05/2019 Merrylands SFC - Granville Association 1-12 Wakehurst FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

18 Men State Cup   2/06/2019 CC Strikers - Manly-Warringah Assoc 1-3 Mt Annan Mustangs 2 - Macarthur Association 

18 Men State Cup   2/06/2019 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 2-1 Pennant Hills 2 - Gladesville-Hornsby 

18 Men State Cup   2/06/2019 Berowra FC - Northern Suburbs Assoc 0-3 Wakehurst FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

18 Men State Cup   16/06/2019 Wakehurst FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 1-0 Glenmore Park FC - Nepean 

18 Men State Cup   23/06/2019 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 2-0 Sans Souci FC - St George 

18 Men State Cup   30/06/2019 Wakehurst FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 0-5 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

18 Men State Cup   30/06/2019 Wakehurst FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 0-5 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

18 Men State Cup   21/07/2019 Lilli Pilli - Sutherland Association 2-3 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

18 Women State Cup   2/06/2019 Manly Vale FC - Manly Warringah 1-6 Gymea United 1 - Sutherland Association 

18 Women State Cup   2/06/2019 Gymea United 2 - Sutherland Association 1-3 Avalon SC - Manly Warringah 

18 Women State Cup   23/06/2019 Lindfield - Northern Suburbs Assoc 0-4 Avalon SC - Manly Warringah 

18 Women State Cup   30/06/2019 Avalon SC - Manly Warringah 2-0 AC United FC - Southern Districts Assoc 

18 Women State Cup   21/07/2019 Avalon SC - Manly Warringah 1-0 Shellharbour JFC - Football South Coast 

All Age Women State Cup   5/05/2019 Beacon Hill - Manly-Warringah Assoc 4-0 Maroubra United FC - Eastern Suburbs 

All Age Women State Cup   5/05/2019 Wakehurst FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 7-0 The Flying Bats FC - North West Sydney Womens 

All Age Women State Cup   19/05/2019 Beacon Hill - Manly-Warringah Assoc 1-2 Northbridge 1 - Northern Suburbs Assoc 

All Age Women State Cup   19/05/2019 Seaforth FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 0-3 Epping FC - North West Sydney Womens 

All Age Women State Cup   19/05/2019 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 1-0 Randwick City FC 1 - Eastern Suburbs 

All Age Women State Cup   19/05/2019 Wakehurst FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 0-2 Manly Vale FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

All Age Women State Cup   19/05/2019 Waverley Old Boys FC - Eastern Suburbs 3-2 Brookvale FC 1 - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

All Age Women State Cup   19/05/2019 Hurlstone Park Wanderers FC Canterbury  4-2 Brookvale FC 2 - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

All Age Women State Cup   19/05/2019 Wakehurst FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 0-2 Manly Vale FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

All Age Women State Cup   2/06/2019 Manly Vale FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 1-0 Narellan Rangers - Macarthur Association 

All Age Women State Cup   2/06/2019 Epping FC - North West Sydney Womens 2-0 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

All Age Women State Cup   16/06/2019 Manly Vale FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 2-3 Albion Park Soccer Club - Football South Coast 

Bill Cullinan Cup - AAM   28/04/2019 Oran Park Rovers - Macarthur Association 0-11 Mosman Football Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

Bill Cullinan Cup - AAM   5/05/2019 Mosman Football Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 2-1 Ponds FC - Blacktown Association 

Bill Cullinan Cup - AAM   5/05/2019 Lithgow Workmens - Bathurst Football Association 2-0 Forest Killarney FC - Manly-Warringah Assoc 

Bill Cullinan Cup - AAM   19/05/2019 Mosman Football Club - Manly-Warringah Assoc 0-3 Menai Hawks - Sutherland Association 

O35 Men State Cup   2/06/2019 Mosman Football Club - Manly Warringah 0-1 Lilli Pilli - Sutherland Association 
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FNSW CHAMPION OF CHAMPIONS 
MWFA Participants for 2019 

 

Since 1971 the Champion of Champions tournament has been conducted by Football NSW Community 
Football and is the pinnacle of Association based competition from all over the State. 
 
Champion teams from every FNSW Association (Metropolitan & Country) play against each other in a 
knockout competition to decide the ultimate Champion in each age group.  
 
Competing MWFA teams in 2019 were: 
 

Age Group Club 

Under 12 Dee Why FC 

Womens Under 12 Pittwater RSL FC 

Under 13 Forest Killarney FC 

Under 14 Forest Killarney FC 

Womens Under 14 Avalon FC 

Under 15 CC Strikers FC 

Womens Under 15 Belrose – Terrey Hills 

Under 16 Forest Killarney FC 

Womens Under 16 Wakehurst FC 

Under 18s Curl Curl FC 

Womens Under 18 Avalon FC 

All Age Men Brookvale FC 

Over 35 Men Wakehurst FC 

Over 45 Men Brookvale FC 

All Age Women Manly Vale FC 

Over 30 Women Pittwater RSL FC 

 
MWFA did not enter teams in U17, U21 or W-U21 
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FNSW CHAMPION OF CHAMPIONS 
 

Year Club Division 

1971 Seaforth YC U21 

1975 Wakehurst U8 

1976 Seaforth YC U21 

1977 Seaforth YC U18 

1979 Narrabeen U18 

1980 Terrey Hills U21 

1980 Avalon Utd All Age Men 

1981 Curl Curl U18 

1983 Killarney SC U21 

1985 Seaforth YC All Age Men 

1989 Brookvale All Age Men 

1990 Wakehurst U15 

1990 Brookvale All Age Men 

1992 Seasiders All Age Men 

1994 Seasiders All Age Women 

1995 CC Strikers U12 

1995 Brookvale All Age Men 

1997 Pittwater RSL U14 

1997 Seasiders All Age Women 

1997 Wakehurst All Age Men 

1998 Brookvale All Age Men 

1998 Seasiders All Age Women 

2000 Seasiders All Age Women 

2001 Seasiders All Age Women 

2001 Pittwater RSL All Age Men 

2002 Seasiders All Age Women 

2002 Brookvale SC All Age Men 

2003 Brookvale SC All Age Men 

2004 Seaforth WU12 

2005 Wakehurst WU12 

2005 Beacon Hill WU14 

2006 Beacon Hill WU16 

2006 Brookvale All Age Women 

2007 Avalon WU18 

2007 Beacon Hill WU16 

2009 Wakehurst U14 

2010 Forest Killarney U11 

2010 Brookvale U16 

2010 Wakehurst WU16 

2010 Brookvale O35 Men 

2011 Pittwater All Age Men 

2011 Manly Vale All Age Women 
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 Club Division 

2011 Seaforth WU16 

2012 Manly Vale All Age Women 

2012 Pittwater All Age Men 

2013 Avalon WU16 

2013 Seaforth WU18 

2013 Wakehurst U18 

2014 Wakehurst  O35 Men 

2014 Brookvale WU14 

2014 Avalon WU16 

2014 Wakehurst WU18 

2015 Wakehurst U18 

2016 Forest Killarney U13 

2016 Wakehurst  U18 

2016 Narrabeen All Age Men 

2017 Forest Killarney U12 

2017 Forest Killarney U14 

2018 Avalon Football Club WU16 

2019 Dee Why FC Ù12 

2019 Belrose Terrey Hills WU15 

2019 Pittwater RSL FC W Over 30 

2019 Brookvale FC All Age Men 
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MWFA CHAMPION OF CHAMPIONS RESULTS 

Team Results 

 

  DATE Home Team Score Away Team Score 

12 Boys Champion 
of Champions 

2019 

15/09/2019 
Dee Why FC - Manly-
Warringah 

  Bye   

22/09/2019 
Hanwood Football Club - 
Griffith 

2 
Dee Why FC - Manly-
Warringah 

3 

29/09/2019 
Dee Why FC - Manly-
Warringah 

4 
Pagewood Botany FC - 
Eastern Suburbs 

2 

13/10/2019 Marton - Sutherland 2 
Dee Why FC - Manly-
Warringah 

3 

20/10/2019 
Dee Why FC - Manly-
Warringah 

4 
Kellyville Kolts SC - Hills 
Football 

0 

            

12 Girls Champion 
of Champions 

2019 

15/09/2019 
Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-
Warringah 

  Bye   

22/09/2019 Bexley North - St George 3 
Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-
Warringah 

1 

            

13 Boys Champion 
of Champions 

2019 

15/09/2019 
Forest Killarney FC - Manly-
Warringah 

  Bye   

22/09/2019 
Hanwood Football Club - 
Griffith 

0 
Forest Killarney FC - Manly-
Warringah 

2 

29/09/2019 
Forest Killarney FC - Manly-
Warringah 

3 
Dunbar Rovers - Eastern 
Suburbs 

1 

13/10/2019 Lindfield - Northern Suburbs 3 
Forest Killarney FC - Manly-
Warringah 

2 

            

14 Boys Champion 
of Champions 

2019 

15/09/2019 
Forest Killarney FC - Manly-
Warringah 

  Bye   

22/09/2019 Banksia Tigers - St George 5 
Forest Killarney FC - Manly-
Warringah 

0 

            

14 Girls Champion 
of Champions 

2019 

15/09/2019 Avalon SC - Manly-Warringah   Bye   

22/09/2019 Oatley FC - St George 1 Avalon SC - Manly-Warringah 2 

29/09/2019 Avalon SC - Manly-Warringah 5 
Springwood United FC - 
Nepean 

1 

13/10/2019 Lindfield - Northern Suburbs 1 Avalon SC - Manly-Warringah 2 

20/10/2019 Avalon SC - Manly-Warringah 0 Avoca FC - Central Coast 3 

            

15 Boys Champion 
of Champions 

2019 

15/09/2019 
CC Strikers FC - Manly-
Warringah 

  Bye   

22/09/2019 Arncliffe Aurora - St George 4 
CC Strikers FC - Manly-
Warringah 

2 
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15 Girls Champion 
of Champions 

2019 

15/09/2019 
BTH Raiders SC - Manly-
Warringah 

  Bye   

22/09/2019 
BTH Raiders SC - Manly-
Warringah 

6 Greystanes FC - Granville 0 

29/09/2019 Tahmoor - Macarthur 0 
BTH Raiders SC - Manly-
Warringah 

8 

13/10/2019 Engadine Eagles - Sutherland 1 
BTH Raiders SC - Manly-
Warringah 

2 

20/10/2019 
BTH Raiders SC - Manly-
Warringah 

2 
Huskisson Vincentia - 
Shoalhaven 

0 

            

16 Boys Champion 
of Champions 

2019 

15/09/2019 
Moruya Football Club - 
Eurobodalla 

1 
Forest Killarney FC - Manly-
Warringah 

2 

22/09/2019 Banksia Tigers - St George 0 
Forest Killarney FC - Manly-
Warringah 

3 

29/09/2019 
Forest Killarney FC - Manly-
Warringah 

4 Penrith Rovers FC - Nepean 0 

13/10/2019 
Earlwood Wanderers FC - 
Canterbury 

3 
Forest Killarney FC - Manly-
Warringah 

1 

            

16 Girls Champion 
of Champions 

2019 

15/09/2019 
Wakehurst FC - Manly-
Warringah 

  Bye   

22/09/2019 Peakhurst United - St George 3 
Wakehurst FC - Manly-
Warringah 

2 

            

18 Men Champion 
of Champions 

2019 

15/09/2019 
Curl Curl FC - Manly-
Warringah 

  Bye   

22/09/2019 
Curl Curl FC - Manly-
Warringah 

3 
Heffron Hawks - Eastern 
Suburbs 

1 

29/09/2019 Lindfield - Northern Suburbs 4 
Curl Curl FC - Manly-
Warringah 

2 

            

18 Women 
Champion of 

Champions 2019 

22/09/2019 Avalon SC - Manly-Warringah 9 
Southern & Ettalong Utd FC - 
Central Coast 

0 

29/09/2019 
Moruya Football Club - 
Eurobodalla 

2 Avalon SC - Manly-Warringah 4 

13/10/2019 Avalon SC - Manly-Warringah 0 
Rouse Hill Rams - Hills 
Football 

2 

            

AAM Champion of 
Champions 2019 

22/09/2019 
Brookvale FC - Manly-
Warringah 

10 Padstow Hornets - Bankstown 1 

29/09/2019 Inter Lions FC - Canterbury 2 
Brookvale FC - Manly-
Warringah 

8 

13/10/2019 
Brookvale FC - Manly-
Warringah 

4 
Kemps Creek - Southern 
Districts 

0 

20/10/2019 
Brookvale FC - Manly-
Warringah 

4 
WPH Cherrybrook - 
Gladesville-Hornsby 

1 
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AAW Champion of 
Champions 2019 

15/09/2019 Moss Vale - Highlands 0 
Manly Vale FC - Manly-
Warringah 

4 

22/09/2019 
Manly Vale FC - Manly-
Warringah 

7 Banksia Tigers - St George 1 

29/09/2019 
Manly Vale FC - Manly-
Warringah 

1 
Epping FC - North West 
Sydney 

0 

13/10/2019 
Southern & Ettalong Utd FC - 
Central Coast 

1 
Manly Vale FC - Manly-
Warringah 

0 

            

Over 30 Women 
Champion of 

Champions 2019 

22/09/2019 
Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-
Warringah 

3 
Kellyville Kolts SC - Hills 
Football 

0 

29/09/2019 
Maccabi Hakoah - Eastern 
Suburbs 

1 
Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-
Warringah 

4 

13/10/2019 
North Sydney United - 
Northern Suburbs 

0 
Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-
Warringah 

1 

20/10/2019 
Loftus Yarrawarrah - 
Sutherland 

2 
Pittwater RSL FC - Manly-
Warringah 

3 

            

Over 35 Men 
Champion of 

Champions 2019 

15/09/2019 
Wakehurst FC - Manly-
Warringah 

  Bye   

22/09/2019 
Wakehurst FC - Manly-
Warringah 

2 
Dunbar Rovers - Eastern 
Suburbs 

1 

29/09/2019 
North Sydney United - 
Northern Suburbs 

2 
Wakehurst FC - Manly-
Warringah 

1 

            

Over 45 Men 
Champion of 

Champions 2019 
22/09/2019 

Brookvale FC - Manly-
Warringah 

0 
Pagewood Botany FC - 
Eastern Suburbs 

1 
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TREASURER’S REPORT  
 

 
I am pleased to advise that the MWFA has reported an operating loss before development 
levy revenue and grants of $146,325 for the year ended 30 September 2019 (profit of $92,858 
for year ended 30 September 2018). In 2019, an additional $160,500 was collected for the 
facility and sportsfield development fund as compared to $145,980 in 2018.  
 
The key points to note in this year’s results are:- 
 

• Revenue grew $2,561 in 2019. Player numbers increased to 18,406 from 18,023 in 
2019, but due to a change in the mix of players, total registration fees collected 
increased only marginally this year as compared to last year and the 2019 budget. 
There were no other significant movements in revenue.  

• Costs increased this year by $275,414 due to increased competition and coaching 
costs, ground hire, referee coverage and the increased FFA Levy that was not passed 
onto the players in this year’s fees.  

• As well, there were increased legal fees associated with change to a company for the 
MWFA, replacement of old telephone systems and payment of a donation to the 
Richard Tomb’s fund-raising day. 

• At the operating profit level, the MWFA actual result was in line with the budgeted 
result for the year. 

• As at 30 September 2019, there is $887,926 (2018: $727,246) held in the facility and 
sportsfield development fund. 

 
 
Net Asset Position and Budgets 
 
The MWFA’s net asset position has improved as a result of the improved trading result.  
 
Given the extensive capital works that Northern Beaches Council have been undertaking on 
our playing fields, we have been reviewed our strategic goals that have set the parameters for 
future budgets and use of the development levies previously collected. As a result, the money 
held in facility and sportsfield development fund will be used to fund the proposed works to 
the Cromer Park building, which in return the MWFA will receive free access to the use of the 
Cromer Park building. 
 
 
Other Matters 
 
We have received the draft audit closing letter from John Watson of Watson Corporate Service 
and he has not identified any significant matters to be addressed. There are some minor 
process improvements that we will implement in the near future.  
 
Lastly, I would like to thank David Mason and Derek Turner for their efforts and support over 
the past year.  
 
 

 
 
 
Joseph Sorbara 
MWFA Treasurer 
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SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT - REPRESENTATIVE FOOTBALL 
REPORT 

 
 
The players, coaches, managers and parents of Manly United have conducted themselves in a 

manner to be proud of, we are held in high regard by most other clubs and associations, and we 

have the support and backing of the largest and most professionally administered association in 

NSW and probably Australia, for which we are grateful. 

 We are also fortunate to have our sponsors behind us and we thank them for their support and 

hope it will continue into the future. A special welcome to Bing Lee, who came on board this 

year as one of our major sponsors, together with the MWFA. 

The Association Youth League has proven to be of great success and at the time of writing 

there are teams in the finals series. Thanks to the coaches and technical directors for their 

efforts. 

The senior men’s and women’s teams had mixed results this season, the senior men reaching 

the final 16 in the FFA Cup for the first time was the highlight for the club. 

Thanks once again to Sharon Egger and Andrew Christiansen for their work as technical 

directors for women and men respectively, and to all the coaches and managers at MUFC. 

It would be remiss of me not to acknowledge the support from the MWFA office staff, thanks to 

Dave, Lee-Anne, Karon, Derek and Angela. 

On behalf of the board of MUFC, I wish everyone a happy festive season and hope you enjoy 

the short break, before we hope to see you all back again for the 2020 season, 

WE ARE MANLY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Keith Pester 
Snr Vice President Rep. Football 
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SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT - ASSOCIATION REPORT 
 
2019 was a memorable year in many different ways, all positive. I always look at the 

standard of football played and am convinced as well as the MWFA being the largest 

amateur Football association it gets better every year. The juniors from the Under 12’s up 

(congratulations to the Dee Why Under 12’s boys’ team for winning the Champion of 

Champions) were extremely successful this year and congratulations to them all. Also, let’s 

not forget Brookvale for another Champion of Champions win and the mighty BTH girls’ 

U15s and the Pittwater Over 30s for their wins. Amazing all round  

Well done to all! 

I’d like to thank my fellow EC and MC members for their efforts this year and to Dave 

Mason for another tremendous job with many exciting things on the horizon. To the office 

staff who as always never let anyone down and work tirelessly throughout the year. 

To the clubs and the players thank you for allowing me to make visits to your committee 

meetings and sharing all your concerns and enquiries and hopefully allowing me to give 

you all a few ideas moving forward. Certainly beneficial.  

The defibrillator project goes from strength to strength with hopefully many more all over 

the northern beaches a project I am extremely proud to be part of. Thank you to all. 

As you know one of the roles I get the most satisfaction out of is the Welfare Manager role 

and this year we had the running of the Mental First Aid course which was well attended 

and pre-season next year (around February) we will have a recap session for all the club 

welfare Officers and also the reminder of our Chaplaincy service. 

One of my highlights was organising the inaugural Richard Tombs Cup, a fantastic day in 

conjunction with the Curl Curl Football club and many of Richards teammates and Dave 

Mason. From all the teams that played to all the people that helped to all the celebrities 

that played in the celebrity match (Thank you all again!) to raise over $100,000 was just 

amazing. Thank you all again!! 

Certainly, a year to remember  

Here’s to another great year  

  

 

 

 

 

 

Duncan Kerr 
Senior Vice President  
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LIGHTING AND FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT IN THE MWFA 
 

Once the loan for the Lucas Neill Stand and Cromer Park 1 upgrades was paid back in 2007 the MWFA 
determined to use the $10 per player levy collected every year to pay for lighting upgrades to bring as 
many fields as possible up to the standard required to play night games. 

 
 

Ground Club 
Number of 
Fields 

Year 
MWFA Lighting Fund 
Levy Contribution 

Warriewood Sports Pittwater RSL 2 2008 $25000 
Beacon Hill Beacon Hill FC 1 2008 $30000 
Careel Bay Avalon SFC 2 2008 $60000 
Dee Why Oval Dee Why 1 2008 $20000 
Seaforth Oval Seaforth FC 2 2009 $60000 
David Thomas Manly Vale FC 2 2009 $60000 
Ararat Oval Wakehurst FC 1 2009 $15000 
Abbott Rd Curl Curl 2 2010 $60000 
Melwood Oval Forest Killarney 2 2011 $60000 
Wyatt Ave BTH 1 2012 $30000 
Terrey Hills Oval BTH 1 2012 $30000 
Narrabeen Sports High  Narrabeen  1 2013 Nil – paid by Pittwater Council  

Millers Manly Allambie 3 2013 Nil – paid by Warringah Council 

Cromer Park 2,3,4,5 Manly United  4 2013 Nil – paid by Warringah Council 
 

In 2014 the Lighting Levy was converted to a general levy for support of Club Development activities. 

  

Ground Club Purpose Year 
MWFA Club 
Development 
Contribution 

St Matthews Farm CC Strikers FC Clubhouse & Amenities 2014 $100000 

Melwood Oval Forest Killarney Synthetic Field 2015 $100000 

Allambie Oval  Beacon Hill FC Lighting  2015 $31861 

Cromer Park  All Clubs Upgrade Amenities Block  2015 $72167 

Cromer Park  All Clubs  Cromer 1 seats and fencing  2016 $14910 

Grahams Reserve  Brookvale/St Aug Grahams Reserve fencing  2016 $20750 

Boondah  Narrabeen Boondah Lights 2016 $44666 

Careel Bay  Avalon  Careel Bay Lights Upgrade 2016 $41463 

Seaforth Oval Seaforth Seaforth Oval 2016 $20000 

All Grounds All Clubs Defibrillator Project 2016 $10000 

Hews Parade Wakehurst Hews Parade Lights Upgrade 2017 $20086 

All Grounds All Clubs Defibrillator Project 2017 $42217 

Mosman Grounds Mosman Defibrillator  2018 $2000 

Dee Why Oval Dee Why FC Dee Why Oval Lights 2018 $32000 

Cromer Park All Clubs Grandstand Repair 2018 $36000 

Goodwill Hunting All Clubs Grant assistance 2019 $30000 
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VICE PRESIDENT – SENIORS 

 
It has been my privilege to be in the role of Vice President Senior Men’s for another year. As well as 
assisting on the MWFA Management Committee I was also able to play in the Over 35 competition 
and undertake Assistant Referee and Referee responsibilities across PL, AL, O35 and O45 comps. 
All this has helped me get a broad understanding of the issues and challenges of my portfolio.  
 
The 2019 season was another interesting and eventful year on the Men’s side of the game. As well 
as excitement on the field there was also interesting activity in the Association meeting rooms. This 
culminated in the approval to make a significant change to our PL structure from next year with the 
move back to a 12-team competition. This process started off at our pre-season forum where a 
working group was formed to review the competition structure, there was a quick and decisive 
process of recommendations, voting and approval which meant that we changed the 
promotion/relegation dynamic mid-season. Instead of having one team relegated and one team 
promoted we were able to promote two teams and then have a play-off game between the 3rd Team 
in Div 1 and the team finishing bottom of PL. This play-off game will be a feature of the future 
structure all be it the team finishing 2nd last in PL and 2nd in Div 1 will play off in the future, with the 
top and bottom teams changing automatically.  
 
The 2019 Premier League was again a very close competition with BROOKVALE taking out the 
championship by one point over runners-up SEAFORTH. Although BROOKVALE looked strong all 
year it was a more open title than previous years perhaps because PITTWATER RSL who have 
been Champions for the last two years having a slow start to the season, only a late charge seeing 
them finish fifth five points behind a finals place. Perennial top four finishers WAKEHURST finished 
3rd and newly promoted CURL CURL finished in a creditable fourth position. In the finals series 
CURL CURL saw off Brookvale in the semi-final and proceeded to show their strength with a 
resounding 6-0 win over SEAFORTH in the final, reversing the outcome of the MWFA Challenge 
Cup where SEAFORTH beat CURL CURL.  
 
In the AL1’s perennial runners up BTH and HARBORD were neck and neck throughout the season. 
In the end BTH took out the Championship by having a better goal difference by 4 goals. That came 
after the BTH goalkeeper saved a last-minute penalty to rescue a point in their final game against 
MANLY VALE.  BTH also overcame HARBORD 2-1 in the Grand Final and made a clean sweep by 
also taking out AL1R championship and Grand Final. With the new promotion/relegation structure in 
place BTH and HARBORD took out the automatic promotion places leaving AL/1 3rd place team 
MANLY VALE and PL 10th placed DEE WHY to contest the new annual Premier League play-off 
game. In a close contest with a good crowd cheering on Manly VALE took out the last PL 2020 place 
with a 1-0 victory. 
 
In the 18/1 competition CURL CURL took out the championship with a five-point gap over runners-
up WAKEHURST but they missed out in the GRAND FINAL losing on penalties to FOREST 
KILLARNEY.  
 
The O35/1 championship was again won by WAKEHURST however second placed MOSMAN took 
out the Grand Final. In O45/1 BROOKVALE and MOSMAN were the standout teams. BROOKVALE 
took out the Championship before the league split into two divisions in which MOSMAN prevailed, in 
the Grand Final BROOKVALE had a narrow 1-0 win. 
 
New to the AL’s this year was being scheduled on rotation for Friday night’s games, along with the 
O35 and 45’s, this seemed to be well received. For 2019 the ALs had 9 Divisions plus AL1 Res, as 
the AL2 Res was scrapped. The O/35 competition again had 6 divisions and the O/45’s 3 divisions; 
more growth is anticipated in this comp over the coming years as the aging population shows no 
sign of wanting to stop playing.  Other changes this year saw roll out of the 10-minute Sin-Bin for 
any Yellow Card given for Dissent towards Officials, this had been trialled in Under 18/1 and MWFA 
Cup competitions in 2018. Initial indications are that this has been very successful in reducing the 
dissent shown towards referees. 
 
Good luck to BROOKVALE, WAKEHURST and CURL CURL as our representatives in the 
Champion of Champion series. I am sure they will do us proud and compete to the best of their 
abilities.  
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MWFA once again fielded a PL select team that played NSFA Select and then MANLY UNITED with two 
very close games. MWFA defeated NSFA 5-3 in a penalty shoot-out with the winning penalty scored by 
CC STRIKERS Nick Parker. The MWFA Men’s select team then held MANLY UNITED to a 1-1 draw in 
the annual MWFA Challenge at Cromer Park. 

In the Under 18 Select game it was congratulations to MANLY UNITED in winning 3-0 a great spectacle 
played in front of a healthy crowd. Ben Gibson (MANLY UNITED) and Zack Trisic (MWFA – CC 
STRIKERS) were named as the Players of the Match. 
 
This year’s Presentation Night was again a joint Men’s and Women’s event. We had another successful 
night at the Novotel, Manly Pacific with 350 in attendance. A special thank you must go to one of our 
sponsors The Bendigo Bank, for their continued support in donating the cheques to the “Player of the 
Year” categories. It would be remiss not to mention the work that Dave Mason, Lee-Anne, Karon, Angela 
and all others from the office put into making the night a huge hit. The photographs supplied throughout 
the year by Graeme Bolton and Michael Hennessey add a great deal to the night. Your efforts are much 
appreciated. 
 
The Mens’ winners were as follows: 
Mens PL Goal Keeper of the year  Matthew Smith     CC Strikers 
      Daniel Trueman    Seaforth FC 
Mens AL Goal Keeper of the year  Jack Worland     HSU FC 
Mens PL Coach of the year   Matthew Gale & Jordan Lefebvre  Seaforth FC 
Mens AL Coach of the Year   Paul Mulligan     HSU FC 
Mens PL Golden Boot of the year  Justin Hayward     Brookvale  
Mens AL Golden Boot of the year  George Harle     BTH Raiders 
      Benjamin White    HSU FC 
      Simon Dolling     Mosman FC 
Mens Rookie of the year   Oscar Drew     Mosman FC 
Lorna Gale PL Player of the year  Daniel Beblaere    Seaforth FC 
Mens AL Player of the year   Jack Brown     BTH Raiders 
      Bruno Mendes     Mosman FC 
 
 
Finally, many thanks to all the MWFA committees and sub committees for their efforts during the season. 
We had a forum for Men’s PL, AL 1 coaches and officials along with members of the MWFRA to discuss 
a range of issues. Defibrillators coverage across all our senior games this year has continued to be good.  
 
I hope you all enjoy a break in the off season, have a great festive season and look forward to 
seeing you all back next year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Terry Gatward 
Vice President Seniors 

 

  



 

P a g e  54 | 100 

 

VICE PRESIDENT – YOUTH 
 

Participation numbers in youth ages (U12 thru U16) continued to grow, up 3% over last year from 

2,634 to 2,706.  Together with the girls (1,558) in the same age groups, the youth ages represent 

almost 25% of the footballers who take to the fields each weekend and 43% of all those involved in 

the competition age groups. 

We love having teams represent the MWFA in competitions such as the FNSW State Cup and this 

year we had 28 teams from U12 to U16 participating.  Notable performances were Mosman and Dee 

Why making the quarter finals in the U12’s, and Forest-Killarney making the semi-finals in both the 

U13’s and U16’s.  In the prestigious season-ending FNSW Champion of Champions tournament, 

Forest-Killarney repeated reaching the semi-finals for both their U13’s and U16’s but the stars were 

the U12’s from Dee Why who took out the grand-final.  Well done everyone. 

I always keep my fingers crossed that we have good weather for our local grand-final day and 

fortunately that was the case this year.  It’s a fabulous occasion for the kids because their extended 

families and friends come to watch and support and that makes it rather special.  Win or lose, 

everyone gets due recognition, everyone gets a medal, and there are lots of photo opportunities with 

impressive looking trophies.  Last year we only had one game go to penalties but this year we had 

many more.  Nothing attracts a crowd like a penalty shootout and that was in evidence on the day.  

People say penalty shootouts are stressful for the kids but not nearly half as stressful as it is for the 

parents!  I saw many on the day not able to look while their child was taking a penalty.  Great theatre, 

and in the end, also great fun. 

This will be my very last report as VP Youth for the MWFA.  Changes to the governing structure of the 

MWFA mean that the traditional roles of the Management Committee members no longer exist.  

Having served on the Management Committee for the past 14 years, it is with more than a degree of 

sadness that I leave.  I have worked with a fantastic array of people on that committee over those 

years but would like to pay special note to two.  Firstly, to Andrew Edwards who served the MWFA for 

many, many years and encouraged me to get involved.  He gave huge amounts of his time and was a 

fine administrator. Secondly, to Jeff Smit who is standing down as President.  Jeff brought an energy 

and drive, the likes of which had to be seen to be believed, and did things for the right reasons, with 

the best interests of the wider MWFA community in mind.  His absence will be a significant loss for the 

MWFA. 

I’d like to thank my fellow committee members and also extend a special thanks to Lee-Anne 

Sestanovich and Karon Saunders for their valuable assistance throughout the year.  I wish the 

inaugural MWFA Board of Directors all the best and trust that under their stewardship, the MWFA will 

continue to deliver great outcomes for the football community. 

I’ve always been a strong advocate for the junior end of our footballing community.  I understand the 

interest in senior football, particularly the pointy end (PL and WPL) but we need to keep in mind that 

70% of our players are under the age of 16.  We must not become complacent and instead should 

continue to look at ways of making the game and the experience around it more engaging for them. 

In closing, I would like to extend my thanks to coaches, managers, referees, club officials, parents, 

and supporters for playing your part in providing youngsters the opportunity to participate in the 

wonderful game of football. 

 

 

 

David Brennan  
Vice President Youth 
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MWFA VICE-PRESIDENT – JUNIORS  
JUNIOR FOOTBALL (‘MiniRoos’ Ages 5-11) & FNSW TOURNAMENTS 

 
 

(A) Manly Warringah Football Association Inc (MWFA) Football in General 
In this, Year 2019 in my section of the MWFA Annual Report, I sincerely thank all members of the 
MWFA Football Community (supporters and officials) for the friendship and co-operation  experienced 
in my roles on the MC, as V-P - Junior Football (ALDI MiniRoos Ages 5-11) and V-P - Football NSW 
Tournaments. Amongst the many, I must mention our tireless President, Mr Jeff Smit, who, in just a 
few years, has pursued the development of Football on the Northern Beaches and Mosman LGA’s.  
 
Next, thanks to the Executive Committee (EC), my fellow Management Committee (MC) members 
and our top-notch Office Staff Team. The last mentioned were co-ordinated by David Mason, our CEO, 
with Lee-Anne Sestanovich, Karon Saunders and Angela Crandell. We have run a ‘tight ship’ for over 
18 000 players and other participants.  
 
Also sincere thanks to Sigrid Mulherin, Manly Warringah Football Referees Association Administration 
Officer, for her liaison with me to provide referees each Sunday of the FNSW Tournament rounds (see 
below), as held in the MWFA area and during other related occasions.  
 
Last but not least I am most grateful for the work Eugene Lawrenz, our Community Coach 
Development Manager (CCDM), has developed this year. From small beginnings, Coaching with the 
Junior levels has gone ahead in leaps and bounds. I thank the many Clubbies, who have attended 
Eugene’s and my courses. 
 
To this list I add thanks to Club officials who have assisted Eugene and me developing the Juniors, 
ages 5 to 11. Five-year olds do play in our Under 6 bracket so these need greatest assistance in 
coaching. As well, Life Members, in Club and Association ranks, I sincerely thank for the keen interest 
in Football throughout 2019. 
 
(B) MWFA Junior Football Ages Under 6 to 11 (and even from U.5 age) 
Thanks, again, ‘Clubbies’, with U.6-11 teams, especially those who learned Grassroots Football Rules 
of ‘ALDI MiniRoos Football’. In 2019, many players in these groups found seamless transfer to the 
U.12’s with full ‘eleven-a-side Football and all FIFA Laws.  
 
Eugene and I conducted successful ‘MiniRoos’ Courses in early 2019, where I spent the first 10-15 of 
the 80-90 minute session outlining the ‘MiniRoos Playing Formats and Rules’ documentation. Then, 
Eugene assisted members in Courses to understand how to put all into practice. Over 500 people 
found proficiency in ‘Rules and Formats’.  
 
These were usually our ‘referees’, at this level called ‘Game Leaders’. After these sessions Clubbies 
and others attended Eugene’s other more specific Grassroots Coaching Courses (as I do each year) 
to become better ‘Coaches/Managers (called ‘Team Leaders’). Great development has continued with 
ages U.5-11. Where there were problem areas, notified to me, I managed to clear up 
misunderstandings at matches and via correspondence. Previously, I stated, over 500 attended 
courses and in 2020, with newly designed courses we will develop stronger Team Leaders and Game 
Leaders. Eugene has expanded his role and I gladly hand over my part with Mini-Roos Football, whilst 
I pursue new MWFA targets. 
  
(C) Football New South Wales (FNSW) State Cups Tournament 
Now I must outline the 2019 campaigns of Club teams volunteering to contest what is generally called 
the ‘FNSW State Cup Tournament’ (the named State Cups are the Frank Broughton, Robertson, Bill 
Cullinan and Cheryl Salisbury Cups as well as those just denoted as State Cups). Our MWFA Club 
teams challenged teams from all over NSW.  
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The Final results were: Pittwater RSL FC 12 Girls won 4-0 over Parklea SFC; PRSLFC 16 G won 5-1 
V West Pymble FC; Forest Killarney FC 18M won 3-2 V Lilli Pilli FC; Avalon SC 18 W won over 
Shellharbour FC 1-0; PRSLFC lost 14 G by 0 to 1. Thus 4 of 5 Finalist were winners (80% !!!!). Great 
winning record!!!! 
 
(D) FNSW Champion-of-Champions Tournament 
Our Club Division 1 teams, that won the ‘MWFA League Championships, 2019’, represented the 
MWFA against other NSW Associations. 16 MWFA teams contested Round 1.  
 
After many weeks, 5 Finalists attended FNSW HQ, Valentine Sports Park, Glenwood, on Sunday, 20th 
October, with results: Dee Why FC 12 Boys won 4-0 V Kellyville Kolts SC; Belrose Terrey Hills Raiders 
SC 15 G won 2-0 V Huskisson Vincentia FC; PRSLFC O30 W won 3-2 V Loftus Yarrawarrah FC; 
Brookvale FC All Age Men won 4-1 V West Pennant Hills Cherrybrook FC; Avalon SC 14 G lost to 
Avoca FC 0-3. Another fantastic 4 of 5 Finals’ winners!!!! Record #2 for 2019!!!! Great Finals’ day all 
teams!!!! MWFA Face Book reports on record for both FNSW State Cups and CoC matches!!!! 
 
‘ALDI MiniRoos’ Rules Sessions, etc, will start in March with notice to Clubs early 2020. 
 
In conclusion, thanks again to my Football friends. I eagerly await Season 2020 when it all restarts 
with the MWFA. To Club Committees, players, officials and supporters, I hope you have a fine off-
season and return refreshed to participate in ‘The World Game’. My role in 2020 will be an expanded 
one with FNSW State Cups and Champion of Champions!!!!!!!!  
 
May you celebrate a Festive 2019 Christmas Season (or how you enjoy a break) and enjoy a joyous 
New Year 2019 with success in your endeavours. I look forward to seeing our Football Family in 2020, 
via my roles as outlined throughout this Report, and via the ‘social media’. 
 
Best of good fortune to Jeff Smit during his further endeavours and in his family life!!!! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Tony Davies 
Vice President Juniors & FNSW Tournament Liaison Officer   
 
 
HISTORY OF JUNIOR SMALL SIDED GAMES IN MWFA 
1978 – MWFA 6v6 introduced for U7 & U8 
1984 – Last FNSW U8 Champion of Champions 
1992 – Last FNSW U9 Champion of Champions 
1995 – MWFA 9v9 introduced for U9 
2000 – First U9 Round Robin Gala Days 
2009 – FFA 4v4 format introduced for U6 
2010 – FFA SSG 4v4 introduced for U7, FFA SSG 7v7 introduced for U8 
2010 – Last FNSW U10 Champion of Champions 
2011 – FFA SSG 9v9 introduced for U10 
2011 – Last FNSW U11 Champion of Champions and State Cup 
2012 – U11 changed to U10 Format with no Semi Final Series 
2013 – U9 changed to 7v7 format. MWFA U6-U11 all play under FFA SSG Format. 
2015 – 25-m rule adopted for U10&U11. Adopted FFA SSG goalkeeper rule for no disposal out of hands 
2016 – Adopted full FFA SSG rules, Abandoned local offside, indirect free kicks in penalty area and 25m 
rule 
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VICE PRESIDENT –WOMEN 
 

It was another big year of football for women in the MWFA.   

The MWFA Select Team beat the Select Team from the Northern Suburbs FA, before giving a 

spirited display against MUFC.  

Manly FC won the MWFA Women’s Challenge Cup, early in the season.  

In the WPL, Manly Vale FC won the League and Beacon Hill won the Grand Final, beating Manly 

Allambie. In the WAL1, Pittwater won the League and Grand Final double, after beating Beacon Hill 

in the GF decider.. 

At the end-of-season WPL and WAL1 Awards Night, the following players / coaches were 

recognised for their outstanding achievements during the season.  

WPL Player of the Year – Bethany Sweeny (Beacon Hill FC) 

WPL Golden Boot – Naomi Peterson (Beacon Hill FC) 

WPL Goalkeeper of the Year – Lauren Scaramuzza (Manly Vale FC) 

WPL Coach of the Year – Tony Bruzzano and Roland Winter (Manly Vale FC) 

WPL Rookie of the Year - Mia Waddington (Manly Vale FC) 

Women’s Club Person of the Year – Emily Wright (Wakehurst FC) 

WAL1 Player of the Year – Amee Dawson (Pittwater RSL FC) 

WAL1 Golden Boot – Alysha Rowe (Pittwater RSL FC) 

WAL1 Goalkeeper of the Year – Bree Bowden (Seaforth FC) / Monique Frack (Brookvale FC) / Lucy 

Eagleton (Beacon Hill FC) 

WAL1 Coach of the Year – David Pugh (Pittwater RSL FC) 

WAL1 Best & Fairest Team - Avalon 

In the NSW Champions of Champions (CoC), our O30 from Pittwater FC won the CoC final 3-2 over 

Loftus Rovers (Sutherland Shire FA) on 20 October 2019. This is a tremendous effort!  We also had 

one of our teams (Manly Vale FC) make the CoC semi finals in the AAW.  

A big thank you to all the staff at the MWFA, who continue to support football for all the female 

players in our association.  Thank you Lee-Anne, David, Angela and Karon, as well as all the EC 

and MC members.    

 

 

 

Roland Winter 

Vice President – Women 
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VICE PRESIDENT – GIRLS  

 
2019 saw another substantial increase in junior women’s registration numbers. W8 to W18 registrations 

growing by nearly 6% on the previous year to a total of 3,374 players. 

It is very pleasing to see the women’s game growing so confidently. It is very clear for any spectator to 

see how much our junior women’s players enjoy playing the game, representing their club and the 

fantastic competition on offer. 

Early in the year a survey was sent to all junior women’s players from W14’s to W18’s inclusive. The aim 

of the survey was to pinpoint what factors of the game our junior women’s players enjoy, what motivates 

them and of course what factors may result in them not wishing to continue playing in future years.  

Based on the large numbers of registrations across many clubs in the junior women’s category, the 

information received in this survey will be utilised to assist in making the playing experience more 

enjoyable and safer for our junior women’s players for many years to come whilst focusing heavily on 

those factors that may be turning players away from the game.  

We received a great response to the survey and have been able to get a very clear picture of the major 

positive and negative influences on our junior women’s players. Thank you to all those who took the time 

to give their valuable feedback. 

2019 has seen some massive achievements from some of our junior women’s teams.  

Pittwater W12/1’s, Pittwater W16/1’s and Avalon W18/1’s all being crowned State Cup Champions for 

2019.  

Belrose-Terrey Hills W15/1’s took out the 2019 Champion of Champions Tournament and Avalon 

W14/1’s making it all the way to the Champion of Champions final. 

A huge congratulations to all of these teams on some outstanding results.  

An amazing winter season this year culminated in a fantastic Grand Final Day at Cromer Park where all 

participating teams played hard, fair and very much in the spirit of the game. It is great to see such 

intense competition on the field contrasted by such friendly interaction between rival teams before and 

after the match. This is truly what makes the women’s game so unique and such a pleasure to be 

involved with. 

I look forward to seeing the Junior Women’s game in Manly Warringah grow even further again in 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 Dan Cook 

Vice President Junior Women’s Football 
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MWFA COACH DEVELOPMENT REPORT 

 
2019 was my first year in Manly Warringah, and I very much enjoyed working with everyone in the 
football community. Some highlights of the season from a coach development point of view are detailed 
below, and I look forward to continuing and improving on all of these projects in 2020.  
 
COMMUNITY COACHING COURSES 
 
A total of 22 official FFA Community Coaching Courses were made available at several clubs and at 
Cromer Park this season, while continuing the flexible schedule and structure utilised last year for all of 
the Skill Training and Game Training Certificates, as well as spreading them across different periods of 
the season to cater to as many people as possible. We saw an increase in numbers from 2018 with just 
over 350 attendees in total (broken down further below), with one more Skill Training Certificate still to 
take place in December.  
 

• 13 x ALDI MiniRoos Certificates (250 
coaches) 

• 5 x Skill Training Certificates (71 coaches)  

• 3 x Game Training Certificates (32 
coaches) 
 
I would like to thank Suraj Pillai, James Webb, 
Rich Lacey, Nick Robb, Alex Brazete, Steve Hurd 
and Grace Lambourne for their efforts and 
contributions in presenting these courses, as well 
as all of the clubs who hosted them, or even just 
helped with promotion.  
 
 
COACHING WORKSHOPS 
 
As both a compliment to official coaching courses, and as a way to support, capture and encourage 
more coaches to undertake official accreditation, we ran 6 coaching workshops at Cromer Park with 
almost 120 coaches in attendance in total. Topics presented were based on feedback collected from 
MWFA coaches themselves at the beginning of the season, with the workshop covering trials/grading 
especially popular and well received given the challenges many clubs face when trying to figure out 
how to best coordinate and manage this part of the season. One more workshop may still be added to 
the calendar before the end of the year to cater to coaches interested in professional development 
opportunities over the off-season, and again, thanks to everyone who assisted with promoting these.  
 
Earlier in the year we also had a successful Grassroots Coaching Expo, which was attended by 
approximately 50 coaches (although the number could’ve been a lot higher if not for bad weather). I 
would like to thank all of the coaches and players in the Manly United Girls and Women’s programs  
who helped out on the night with the model sessions, especially Technical Director Sharon Egger for 
her support, as well as special guests Phil Moss and Jimmy van Weeran for their time and insights. 
 
CCC PROGRAM 
 
The Club Coaching Coordinator (CCC) program proved to be a success again in 2019, with 13 clubs 
actively participating. Some clubs were in a year of transition or were looking to get more involved than 
they had been previously, but the overall pool of CCCs grew to more than 35 which is a fantastic 
outcome. I look forward to potentially working with all 17 clubs next season to provide even more 
support for their coaches, which is what this program is about, although it is important to note that it is a 
flexible program that can be moulded to suit the needs of each individual club and their coaches.  
 
Special thanks go to all of our committed CCCs for their time and efforts, as well as the club committees 
who support them, in what is probably the most important initiative established in the FFA Coach Education 
framework, and also what will make the greatest difference not only to the quality of players we produce in 
this country, but more importantly, the quality of the experience all of our players have (which will hopefully 
result in them staying in the game over the long term).  
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Coach development is an investment, NOT a cost. 

 
In total I personally made almost 40 club visits during the season (which I aim to better next year), which 
included 12 club-based coaching workshops that were attended by approximately 100 coaches in total 
and provided them with even more convenient development opportunities. For next season I will be 
looking to organise a 12-month schedule of coach development events in consultation with all clubs to 
prevent as many clashes as possible, allowing me to provide even more direct support. This calendar 
will be made available on the MWFA website under the coaching tab, along with several other new 
pages and resources for coaches to utilise.  
 
 
GAME LEADER COURSES 
 
7 Game Leader courses were offered for MiniRoos volunteer parent referees at several clubs and at 
Cromer Park, with a total of 200 participants. This is actually a good sign despite being a lower number 
than 2018, as it shows the demand is decreasing due to the number of parents out there who are now 
more confident about volunteering to be a Game Leader and the MiniRoos rules. We will of course 
continue to offer more of these courses next year however to continue growing this base, as well as 
giving anyone interested the opportunity to have access to a refresher course. I would like to thank Tony 
Davies for his assistance with these courses.  
 
 
ADVANCED COACHING COURSES 
 
We hosted 2 FFA C-Licence coaching courses at Cromer Park this season (one in February and 
another across September and October), with 45 coaches progressing through the first stage of the 
advanced pathway. I have also been involved in presenting several other C-Licence and B-Licence 
courses for both Football NSW and FFA this year in order to complete my training as an advanced 
course instructor, which will allow us to host more of these courses in Manly Warringah in the future.  
 
We had 8 applicants for the Female Scholarship Program in 2019 which was great to see, and we will 
consider how to accommodate more of them next year given the significant interest from female 
coaches in the C-Licence course. Catriona Ormond (Seaforth) and Sharna Barras (CC Strikers) were 
selected this time around, and I look forward to working more closely with them next year as they look to 
share their new knowledge and support other female coaches at their respective clubs. 
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FUTURE COACHES PROGRAM 
 
The Future Coaches Program has been very popular this year, with a total of 15 applicants, 12 of 
which becoming the initial participants. These coaches have been going through an intense personal 
development program together as a group, leading into one-on-one mentoring next season, to help 
each of them reach their potential and achieve their coaching goals. Some early success stories will 
be posted on the MWFA website soon, and I look forward to seeing all of them progressing and 
achieving meaningful outcomes with their teams or in other football roles they undertake. 
 
 
I’d like to finish by thanking everyone who welcomed me and supported me in my new role this year, 
and I look forward to even better football season in 2020. Have a great summer and stay safe. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Kind Regards, 
 

Eugene Lawrenz 
Community Coach Development Manager 
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MANLY UNITED FC – TECHNICAL DIRECTOR WOMENS FOOTBALL 

 
 
2019 saw the Manly United FC women’s program field teams in the FNSW NPL Competition in grades 14, 
15,17, Reserve Grade and First Grade. 
 
Three of five grades made the finals being our 14s (finished 2nd), 15s (finished 5th), 17s (finished 6th), Reserve 
Grade (finished 3rd) and First Grade (finished 8th). Our very talented 14s (product of our Girls SAP program) 
made the Grand Final losing to the FNSW Institute for the second year in a row. 
 
Our youth development programs, playing style, fair play, integrity and facilities are second to none, along with 
highly qualified, experienced and dedicated coaching staff, which is why we are often referred to as the ‘model’ 
women’s youth development program in NSW. 
 
Once again I consider myself fortunate to have held the position of Technical Director of the women’s program 
at Manly United FC this year. Our players are a delight to work with from the SAP and Development Squad 
programs right through to First Grade.  
Most of them have learnt their trade at MUFC, many from as young as 11. 
 
I know I speak for our coaching staff when I say that we are very fortunate to be charged with the responsibility 
of developing the best of the best on the peninsula and every year we work harder to do just that, whilst 
ensuring we have a balanced, nurturing environment where enjoyment and development is paramount, 
particularly in the youth grades. Believing in what we do, not veering from the script and working together as 
a unit is why we are at the top of the women’s game in NSW. 
 
This year saw the 6th year of our Girls SAP (Skill Acquisition Program) and our third year of the full-time 
program in grades 10,11,12,13. 
The program has been a wonderful success, which is demonstrated by the number of Manly United players 
who were selected in the NSW PSSA Team (7 from our SAP program). Our Girls SAP program is underpinned 
by four development squads – U10,U11, U12and U13. 
 
We have a commitment to developing home grown juniors so that our senior squad continues to draw from 
our youth grades both in the short term and in the future and the Girls SAP is certainly providing the best 
platform for this to continue. 
 
Once again our TRY SAP Day was a great success, attracting over 160 girls to Cromer Park at the end of the 
season. All our coaching staff were on deck along with a number of players from all grades, contributing to 
ensure the day ran like clockwork. 
 
As I write this, we have now had 5 First Grade players sign W-League contracts for the coming season along 
with 2 x players signing overseas contracts – Remy Siemsen (USA) and Caitlin Jarvie (Poland). 
 
Add to that, Kahli Johnson was selected in the NSW U15 state teams and competed in the Girls National 
Football Championships in Coffs Harbour in July.  
 
We are in the business of developing elite footballers for Manly United and beyond, whether that be the W-
League or National Teams and I am proud to say we are on track. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Sharon Egger 
Manly United Technical Director  
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MWFA COMPARISON TO OTHER ASSOCIATIONS 

 
The table below shows figures taken from the 2018 F NSW Year Book giving a comparison of 
various player statistics over thirty four FNSW Associations.  

• Largest in total number of players 
• Largest in total number of male players 
• Second Largest in total number of female players 

 

  2017 2018 % Change 

Manly Warringah Football Association Inc. 17375 18758 8.00% 

Sutherland Shire Football Association Inc. 18612 18620 0.00% 

Canterbury & District Soccer Football Association Inc. 16303 16792 3.00% 

Northern Suburbs Football Association Inc. 16335 16530 1.20% 

Central Coast Football 13994 14034 0.30% 

Football South Coast 11591 12529 8.10% 

Gladesville-Hornsby Football Association Inc. 12237 12519 2.30% 

Nepean Football Association Inc. 12225 12336 0.90% 

State League Clubs (FNSW Competitions) 11659 12196 4.60% 

Hills Football Inc. 11156 11534 3.40% 

Blacktown & District Soccer Football Association Inc. 9989 10024 0.40% 

Macarthur Football Association Inc. 9935 9837 -1.00% 

St George Soccer Football Inc. 9016 9469 5.00% 

Eastern Suburbs Football Association Inc. 9056 8925 -1.40% 

Southern Districts Soccer Football Association Inc. 8092 7846 -3.00% 

Granville & District Soccer Football Association Inc. 6446 6421 -0.40% 

Bankstown District Amateur Football Association Inc. 6273 6247 -0.40% 

Shoalhaven District Football Association Inc. 3302 3931 19.00% 

Wagga Wagga & District Amateur Football Association Inc. 2774 3254 17.30% 

North West Sydney Women's Football Inc. 2880 2938 2.00% 

Dubbo & District Football Association Inc. 2317 2661 14.80% 

Bathurst & District Soccer Football Association Inc. 2033 2555 25.70% 

Orange & District Football Association Soccer Inc. 2160 2491 15.30% 

Lachlan Amateur Soccer Association Inc. 2010 1855 -7.70% 

Highlands Soccer Association Inc. 1599 1638 2.40% 

Griffith & District Soccer Association Inc. 1311 1570 19.80% 

Albury Wodonga Football Association 1359 1410 3.80% 

Southern Tablelands Football Association Inc. 999 1130 13.10% 

Lithgow & District Soccer Association 880 1128 28.20% 

Eurobodalla Football Association Inc. 849 1043 22.90% 

Far South Coast Football Association Inc. 1000 1043 4.30% 

South West Slopes Soccer Association 424 466 9.90% 

Western Plains Soccer Association 480 429 -11% 

Australian Chinese Soccer Association 217 187 -13.80% 

Sydney Amateur League 244 0 -100.00% 
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Female Player Comparison 2017 2018 % Change 

Sutherland Shire Football Association Inc. 5793 5925 2.30% 

Manly Warringah Football Association Inc. 4961 5629 13.50% 

Northern Suburbs Football Association Inc. 3763 3761 -0.10% 

Canterbury & District Soccer Football Association Inc. 3683 3727 1.20% 

State League Clubs (FNSW Competitions) 2584 3098 19.90% 

Central Coast Football 2928 3010 2.80% 

North West Sydney Women's Football Inc. 2880 2938 2.00% 

Football South Coast 2692 2799 4.00% 

Nepean Football Association Inc. 2513 2565 2.10% 

Eastern Suburbs Football Association Inc. 2079 2155 3.70% 

St George Soccer Football Inc. 1723 1887 9.50% 

Blacktown & District Soccer Football Association Inc. 1793 1846 3.00% 

Macarthur District Soccer Football Association Inc. 1853 1842 -0.60% 

Hills Football Inc. 1693 1827 7.90% 

Shoalhaven District Football Association Inc. 901 1214 34.70% 

Southern Districts Soccer Football Association Inc. 1078 1159 7.50% 

Granville & District Soccer Football Association Inc. 934 980 4.90% 

Bankstown District Amateur Football Association Inc. 989 979 -1.00% 

Wagga Wagga & District Amateur Football Association Inc. 668 823 23.20% 

Bathurst & District Soccer Football Association Inc. 592 718 21.30% 

Dubbo & District Football Association Inc. 584 699 19.70% 

Lachlan Amateur Soccer Association Inc. 701 599 -14.60% 

Gladesville-Hornsby Football Association Inc. 459 544 18.50% 

Highlands Soccer Association Inc. 355 380 7.00% 

Albury Wodonga Football Association 371 370 -0.30% 

Orange & District Football Association Soccer Inc. 297 359 20.90% 

Far South Coast Football Association Inc. 320 331 3.40% 

Eurobodalla Football Association Inc. 210 329 56.70% 

Southern Tablelands Football Association Inc. 296 318 7.40% 

Lithgow & District Soccer Association 168 276 64.30% 

Griffith & District Soccer Association Inc. 287 255 -11.20% 

Western Plains Soccer Association 172 187 8.70% 

South West Slopes Soccer Association 156 171 9.60% 
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Male Player Comparison 2017 2018 % Change 

Manly Warringah Football Association Inc. 12414 13129 5.80% 

Canterbury & District Soccer Football Association Inc. 12620 13065 3.50% 

Northern Suburbs Football Association Inc. 12572 12769 1.60% 

Sutherland Shire Football Association Inc. 12819 12695 -1.00% 

Gladesville-Hornsby Football Association Inc. 11778 11975 1.70% 

Central Coast Football 11066 11024 -0.40% 

Nepean Football Association Inc. 9712 9771 0.60% 

Football South Coast 8899 9730 9.30% 

Hills Football Inc. 9463 9707 2.60% 

State League Clubs (FNSW Competitions) 9075 9098 0.30% 

Blacktown & District Soccer Football Association Inc. 8196 8178 -0.20% 

Macarthur District Soccer Football Association Inc. 8082 7995 -1.10% 

St George Soccer Football Inc. 7293 7582 4.00% 

Eastern Suburbs Football Association Inc. 6977 6770 -3.00% 

Southern Districts Soccer Football Association Inc. 7014 6687 -4.70% 

Granville & District Soccer Football Association Inc. 5512 5441 -1.30% 

Bankstown District Amateur Football Association Inc. 5284 5268 -0.30% 

Shoalhaven District Football Association Inc. 2401 2717 13.20% 

Wagga Wagga & District Amateur Football Association Inc. 2106 2431 15.40% 

Orange & District Football Association Soccer Inc. 1863 2132 14.40% 

Dubbo & District Football Association Inc. 1733 1962 13.20% 

Bathurst & District Soccer Football Association Inc. 1441 1837 27.50% 

Griffith & District Soccer Association Inc. 1024 1315 28.40% 

Highlands Soccer Association Inc. 1244 1258 1.10% 

Lachlan Amateur Soccer Association Inc. 1309 1256 -4.00% 

Albury Wodonga Football Association 988 1040 5.30% 

Lithgow & District Soccer Association 712 852 19.70% 

Southern Tablelands Football Association Inc. 703 812 15.50% 

Eurobodalla Football Association Inc. 639 714 11.70% 

Far South Coast Football Association Inc. 680 712 4.70% 

South West Slopes Soccer Association 268 295 10.10% 

Western Plains Soccer Association 308 242 -21.40% 

Australian Chinese Soccer Association 217 187 -13.80% 

Sydney Amateur League 244 0 -100.00% 
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REGISTRARS’ REPORT 

 

Total players per club 
 

Club Total Players Male % M Female % F 

Avalon 1199 739  62  460  38  

Beacon Hill 940 581  62  359  38  

BTH Raiders 768 531  69  237  31  

Brookvale 985 625  63  360  37  

CC Strikers 1512 1062  70  450  30  

Curl Curl YC 1326 907  68  419  32  

Dee Why 537 445  83  92  17  

Forest Killarney 1243 955  77  288  23  

Harbord Seasiders Utd 727 541  74  186  26  

Mosman 1353 1027  76  326  24  

Manly Allambie 743 485  65  258  35  

Manly Vale 1178 772  66  406  34  

Narrabeen YC 1062 751  71  311  29  

Pittwater RSL 1324 861  65  463  35  

Seaforth 1531 1006  66  525  34  

St Augustines 524 524  100    -    

Wakehurst 1454 959  66  495  34  

Total Players 18406 12771  69  5635  31  
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REGISTRARS’ REPORT 
 

Juniors – U6 to U9, W-8 and W-9 
  

U6 U7 U8 W-U8 U9 W-U9 Totals 

Club P T P T P T P T P T P T P T 

Avalon 102 8 100 8 91 9 26 3 71 8 41 4 431 40 

Beacon Hill 60 5 59 5 30 3 21 2 47 5 19 2 236 22 

BTH Raiders 52 4 38 3 68 7   36 4 10 1 204 19 

Brookvale 114 9 101 8 44 4 45 4 70 7 9 1 383 33 

CC Strikers 171 17 123 12 103 11 77 8 82 9 49 5 605 62 

Curl Curl 110 9 83 7 67 7 39 4 72 8 19 2 390 37 

Dee Why 25 2 23 2 31 3   44 4   123 11 

Forest Killarney 100 8 86 7 84 8 10 1 86 9 10 1 376 34 

Harbord Seasiders 

Utd 

52 4 49 4 53 5 9 1 33 3 21 2 217 19 

Manly Allambie 48 4 73 6 27 3 19 2 39 4 32 3 238 22 

Manly Vale 89 7 73 6 92 9 19 2 48 5 26 3 347 32 

Mosman 105 9 132 11 100 10 10 1 91 9 25 3 463 43 

Narrabeen YC 84 7 82 7 60 6 17 2 75 8 10 1 328 31 

Pittwater RSL 124 10 124 10 68 6 11 1 91 9 58 6 476 42 

Seaforth 153 12 150 12 91 9 75 7 98 10 74 7 641 57 

St Augustines             0 0 

Wakehurst 110 9 111 9 83 8 19 2 96 10 47 5 466 43 

Total Players 1499  1407  1092  397  1079  450  5924  

Total Teams  124  117  108  40  112  46  547 
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REGISTRARS’ REPORT 
 

Youth – U10 to U16 
 

  U10 U11 U12 U13 U14 U15 U16 Total 

Club P T P T P T P T P T P T P T P T 

Avalon 60 5 58 5 51 4 47 4 25 2 33 2 14 1 288 23 

Beacon Hill 35 3 12 1 43 3 27 2       117 9 

BTH Raiders 43 4 12 1 42 3 28 2 14 1 15 1 13 1 167 13 

Brookvale 45 4 44 4 29 2 31 2 13 1 15 1 47 3 224 17 

CC Strikers 82 7 71 6 58 4 74 5 57 4 28 2 31 2 401 30 

Curl Curl 38 3 63 5 49 3 47 3 16 1 32 2   245 17 

Dee Why 34 3 24 2 28 2 14 1 32 2   15 1 147 11 

Forest Killarney 77 6 63 5 55 4 40 3 47 3 46 3 50 3 378 27 

Harbord Seasiders Utd 59 5 39 3 29 2 32 2 16 1 28 2   203 15 

Manly Allambie 33 3 27 2 26 2 30 2 14 1 16 1   146 11 

Manly Vale 37 3 47 4 43 3 23 2 31 2 16 1   197 15 

Mosman 63 5 64 5 61 4 15 1 31 2 17 1 30 2 281 20 

Narrabeen YC 35 3 62 5 32 2 32 2 59 4 45 3 31 2 296 21 

Pittwater RSL 63 5 72 6 57 4 26 2 29 2 14 1   261 20 

Seaforth 83 7 83 7 75 5 42 3 29 2 34 2 16 1 362 27 

St Augustines   38 3 41 3 67 5 59 4 56 4 76 5 337 24 

Wakehurst 80 7 59 5 53 4 29 2 46 3 63 4 31 2 361 27 

Total Players 867  838  772  604  518  458  354  4411  

Total Teams  73  69  54  43  35  30  23  327 
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REGISTRARS’ REPORT 
 

Senior Men 
 

 

  U18 AL O35 O45 PL Total 

Club P T P T P T P T P T P T 

Avalon 16 1 70 4 18 1 59 3   163 9 

Beacon Hill 16 1 140 8 61 3 76 4   293 16 

BTH Raiders 29 2 130 7 39 2 34 2   232 13 

Brookvale 16 1 36 2 41 2 24 1 38 2 155 8 

CC Strikers 34 2 97 6 60 3 40 2 37 2 268 15 

Curl Curl 64 4 104 6 126 6 42 2 42 2 378 20 

Dee Why 15 1 113 6 36 2   37 2 201 11 

Forest Killarney 43 3 121 6 104 5 20 1   288 15 

Harbord Seasiders Utd 32 2 123 7 39 2     194 11 

Manly Allambie   97 6 60 3 41 2   198 11 

Manly Vale 33 2 184 10 101 5 19 1   337 18 

Mosman 15 1 156 9 126 6 43 2 33 2 373 20 

Narrabeen YC 46 3 44 3 53 3 38 2 36 2 217 13 

Pittwater RSL 46 3 105 6 86 4 24 1 37 2 298 16 

Seaforth 34 2 108 6 42 2 19 1 39 2 242 13 

St Augustines 97 6 52 3     38 2 187 11 

Wakehurst 62 4 92 5 76 4 20 1 34 2 284 16 

Total Players 598  1772  1068  499  371  4308  

Total Teams  38  100  53  25  20  236 
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REGISTRARS’ REPORT 
 

Junior Women 
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  W-U10 W-U11 W-U12 W-U13 W-U14 W-U15 W-U16 Total 

Club P T P T P T P T P T P T P T P T 

Avalon 26 2 39 3 31 2 32 2 30 2 31 2 30 2 219 15 

Beacon Hill 11 1 24 2 33 2   29 2 14 1 14 1 125 9 

BTH Raiders   25 2 7 1 24 2   27 2   83 7 

Brookvale 13 1 13 1 27 2 25 2 34 2 43 3   155 11 

CC Strikers 57 5 24 2 28 2 27 2 14 1 28 2 14 1 192 15 

Curl Curl 22 2 36 3 34 2 31 2 32 2 41 3 13 1 209 15 

Dee Why 11 1 24 2   13 1       48 4 

Forest Killarney 13 1 15 1 28 2   16 1 27 2 15 1 114 8 

Harbord Seasiders Utd 26 2 11 1 13 1     14 1 15 1 79 6 

Manly Allambie 39 3 26 2   42 3       107 8 

Manly Vale 12 1 12 1 28 2 14 1 31 2 13 1 46 3 156 11 

Mosman 38 3 13 1 39 3   14 1 43 3   147 11 

Narrabeen YC 11 1 35 3 14 1 24 2 14 1 16 1 33 2 147 11 

Pittwater RSL 25 2 35 3 28 2 17 1 30 2 17 1 31 2 183 13 

Seaforth 60 5 36 3 26 2 14 1     28 2 164 13 

St Augustines               0 0 

Wakehurst 19 2 24 2 28 2 30 2 33 2 30 2 41 3 205 15 

Total Players 383  392  364  293  277  344  280  2333  

Total Teams  32  32  26  21  18  24  19  172 
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REGISTRARS’ REPORT  
 

Senior Women 
 

  W-U18 W-AL W-O30 W-O40 W-PL Total 

Club P T P T P T P T P T P T 

Avalon 32 2 66 4       98 6 

Beacon Hill 16 1 84 5 37 2 16 1 16 1 169 10 

BTH Raiders 14 1 33 2 15 1 20 1   82 5 

Brookvale 16 1 18 1   17 1 17 1 68 4 

CC Strikers 14 1 32 2       46 3 

Curl Curl 15 1 52 3   37 2   104 6 

Dee Why   18 1       18 1 

Forest Killarney   33 2 17 1 20 1 17 1 87 5 

Harbord Seasiders Utd   34 2       34 2 

Manly Allambie   18 1   19 1 16 1 53 3 

Manly Vale 18 1 71 4   37 2 16 1 142 8 

Mosman   34 2 35 2   20 1 89 5 

Narrabeen YC 13 1 46 3   15 1   74 5 

Pittwater RSL 18 1 50 3 18 1 20 1   106 6 

Seaforth 15 1 72 4   18 1 17 1 122 7 

St Augustines           0 0 

Wakehurst 23 2 67 4 15 1 16 1 17 1 138 9 

Total Players 194  728  137  235  136  1430  

Total Teams  13  43  8  13  8  85 
 
 

 
 

 

Note: There were a total of 130 Dual Registered women playing in 2019. 
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MWFA GROWTH SINCE 1947 
 

A comparison of the total number of players and teams since the formation of the MWFA is shown below. 
 

Year Teams Players Year Teams Players Year Teams Players 

1947   1948   1949 31 553 

1950 31 446 1951 33 556 1952 30 536 

1953 31 536 1954 26 428 1955 29 445 

1956 35 550 1957 43 719 1958 51 764 

1959 55 853 1960 62 911 1961 79 1147 

1962 100 1328 1963 135 1708 1964 168 2314 

1965 201 2708 1966 231 2977 1967 257 3412 

1968 282 3826 1969 285 3855 1970 289 4025 

1971 315 4203 1972 331 4386 1973 351 4745 

1974 381 5174 1975 405 5523 1976 446 5656 

1977 486 5735 1978 541 6399 1979 572 6714 

1980 587 6856 1981 580 6941 1982 564 6851 

1983 569 7013 1984 564 6439 1985 637 6089 

1986 548 6238 1987 530 6081 1988 532 5531 

1989 521 6035 1990 491 5694 1991 496 5712 

1992 509 5830 1993 520 6082 1994 557 6430 

1995 580 6850 1996 610* 7233 1997 633 7778 

1998 684 8221 1999 731 8988 2000 762 9071 

2001 803 9905 2002 874 10774 2003 872 12236 

2004 1029 12989 2005 1053 13733 2006 1115 14167 

2007 1190 15398 2008 1246 15689 2009 1191 15642 

2010 1150 15814 2011 1124 15427 2012 1086 14917 

2013 1111 14948 2014 1173 15757 2015 1281 17057 

2016 1300 17240 2017 1315 17383 2018 1338 18023 

2019 1367 18406       
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Registrations Numbers since the Formation of the Manly Warringah Football Association 
 

Year 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 21 PL AL O35 O45 W10 W11 W12 W13 W14 W15 W16 W17 W18 WPL WAL WO35 Total 

1948                                0 

1949                                553 

1950       125    89  89    143               446 

1951       104  104  122  104    122               556 

1952       125  89  89  72    161               536 

1953                                536 

1954                                428 

1955     59  60  61  83      182               445 

1956                                550 

1957                                719 

1958     163  164  128  81      228               764 

1959     174  208  126  88      257               853 

1960   123  156  193  171  80      188               911 

1961   169  228  230  215  79      226               1147 

1962   241  315  251  214   145     162               1328 

1963   399 207 215 174 185 130 98  102  57    141               1708 

1964  265 292 287 258 283 213 137 135  174  42    228               2314 

1965  354 327 371 307 248 93 196 144 87       381               2708 

1966  338 391 380 349 345 248 255 183 134       354               2977 

1967  389 382 451 429 369 313 235 238 150       456               3412 

1968  433 430 413 479 434 341 284 217 157       638               3826 

1969  427 401 470 416 422 377 304 195 149       694               3855 

1970  387 503 438 465 366 389 288 277 136       776               4025 

1971  475 468 538 481 458 359 364 260 220       580               4203 

1972  486 449 498 529 440 378 298 338 256       714               4386 
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Year 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 21 PL AL O35 O45 W10 W11 W12 W13 W14 W15 W16 W17 W18 WPL WAL WO35 Total 

1973  421 481 528 529 496 435 376 230 284  239     726               4745 

1974  458 483 530 527 520 530 373 343 200 192  196    822               5174 

1975  474 502 521 552 504 486 444 319 342 175  230    974               5523 

1976  500 542 524 502 515 483 429 366 293 248  231   348 675               5656 

1977  602 548 550 530 469 469 412 296 295 219  329   296 720               5735 

1978  676 688 645 567 503 455 413 334 259 274  319   317 949               6399 

1979  689 753 742 674 560 453 389 305 277 171  321   365 1015               6714 

1980  672 766 780 680 586 501 404 315 226 207  265   375 1079               6856 

1981  565 764 760 723 618 496 417 298 273 176  209   369 1273               6941 

1982  537 642 757 718 624 548 387 339 240 171  180   378 1330               6851 

1983  519 605 699 651 616 575 442 317 307 179  190   384 1529               7013 

1984  469 599 573 641 527 480 391 343 273 196   298  377 1272               6439 

1985  512 545 606 563 495 454 323 322 307  284  120  385 1173               6089 

1986  478 585 533 487 513 405 340 295 221 185  219   393 1264      87  65     168  6238 

1987  547 547 576 574 409 421 323 220 272 138  201   386 1237        87     143  6081 

1988  556 545 527 479 404 299 257 246 119 183  202   391 1119        82     122  5531 

1989 605 620 583 548 434 376 344 205 206 176 145  164   401 1103             125  6035 

1990 571 609 535 516 459 321 275 224 131 178 116  186   395 1001             177  5694 

1991 645 602 599 491 440 382 254 159 190 74 158  145   394 1083             96  5712 

1992 670 567 598 541 397 366 267 177 132 157 94  127   379 1202             156  5830 

1993 735 624 578 545 449 368 324 199 137 127 144  116   412 1133             191  6082 

1994 765 705 623 584 469 403 296 219 223 133 112  165   379 1124             230  6430 

1995 548 684 656 590 515 436 352 282 194 199 150  193   410 1304          108   229  6850 

1996 616 654 704 554 475 451 348 263 164 196 204  172   411 1334       85  130    265  7233 

1997 642 787 731 675 545 423 383 236 256 191 149  217   410 1331       171  142    341  7778 

1998 734 832 848 687 604 456 333 316 226 253 210  252   393 1305       203  168    401  8221 
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Year 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 18 21 PL AL O35 O45 W8 W9 W10 W11 W12 W13 W14 W15 W16 W18 WPL WAL WO35 WO30 WO40 Total 

1999 781 962 881 805 611 523 451 295 276 229 219 193  430 1426         251  188   467  
  

8988 

2000 780 892 941 746 652 495 436 336 246 234 237 243  428 1478         185  208   534  
  

9071 

2001 913 958 951 785 623 538 413 355 301 230 218 239  418 1826       116  176  227   618  
  

9905 

2002 1004 1021 969 775 654 526 405 344 356 302 205 258  423 2148       207  207  206  151 613  
  

10774 

2003 1143 1181 1030 915 705 533 477 333 352 346 387 310  379 1758 588      270  354  206 161 104 571 133 
  

12236 

2004 1176 1177 1157 847 731 550 458 345 338 274 296 318  391 1939 777    139  327  333  283 195  757 181 
  

12989 

2005 1192 1201 1112 854 772 568 542 390 411 275 256 388  456 1968 820    218  372  430  283 200  795 230 
  

13733 

2006 1331 1188 1152 851 686 558 516 411 393 324 266 348  426 1963 1130    271  519    462 188  914 270 
  

14167 

2007 1441 1292 1208 905 675 590 518 435 398 369 294 366 100 410 2026 1028    359  539  586  491 205 175 739 249 
  

15398 

2008 1300 1270 1166 906 716 594 544 447 402 424 342 391 151 411 2078 1122    312 220 285  551  473 282 833 294 175 
  

15689 

2009 1306 1215 1167 898 732 578 503 392 423 311 373 406 185 350 2055 1183 99   286 253 239 230 299  515 347 183 762 352 
  

15642 

2010 1417 1200 1177 899 756 631 538 407 386 325 297 462 161 345 2033 1253 107   274 221 309 212 244  503 262 245 726 424 
  

15814 

2011 1284 1191 1187 858 699 645 563 476 377 308 335 408 139 356 1997 1217 114   276 236 232 262 269  420 318 233 630 397 
  

15427 

2012 1297 1175 1117 906 662 579 557 450 433 297 294 402  354 1960 1352    247 251 244 215 258  386 292 215 600 374 
  

14917 

2013 1227 1184 1104 865 742 565 515 437 442 408 297 457  350 1841 1381    270 239 270 244 236  451 198 221 649 355 
  

14948 

2014 1312 1277 1210 921 803 689 552 447 443 418 445 437  353 1777 1407    322 273 250 258 254  445 220 333 524 387 
  

15757 

2015 1337 1343 1371 1088 844 744 685 473 478 493 447 576  365 1878 1381 145   300 342 300 229 299  428 268 277 603 363 
  

17057 

2016 1310 1266 1170 1055 916 763 708 573 448 492 444 644  359 1788 1247 281 211 190 288 257 365 291 220 257 228 258 210 636 365 
  

17240 

2017 1246 1331 1163 1016 885 828 675 550 516 432 437 643  351 1682 1193 389 242 295 276 394 294 363 266 191 277 251 125 711 361 
  

17383 

2018 1402 1229 1179 1009 910 787 769 568 511 418 397 615  364 1844 1091 485 430 305 413 320 386 285 357 266 151 280 122 755 375 
  

18023 

2019 1499 1407 1092 1079 867 838 772 604 518 458 354 598  371 1772 1068 499 397 450 383 392 364 293 277 344 280 194 136 728  137 235 18406 

 

 

                     Peter Auld          Linda Beaugeard    Annette Burgoyne 

   Registrar          Registrar    Registrar 
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JUDICIARY REPORT 
 
 
Firstly thanks to the panel, namely David Wilson, Cas Greco, Tony Cavallieri, Angie Carey, and 

Wayne Terry, and to the representative from the referees Craig McBernie. 

There will be some changes to the structure of the judiciary next season in line with the Association 

changing to a company and a board structure instead of an Executive and Management committee, 

details will be sent out when the conversion is finalised. 

As has been the case for a number of years the abuse of match officials is the most prevalent offense 

coming before the judiciary, and this need to be addressed by the judiciary and your association. 

There are already lengthy suspensions being imposed, but the message is not getting through to the 

players and team officials.  

The Association agreed during the season to publish suspensions each week on the web site, and 

maybe this will make players aware of the seriousness of being sent off for abuse of match officials, 

and the lengthy suspensions imposed. The judiciary has a range of the number of matches it can 

apply and they may start to go to the maximum rather than the lesser sentences to try and curb this 

behaviour. The 10 minute sin bin for dissent is working well, and will continue to become more 

common in the future as more referees use this penalty. 

On behalf of the Judiciary panel, I wish everyone a happy Christmas and hope to see you all next 

season, (but not at the judiciary), 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Keith Pester, 
Judiciary Secretary 
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Breakdown of Cautions by Age Group in 2019 

 
 

 Year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

PL & R 458 365 389 351 493 527 465 526 579 498 509 485 

AL 1 & 
R 

309 298 251 280 370 473 327 324 325 375 413 371 

AL 2 & 
R 

48 42 11 10 40 111 133 106 133 109 108 101 

AL 3 12 25 13 3 7 34 40 26 43 46 48 58 

AL 4 10 13 2 0 10 30 32 66 63 30 35 33 

AL 5 9 9 1 0 9 33 26 30 18 24 45 48 

AL 6 10 10 4 5 2 33 27 49 53 15 26 29 

AL 7 19 4 6 3 2 17       20 27 26 

AL 8                   22 21 113 

AL9                       34 

O35 1 43   14 0 7 48 34 97 74 63 80 60 

O35 2 9 35 16 6 14 17 28     76 44 26 

O35 3 6 15 25 6 6 31 34 60 41 57 54 52 

O35 4 6 14 11 2 2 21 41 50 50 39 53 39 

O35 5 12 8 7 2 10 35 25 53 29 44 28 60 

O35 6 2 1 4 5 5 22 32 40 57 28 31 39 

O35 7   4 5 6 11 19 28 36 25 22 n/a n/a 

O35 8         2 11 30 22 21   n/a n/a 

O45 1   3 11 0       22 10 42 26 42 

O45 2                 54 35 24 20 

O45 3                   10 33 22 

U18 170 100 58 52 59 131 123 244 372 347 225 201 

U21 48 38 23 28             n/a n/a 

W-18                   16 9 9 

W-PL                   25 29 22 

W-AL 33 28 31 13 40 79 49 114 87 42 37 52 

W30/40                       8 

W-O35                   7 8 n/a 

Junior 
Boys  

105 71 62 37 17 70 174 255 283 229 200 180 

Junior 
Girls 

                  11 7 9 
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Breakdown of Cautions by Age Group and Offence in 2019 
 

Caution 
Code 

Y1 Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5 Y6 Y7 
Sin 
Bin 

TOTAL 

PL & R 393 42 16 24 4     6 485 

AL & R 302 26 10 16 5 1 1 10 371 

AL2 72 18 7 1 1     2 101 

AL3 38 12 2 4   1   1 58 

AL4 22 6 2     1   2 33 

AL5 30 9 5 3     1   48 

AL6 19 6 4           29 

AL7 18 2 2 1   1   2 26 

AL8 21 89 1 2         113 

AL9 22 2 3 5       2 34 

O35 1 42 7 6 2 1     2 60 

O35 2 17 4 3   1     1 26 

O35 3 36 9 6         1 52 

O35 4 26 4 6     1   2 39 

O35 5 49 5 3 2       1 60 

O35 6 22 8 4 3       2 39 

O45 1 29 8 4         1 42 

O45 2 15 2 1 1       1 20 

O45 3 11 8 2 1         22 

Under 18 168 17 9 4 3       201 

Womens 18 3 1 1         4 9 

WPL 15 3   2 1     1 22 

WAL 39 5 6 1       1 52 

W30 2               2 

W40 2 1 2         1 6 

Junior boys 156   11 7   2   4 180 

Junior girls 7   1 1         9 

 

Caution Code; Description 

Y1 –  Is guilty of unsporting behaviour 

Y2 –  Shows dissent by word or action (sin bin) 

Y3 –  Persistently infringes the laws of the game 

Y4 –  Delays the restart of play 

Y5 –  Failed to respect the required distance when play is restarted with a corner kick, or throw in 

Y6 –  Enters or re-enters the field of play without the referee’s permission 

Y7 –  Deliberately leave the field of play without the referee’s permission  
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Breakdown of Send-Offs by Age Group and Offence in 2019 

 

  R1 R2 R3 R4 R5 R6 R7 Cit 
4th 
Y 

6th 
Y 

8th 
Y 

PL & R 6 7   4 3 2 9 4 27 1   

AL1 & R 2 6       4 14 2 19 4   

AL2   5       1 2 1 2 1   

AL3   1             1     

AL4   2       2 1 4 1     

AL5           1 1 5 1     

AL6 1 1 2   1 1           

AL7   2       1   2       

AL8           1 1         

AL9       2               

O35 1                       

O35 2             1   1     

O35 3   1       1           

O35 4   3         1         

O35 5   3         1         

O35 6       1               

O45 1                 1     

O45 2   2                   

O45 3           1           

Under 18 1 4     2 1 3 3 1     

Womens 18                       

WPL               1 2     

WAL   1       1   1       

W30/40       1               

Junior Boys           1 3 4 1     

Junior Girls               2       

TOTALS 10 38 2 8 6 18 37 29 57 6 0 

 
Send-Off Code Description: 

R1 –   Is Guilty of Serious Foul Play  

R2 –   Is Guilty of Violent Conduct  

R3 –   Spits at an Opponent 
R4 –   Denies the opposing team a goal or obvious goal scoring opportunity by deliberately 

handling the ball 

R5 –   Denies an obvious goal scoring opportunity to an opponent moving towards the 
players goal by an offence punishable by a free kick or penalty 

R6 –   Use offensive or insulting language and/or gesture 

R7 –   Receives a second caution in the same match 
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YOUTH MIXED TABLES 2019 - UNDER 12 TO UNDER 14 
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YOUTH MIXEDTABLES 2019 - UNDER 14 cont. TO UNDER 18 
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PREMIER LEAGUE & ALL AGE TABLES 2019 
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JUNIOR WOMENS TABLES 2019 – Under 12 to Under 16s 
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WOMENS TABLE 2019 
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MANLY WARRINGAH FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION INC. 

Monday, 26th November 2018 

101 South Creek Road, Cromer Park 
 

71st ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

7.30pm 

1. Meeting Open – 7.30pm 

 

2. Welcome 

Welcome to all Life Members present and all other attendees. 

 

3. Apologies 

Apologies were received from David Lavings, Michelle Edwards and Don Gale. 

 

4. Confirm the Minutes of the 70th Annual General Meeting held 27th November 2017  

No amendments were noted, a motion that the minutes be adopted as an accurate 

record of the meeting was moved by Joseph Sorbara, seconded by Warren Mepham. 

       CARRIED 

4.1 Business arising from above minutes  

Nil  

 

5. Presentation and adoption of the 2018 Annual Report 

Jeff Smit called for a motion that the Annual report be accepted by the meeting. This 

was motioned by Joseph Sorbara, seconded by Keith Pester. 

Congratulations to the office staff for an excellently presented Annual report! 

CARRIED 

6. Consideration of Honorariums 

There has been no change to these this year.      

    

7. Presentation of Meritorious Service Awards and Football NSW State Awards 

 

7.1 Richard Hooker – Football NSW State Award 

Richard Hooker has been a club stalwart for the Collaroy-Cromer Strikers Football 
Club since its creation in 1994. 
But even before that Richard was prominent in community sport and worked tirelessly 
on the Cromer football club committee. 
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During the past 24 years Richard has served the merged entity, Collaroy-Cromer 
Strikers club in a wide range of key positions. 
 
Some of these have ranged from Men’s vice-President to club Registrar. Richard has 
also worked as Gear Steward, senior men’s teams co-ordinator, team manager for 
numerous teams, Manly-Warringah Football Association delegate and competition 
director of the Sydney-wide competition, Strikers’ Cup.  He is also a life member of 
Collaroy Cromer Strikers FC. 
  
However, it’s in the area of competition organiser that Richard is best known. 
  
He was integral in starting the CC Strikers inaugural summer six-a-side competition in 
1977, a competition that, from humble origins, became one of the best-known summer 
sport competitions on the Northern Beaches. 
 
From its inception, Richard ran this competition almost single-handedly,. It’s booming 
popularity underlining the community demand for small-sided games on the northern 
beaches. 
 
In 2012, CC Strikers and Manly United forged a partnership and the Manly-Warringah 
Summer Six-a-Side competition was created with Richard Hooker as tournament 
director. 
  
Since that time this summer competition has gone from strength to strength and now 
involves more than 340 teams and 2750 players. 
It is played on the artificial turf under lights at Cromer Park and provides a much-
needed healthy sporting outlet for players from under five to over fifty. 

 
7.2 David Lavings - Meritorious Service Award 

Curl Curl Youth Club would like to nominate David Lavings for a Meritorious Service 
Award. David has played at Curl Curl since 2008, starting in AL, moving to O35 and 
now playing O45. He also coached his son’s junior team for 5 years and for 3 of these 
years was also the team manager. In 2009 our club was struggling for volunteers and a 
call was put out to all members to attend a crisis meeting to address this. David 
answered this call, becoming Vice President in 2009 and 2010. He then took on the 
President role in 2011 where he continues to this day. David’s strong networks and 
links within the community have been invaluable and he has been a vocal and able 
advocate for the club at MWFA, on council committees and with local government. 
David was the main force behind the installation of lights at Abbott Rd – he organised 
the plans, the DA and obtained grants to fund the installation. More recently he has led 
the push for Curl Curl Youth Club to upgrade the facilities at Abbott Rd and get a 
proper clubhouse, which is now at DA stage, and he was also instrumental in forming 
an AL1 team in 2017. Each end-of-season Junior Presentation Day our club collects 
discarded kit and soccer boots and David, who works regularly in Fiji, takes these 
items to distribute to Fijian communities. David was voted Club Person of the Year in 
2010. 
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7.3 Dusan Rakic - Meritorious Service Award 

Brookvale football club would like to nominate MR DUSAN RAKIC for the meritorious 
service award, Dusan has been involved with Brooky fc in either a playing and an off 
field role for the last 15 years.  Dusan’s love of the game initially saw him become a 
team coach or manager and player from 2003 until today. From 2003 to now he either 
coached or managed teams from u/16 to seniors.  

He is now for the 3rd year the gear steward for our premier league men squad which 
entails long hours during the week and weekends while still trying to play the 
occasional game for his o/45 team.  Although Dusan playing career at Brooky is quite 
outstanding its his off field role that requires some sort of recognition. This includes , 
over 15 years; 

* Committee member from 2011 progressing to senior vice president and a member of 
the clubs executive committee over the last 3 years 
* Team referee for his 0/45 side whenever he is available, he has been a team referee 
for many years 
* Since the club has growing in numbers Dusan has always made available when ever 
asked 
* Dusan has assisted club over many years with preseason major clean out of 
grahams res dressing rooms and canteen 
* Bagging of playing gear for all our teams prior to season starting 
* Washing premier men’s shirts and cleaning out dressing rooms at grahams without 
being asked 
* Regular attending bar b q duty and ground set up at grahams most week ends 
* Attending monthly committee and executive meetings where his option is always 
highly regarded due to many years at the club 
* Dusan is also involved in the Sunday morning master comp which he has done for 
many years 

Dusan is totally committed to Brookvale fc and MWFA and as such we at Brookvale 
would love to see his years of service be recognised with this great award. 

7.4 Caroline Hodges - Meritorious Service Award 

 

Caroline Hodges has been an incredible contributor to Manly Vale Football Club over 

the past ten plus years. As the daughter of former Manly Vale President, PL coach and 

player Les Cratchley it was almost inevitable that she would be brought up in the Manly 

Vale club family. After marrying David Hodges she spent many hours at the club with 

children Surrey, Lucy and Daniel and was a team Manager. In 2006 when Connie 

decided to handover Caroline already a committee member volunteered to take over 

the running of the canteen and assisted by David has grown the Manly Vale Canteen 

into a vibrant hub of the clubs activity over the weekend.  

 

Ensuring it is staffed across both days and stocked with tempting fare for old and 

young the canteen has continued to set the benchmark across MWFA. Just as 

importantly for the club is that the canteen has grown in the funding contribution it has 

made to the clubs finances and continues to be the major source of funding after 

playing fees. Caroline has been a staunch member of the Manly Vale Committee for 

the last twenty years and continues to be a bastion of the clubs family and community 
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spirit. Manly Vale FC is very fortunate to have the contribution of Caroline and her 

family and is proud to nominate her for the MWFA Meritorious Service award. 

 

7.5 Keith Wainwright - Meritorious Service Award 

Keith Wainwright is the longest serving member of the Manly Vale Football club indeed 

he is the only member that was involved with the club during its previous incarnation as 

Brookvale, it became Manly Vale in 1961. The Wainwright family had a large influence 

on the club, with father Ted a coach for several years and 4 brothers all playing for the 

Club. John and Keith were both to have a hand in running the Club, John as President 

and Keith as Premier League Coach.  

Although Keith went on to represent the District and Area in rep teams he always 

returned to Manly Vale. As he aged he became more involved in lower division teams 

and was a key organiser of the Sunday Summer masters and its move into the MWFA 

family. For the past 10 years Keith has been the patron of Manly Vale FC. He has 

recently been coaching a number of Manly Vale Women's teams as well as helping 

develop the skills of his grandchildren. Keith is passionate in his recollection of the club 

and areas football history and will happily engage with anyone on his this his favourite 

topic. Manly Vale FC is very fortunate to have the contribution of Keith and is proud to 

nominate him for the MWFA Meritorious Service award. 

7.6 Neil Blundell - Meritorious Service Award 

Neil Blundell has been a key contributor to the football and committee of Manly Vale 

FC for over ten years. As a young footballer he represented Auburn & Blacktown City. 

After moving into the area he joined our strong AL4 team and then was a pioneer of 

our early Over 35 and 45 teams. He also took up coaching junior teams with an 

approach that always encouraged effort and development rather than results. He has 

twice stepped into Assistant Manager Roles for our PL squads. 

 For the last 10 years Neil has been managing the Over 35/45 Senior Men's teams and 

has grown the participation to 6 teams, actively involved in the clubs committee he has 

always been a willing contributor to the clubs progress. He is also currently coaching 

our under 16/1 team. Manly Vale FC is very fortunate to have the contribution of Neil 

and is proud to nominate him for the MWFA Meritorious Service award. 

7.7 James Raphael - Meritorious Service Award 

James Raphael is the epitome of a great club man and someone who has contributed 
to Association and local football in a wide range of capacities since he joined the club 
in 2005. 

He has coached numerous club senior men’s and women’s teams over the years and 
was the volunteer coach for the Club’s AL1/AL1R squad over the 2018 winter season. 
His coaching achievements include being a former Club Director of Coaching, Premier 
League Coach, and coach of the Club’s WAL1 and WAL2 teams. 

James has also served in various capacities within the Club including as Secretary, 
Judiciary Member and as Club Representative at Council of Clubs meetings. 

At Association level, James has been a member of the Player Grading Sub-Committee 
since its inception in 2016. He has also coached teams from the MUFC Metropolitan 
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U10s, U11s and U12s teams as well as having been a coach to MUFC NPL Boys 
league U13 and U14 teams. 

As a longstanding member of the MWFRA, James has mentored numerous referees 
over the years as well as making a substantial contribution as a referee himself. He 
was Referee of the Year in 2008 and refereed the semi-final of the FNSW Champion of 
Champions game in 2009. In 2008, he was Vice President of the MWFRA and 
President for 2009 – 2010. 

He is the ‘go to’ man for odd jobs at Mosman Football Club despite having moved from 
Mosman many years ago. He is always ready to provide a helping hand whether it is 
dismantling goal posts or moving barbeques in his trusty ute. 

Club football could not function without people like James who give so willingly of their 
time and knowledge. In addition, football within the Manly Warringah Football 
Association has been the better for his involvement over many years. Mosman Football 
Club has pleasure in nominating James for a MWFA Meritorious Service Award for 
2018. 

7.8 Steve Kiddle - Meritorious Service Award 

Steve has been with the club since 2009 when his son joined the U7’s. He became the 
Age co-ordinator the following year & has been doing that ever since. His son is now in 
the U16’s. 

* Steve was instrumental in starting the massive gala day we put on for the U6-U9 – 
with jumping castles, face painting etc & has made it the success that it is today. 

* Steve became the club secretary in 2016, without missing one meeting, he has kept 
us all in line with his ‘actions to be taken’ 

You can find Steve at Kitchener most Saturday mornings & some Sundays, helping set 
up the canteen & BBQ, setting up fields. Steve is our ‘go to guy’, his efforts in keeping 
Pittwater RSL FC running are enormous. 

8. Nomination of Life Members 

 

Ed Neill – MWFA Life Member 

Warren Mepham nominated Mr Ed Neil as a Life Member candidate for the 2018 AGM. 
That was seconded by Mrs Linda Ward. 

Ed Neil’s involvement with MWFA dates back over 33 years. His proud achievements 
started with the Wakehurst Football Club when he first coached his son’s team back in 
1985 under7’s. Ed served as President for 5 years from 1989-1993 and as Registrar 
for 6 years 1995-2000. 

As President, he was a mover and shaker in the proposal to turn the road corridor at 
Hew’s Parade into playing fields. He put a lot of work into this to get Wakehurst a 
home. Although this was eventually defeated by the residents, Hew’s Parade became 
Wakehurst’s Sub-Junior ground in 1991 and in 1992 the Car Park was built and in 
1993 the present Canteen/Storage building was completed. Both Ed and Col Pithis 
worked tirelessly to get this done. During his tenure the demountable building was put 
at Lionel Watts as a Club Canteen and Meeting place. During these times, Ed 
continued the tradition of opening his house on Friday nights for Coaches and 
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Managers to collect information and socialize to give a true Club spirit. Ed Neil was 
awarded Life Membership of Wakehurst Football Club in 1997. 

Manly Warringah Football Association- Ed’s time at Wakehurst was inter-twined with 
MWFA. From approximately 1990, Ed developed a computerized Registration System 
for MWFA and its Clubs. Ed maintained this program for the Association and its Clubs 
until the introduction of “My Football Club” in 2006. In 1997, he also developed a 
system to assist the Referee’s with ‘payments for games covered’ and in 2000, he 
incorporated the MWFA System into ‘i-sport’ which remained in place until the 
introduction of ‘My Football Club’ in 2006. 

Ed served on the Management Committee in 1992 and 1993 as Vice-President of Sub 
Juniors. He was also honoured with the MWFA Meritorious Award in 2004. 

Ed’s involvement and passion for the Appeals Committee is legendary dating back to 
1996, giving 22 years and the last 8yrs as Chairman. 

In 2015, Ed was awarded a ‘Football NSW State Award’ for services to football. This 
award was in recognition of his tireless efforts and services to football in their local 
community. This State Award formally recognizes individuals who have provided 
consistent and valuable service at the club or association level. 

I have much pleasure in nominating Mr Ed Neil for Life-Membership of the Manly 
Warringah Football Association. 

The Members were asked to vote on the nomination and the vote was 52 – 0 in favour 

of Mr Ed Neill becoming a Life Member of the MWFA.   

         CARRIED 

9. Notice of Motions  

 

9.1 Proposed amendments to the MWFA constitution and By-Laws, as per 

document circulated to Clubs following the November Council of Clubs 

(Cosmetic changes) 

Keith Pester moved that these be approved, seconded by Joseph Sorbara. 

Vote – 52 for 0 against       CARRIED 

 

9.2 Proposed amendments to the MWFA Playing Rules, as per document 
circulated to Clubs following the November Council of Clubs meeting 
(Cosmetic changes). 
Linda Ward moved that these be approved, seconded by Duncan Kerr. 
Vote – 52 for 0 against       CARRIED 

Individual rule changes (to be voted on individually by the Clubs) 
 
CHANGE 1 
 
A change to the existing player transfer rule to lower the number of players that can 
transfer from one team at one club into a single team at another club. 
 
Existing rule A5(d) (proposed new rule number A3) is: 
In all age groups from U/9-U/21, no more than five (5) players registered in any one 
Competitive team with a Club in any one season may register with a different Club the 
following season as a player in the same team unless the players’ previous Club has 
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ceased to exist. Exceptions to this rule may be granted by the EC on a case by case 
basis. 
 
Change to: 
 
In all age groups from U/9-U/21, no more than five three (5 3) players registered in any 
one Competitive team with a Club in any one season may register with a different Club 
the following season as a player in the same team unless the players’ previous Club 
has ceased to exist. Exceptions to this rule may be granted by the EC on a case by 
case basis. 
In all age groups from U/9-U/21, no more than four (4) players registered in any one 
age group with a Club in any one season may register with a different Club the 
following season as a player in the same team unless the players’ previous Club has 
ceased to exist. Exceptions to this rule may be granted by the EC on a case by case 
basis. 
 
Vote – 42 for and 14 against       CARRIED 

CHANGE 2 

B13 SPECIAL RULES RELATING TO FIRST AND RESERVE GRADE 
(a) The EC will state in the MWFA Competition Structure which divisions will play with 
first and reserve grade teams. 
AL2 Reserve grade will be removed from that list. 
 
Vote – 32 for and 27 against       CARRIED 
 
CHANGE 3 
 
Playing Rules – D6.(3).ii.(b) Open Competitions 
 
Existing Rule: 
Teams in Men’s Open Competitions may borrow players registered in Over 35 
Competitions provided that such players are registered in the same or a lower Division 
than the Borrowing team’s division in the Open Competition. 
Teams in Open Competitions may borrow players from O45 Competition as follows: 
• AL-2 division and above may borrow from O45-1 
• AL-4 division and above may borrow from O45-2 
• Any AL division may borrow players from O45-2 and below 
 
Teams in Women's Open Competitions may borrow players from WO35 Competition 
as follows: Where there are two divisions of WO35 
• WAL3 and above may borrow from any WO35 
• WAL4 and below may only borrow from WO35-2 
Where there are three divisions of WO35 
• WAL2 and above may borrow from any WO35 
• WAL3 may borrow from WO35-2 and WO35-3 
• WAL4 and below may borrow from WO35-3 
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Change to: 
 
Teams in Men’s Open Competitions may borrow players registered in Over 35 
Competitions provided that such players are registered in the same or a lower Division 
than the Borrowing team’s division in the Open Competition. 
Additionally to cater for years when there are less O35 divisions than Open 
competitions 
• Any AL division may borrow players from O35-5 and below 
Teams in Open Competitions may borrow players from O45 Competition as follows: 
• AL-2 division and above may borrow from O45-1 
• AL-4 division and above may borrow from O45-2 
• Any AL division may borrow players from O45-2 and below 
 
Teams in Women's Open Competitions may borrow players from WO35 Competition 
as follows: Where there are two divisions of WO35 
• WAL3 and above may borrow from any WO35 
• WAL4 and below may only borrow from WO35-2 
Where there are three divisions of WO35 
• WAL2 and above may borrow from any WO35 
• WAL3 may borrow from WO35-2 and WO35-3 
• WAL4 and below may borrow from WO35-3 
 
Vote – 52 for and 0 against       CARRIED 

 

CHANGE 4 
 
Proposed Change to MWFA Competition Structure: 
All single team AL competitions are rostered to play rounds on Friday nights in  
addition to the existing U18 and Over 35s/45 competitions. 
 
Vote – 52 for and 5 against       CARRIED 
 
CHANGE 5 
 
6.10 (C6) Temporary Dismissals 
 
Add: 
The temporary dismissal Sin Bin for Y2 caution is extended to all matches in mens and 
womens competition from U12 and up. 
 
Vote – 53 for and 0 against       CARRIED 
 
CHANGE 6 
 
COMPETITIONS 
D2 AGE GROUPS AND DIVISIONS 
PART A INCLUDE 
 
The age requirements for 
 
Proposed Change to MWFA Competition Structure: W35 be changed from W35 to 
W30 and an additional competition for W40 to be introduced. If the MWFA receive a 
minimum of 6 teams it will be a standalone W40 competition. If fewer than 6 teams, the 
teams will be placed in an appropriate lower W30 division. 
 
Vote – 33 for and 24 against       CARRIED 
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CHANGE 7 
 
Add Clause 7.5 (4) Appeals against a decision of a committee other than the 
Judiciary 
 
(a) All appeals against a decision or determination of any committee other than the 
Judiciary must be lodged within the current football season. Where this is not practical 
due to time constraints then a one month limit will apply. Appeals will not be accepted 
for decisions handed down in a previous football season. 
 
Vote – 53 for and 0 against       CARRIED 
 
 
CHANGE 8 
 
Clause A7 (h) 
 
Existing rule 
 
(h) Appeals of PGC Grading 
Any appeal against a PGC decision is to be directed to the MWFA Appeals Committee. 
Further appeals will be to Football NSW 
 
Change to: 
(h) Appeals of PGC Grading. 
Any appeal against a PGC decision is to be directed to the MWFA Appeals Committee, 
refer to section 7.5 (4) for further details in relation to time limits. Further appeals will 
be to Football NSW 
 
Vote – 51 for and 0 against       CARRIED 

 

CHANGE 9 
 
Playing Rule A7 (g) Graded Player Deregistration or Movement 
 
Existing rule: 
Once a Graded Player is registered in an MWFA Club the player may not be 
deregistered or transfer to another MWFA Club without permission of the EC. 
 
Once the quota of three Graded Players has been registered in a MWFA Competition, 
these Graded Players may not be deregistered or moved to different MWFA 
Competitions to be replaced by a different Graded Player during the same football 
year. 
 
Change to: 
(g) Graded Player Deregistration or Movement 
 
Once a Graded Player is registered in an MWFA Club the player may not be 
deregistered in order to transfer to another MWFA club without the permission of the 
EC. 
 
A Player may be deregistered if he/she ceases playing in MWFA competition, but will 
remain on the MWFA Club’s Graded Player list for the remainder of the current 
season. 
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Graded Players may not be moved to a different MWFA Competition within the club to 
be replaced by another Graded Player during the current season. 
A Player may be removed from the Club’s Graded Player list if he/she leaves a club in 
abnormal circumstances provided he/she has played less than 5 games for the club in 
an MWFA recognised competition. The circumstances must be approved by the PGC. 
 
Vote – 47 for and 0 against       CARRIED 
 
 
CHANGE 10 
 
6.12 Match Cautions 
 
Existing Rule 
 
Playing Rule 6.12 (e) 
 
“After an individual player has received four (4) official cautions, the player shall serve 
a one (1) fixture suspension and the player’s team shall be penalised one (1) 
disciplinary point. There shall be no appeal against a one (1) fixture suspension after 
receiving four (4) official cautions.” 
 
Playing Rule 6.12 (f) 
 
“Any player who accumulates a further three (3) official cautions, making a total of 
seven (7) shall be suspended for a further two (2) fixtures and the player’s team shall 
be penalised be penalised two (2) disciplinary points.” 
 
Playing Rule 6.12 (g) 
 
“Any player who accumulates a further three (3) official cautions making a total of ten 
(10) shall be suspended for a further three (3) fixtures and the player’s team shall be 
penalised three (3) disciplinary points. The player shall also be called to appear before 
the Judiciary Committee who may apply a further penalty, bond, fine or suspension.” 
 
Playing Rule 6.12 (h) 
 
“Any player who accumulates more than ten (10) cautions in any one season shall be 
called to appear before the Judiciary Committee, who may apply further penalty, bond, 
fine, suspension or team disciplinary points for each official caution given to the player 
thereafter. 
 
Change to: 
It is proposed that the following changes, highlighted in red, be made to Playing Rule 
6.12. 
 
Playing Rule 6.12 (f) 
 
“Any player who accumulates a further two (2) official cautions, making a total of six (6) 
shall be suspended for a further two (2) fixtures and the player’s team shall be 
penalised be penalised two (2) disciplinary points.” 
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Playing Rule 6.12 (g) 
“Any player who accumulates a further two (2) official cautions making a total of eight 
(8) shall be suspended for a further three (3) fixtures and the player’s team shall be 
penalised three (3) disciplinary points. The player shall also be called to appear before 
the Judiciary Committee who may apply a further penalty, bond, fine or suspension.” 
 
Playing Rule 6.12 (h) 
“Any player who accumulates more than eight (8) cautions in any one season shall be 
called to appear before the Judiciary Committee, who may apply further penalty, bond, 
fine, suspension or team disciplinary points for each official caution given to the player 
thereafter. 
 
Vote – 40 for and 13 against       CARRIED 
 
CHANGE 11 
 
D6 (d) Semi Final Competitions 
 
Add: 
(d) For the Semi-Final Competition, a player registered in a team who has not played in 
at least four (4) Competition Fixtures for that team within the current season and who 
has played in four (4) or more Competition Fixtures as a borrowed player for other 
teams will be ineligible to compete in the Semi-Final Competition for their registered 
team. Any exemption to this rule can only be provided by the EC prior to the 
commencement of the Semi Final Competition. 
 
Vote – 53 for and 0 against       CARRIED 
 
 
CHANGE 12 
 
D7 (d) Pennant Competition 
Add: 
 
(d) For the Pennant or Round-Robin Finals Competition, a player registered in a team 
who has not played in at least four (4) Competition Fixtures for that team within the 
current season and who has played in four (4) or more Competition Fixtures as a 
borrowed player for other teams will be ineligible to compete in the Round Robin and 
Finals Competition for their registered team. Any exemption to this rule can only be 
provided by the EC prior to the commencement of the Round Robin Competition. 
 
Vote – 46 for and 0 against       CARRIED 
 

9.3  THAT under section 78 of the Associations Incorporation Act 2009 (NSW) 
the Manly Warringah Football Association Incorporated (MWFA) shall apply to 
transfer its registration declaration to become a company limited by guarantee 
under the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), subject to a resolution being passed that 
approves a new MWFA constitution in order to effect the transfer of 
incorporation and which will replace the existing Constitution and By-Laws of 
MWFA. 
Joseph Sorbara moved this motion and it was seconded by Linda Ward 

 
Vote – 53 for and 0 against       CARRIED 
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9.4  Due to the continued increase in female participants, the MWFA split the 
position of Vice President Women on the Management Committee to two 
positions; Vice President Senior Women and Vice President Junior Women (WU8 
- WU18) 
Keith Pester moved this motion and it was seconded by Greg Dick 

Vote – 53 for and 0 against       CARRIED 
 

 

10. Election of Office Bearers 

 

Jeff Smit declared all committee position vacant and asked Dave Wilson to chair the 

meeting as returning officer to elect office bearers for the 2018 season. 

 

President 

A single nomination was received in writing from Jeff Smit for the position of President 

and as per the constitution Jeff Smit was duly elected. 

 

Secretary 

A single nomination was received in writing from Linda Ward for the position of 

President and as per the constitution Jeff Smit was duly elected. 

 

Treasurer 

A single nomination was received in writing from Joseph Sobara for the position of 

Treasurer and as per the constitution Joseph Sobara was duly elected. 

 

Senior Vice President – Representative Football & MWFA Judiciary  

A single nomination was received in writing from Keith Pester for the position of Senior 

Vice President – Representative Football & MWFA Judiciary and as per the 

constitution Keith Pester was duly elected. 

 

Senior Vice President – Association Football 

A single nomination was received in writing from Duncan Kerr for the position of Senior 

Vice President – Association Football and as per the constitution Duncan Kerr was 

duly elected. 

 

Election of Management Committee 

For all eight positions on the Management Committee there was a single nomination 

received in writing from each management committee role and it was declared that 

with only one nominee per role those nominees were duly elected. 

It was noted that Linda Beaugeard has replaced Michelle Edwards. It was also noted 

that the Senior VP –Women will now be split into two, Roland Winter VP for Senior 

Women and Dan Cook VP for Juniors. 
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Elected Office Bearers 2019 

President – Mr Jeff Smit 

Secretary – Mrs Linda Ward 

Treasurer – Mr Joseph Sorbara 

Senior Vice President – Representative Football & MWFA Judiciary – Mr Keith Pester 

Senior Vice President – Association Football – Mr Duncan Kerr 

Vice President (Sub-Juniors) – Tony Davies 

Vice President (Junior Competition) – David Brennan 

Vice President (Seniors Competition) – Terry Gatward 

Vice President (Senior Women’s Competition) – Roland Winter 

Vice President (Junior Women’s Competition) – Dan Cook 

Registrar – Annette Burgoyne 

Registrar – Linda Beaugeard 

Registrar – Peter Auld 

Minute Secretary – Kelly Sargent 

 

11. Election of Delegates and sub committees 

Jeff Smit sought members to stand for the other offices and delegates with the 

following elected; 

 

FNSW Delegates     Linda Ward 

Duncan Kerr 

FNSW Association Standing Committee  Linda Ward 

MWFRA Inc     Jeff Smit 

MWP Sporting Union    David Mason 

      Keith Pester 

      Jeff Smit 

      Duncan Kerr 

      Richard Hooker 

      Roland Luke 

      Warren Meppem 

Judiciary 
Dave Wilson 
Cas Greco 
Tony Cavalieri 
Ange Carey 
Wayne Terrey 
Keith Pester 
  
GPT 
Bruno Cara 
Michael Sestanovich 
Ross Brown 
Nick Beaugard 
Roy Sider – alternate 
Richard Wright – alternate 
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Appeals 
Ed Neill 
Warren Meppem 
David Anglicas 
Stuart Nairn 
Andy Saunders – alternate 
  
 
P & D 
Michele Edwards 
Roy Sider 
Neville Drake  
George Malouf 
Phillipa McNamara – HSU 
  
Player Grading 
Blair McEwen – Avalon 
Duncan Kerr 
Jeff Smit 
Scott Larsen 
James Raphael 
With assistance from the office 
  
Competitions – not required until lead up to 2019 AGM with the move to a company 
structure 
Vince Vescio 
Richard Wright 
John Mesite 
Greg Dick 
Michael Sestanovich 
 

 

12. Election of Public  Officer 

Richard Wright moved to elect Dave Mason for public officer, seconded by Greg Dick. 

Vote – 48 for and 0 against       CARRIED 
 

13. Affiliations of Clubs 

Dave Mason has stated all clubs have affiliated. 

 

14. Adoption of the 2019 Budget 

Joseph Sorbara moved that the 2019 budget be adopted. Seconded by Keith Pester 

 

Vote – 53 for and 0 against       CARRIED 
 

15. Election of Auditor 

Joseph Sobara moved that Watson Corporate Services continue as auditor in 2019, 

seconded by Linda Ward. 

 

Vote – 52 for and 0 against       CARRIED 
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16. General Business 

16.1 Robert (Rob) Brennan  
MWFRA President 2011 – 2018, MWFRA Junior Vice President 2009 - 2010 
At the MWFRA AGM on Monday 19th November 2018, the long term President of the 
Association, Robert (Rob) Brennan stood down from the committee. 
Rob has served as President for 8 years, and prior to that as Junior Vice President for 
2 years.  
He was nominated for Life Membership of the MWFRA at the AGM and the motion was 
approved unanimously. Rob now joins a select group of only 39 Life Members in the 
associations 70 year history.  
During Rob’s tenure as President he led the organisation dynamically to promote and 
develop the highest standards of refereeing in the Manly Warringah district.  
Of note under Rob’s guidance Communication Equipment at senior levels of both Men 
& Women’s football was introduced, enabling a team of referees to communicate 
during games. 
 
This with the use of 4th officials has enabled a higher standard of refereeing via 
communication, education of Junior Assistant Referees and overall control of games. 
Further initiatives such as a PL swap programme with the adjoining KDFRA, the 
introduction of a Level 2 Assessor, who is also a State League Referee, and the use of 
videoing referee games, have all been made during Rob’s term.  This has exposed 
referees to wider experiences and education in the pursuit of the highest standards 
possible 
  
Also at Junior levels, Rob has introduced and overseen a mentoring programme for 
encouragement & education, in conjunction with a progression path for experienced 
juniors such that in 2018 a number of young senior referees progressed to refereeing 
our highest levels of PL & AL1. 
  
Referee training nights at Cromer Park and a NSW FFA approved Fitness Test, which 
is mandatory for refereeing PL, AL1 & U18/1 levels,  have all been introduced for 
improved knowledge and fitness. 
  
Rob has led the progression of refereeing in the Manly Warringah association with 
vision, determination & sheer hard work. Rob leaves very big shoes to fill. 
 

16.2 Chris Adams Replacement 

There are a number of candidates for Chris Adams position; an appointment will be 

made in the next couple of weeks. The candidates look like they will be very capable of 

picking up where Chris left off. 

16.3 Richard Tombs 

 

Dave has met with Richard Tombs who will be leaving his Rehab facility in mid 

December. Richard wanted to speak with the MWFA regarding his goal to help 

improve the general way players and spectators treat referees and each other and how 

it needs to be changed for the positive. 
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16.4 New registration system 

FFA and Football NSW will be releasing the new registration system in December and 

all clubs will be notified of any changes to the timetable already in place around 

training. 

16.5 2019 AGM 

The 72nd Manly Warringah Football Association inc AGM in 2019 will be held on 

Monday 25th November 2019. 

The next council of clubs meeting will be held on 4th February 2019. 

 

MEETING CLOSED 8.38PM 
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The Committee members present their report, together with the financial statements, on the association for the year ended 
30 September 2019. 
  
Committee members 
The following persons were Committee members of the Association during the whole of the financial year and up to the 
date of this report, unless otherwise stated: 
  
Jeffrey Smit (President) 
Linda Ward (Secretary) 
Joseph Sorbara (Treasurer) 
Keith Pester (Senior Vice President MUFC) 
Duncan Kerr (Senior Vice President (MWFA)) 
Terry Gatward (VP Senior Men) 
Roland Winter (VP Women) 
Daniel Cook (VP Junior Girls) 
Tony Davies (VP Juniors) 
David Brennan (VP Youth) 
Peter Auld (Registrar) 
Annette Burgoyne (Registrar) 
Linda Beaugeard (Registrar) 
  
Principal activities 
The principal activity of Manly Warringah Football Association Inc during the financial year was to promote and encourage 
the development of playing football in the Manly Warringah area for both men and women. 
 
No significant changes in the nature of Manly Warringah Football Association Inc's principal activities occurred during the 
financial year. 
  
Changes in entity status for the 2019 financial year 
The Manly Warringah Football Association Inc will change its status from an incorporated association to a company limited 
by guarantee in the current financial year. 
  
This change is due to a request from NSW Fair Trading for entities with income greater than $2 million to adopt the 
protection of a company limited by guarantee. 
  
The change has been approved by NSW Fair Trading and ASIC. 
  
Operating result 
The surplus of the association for the financial year amounted to $14,175 (2018: $238,838). The Association is exempt 
from income tax. 
  
On behalf of the Committee members 
  
     
     
     
___________________________  ___________________________ 
Joseph Sorbara  Jeffrey Smit 
Treasurer  President 
     
_____November 2019   
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  Note  2019  2018 
    $  $ 
       

The above statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes 
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Revenue  4  2,890,632   2,849,948  
  
Interest revenue calculated using the effective interest method    39,480   29,410  
  
Expenses       
Awards night    (37,618)  (37,823) 
Coaching and training expenses    (22,012)  (12,687) 
Competition costs    (367,250)  (309,159) 
Football NSW levy    (569,774)  (565,194) 
Ground Hire    (260,694)  (239,310) 
Referee fees    (429,480)  (409,466) 
Representation funding    (175,560)  (180,200) 
Employee benefits expense    (441,999)  (424,384) 
FFA levy    (321,101)  (261,523) 
Other expenses  5  (222,512)  (142,384) 
Depreciation expense    (4,358)  (3,084) 
Honorariums    (35,000)  (26,500) 
Rent and property outgoings    (28,579)  (28,806) 

  
Trading Surplus before income tax expense    14,175   238,838  
  
Income tax expense    -    -   

  
Trading Surplus after income tax expense for the year  13  14,175   238,838  
  
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax    -    -   

  
Total comprehensive income for the year    14,175   238,838  
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    $  $ 
       

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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Assets       
       
Current assets       
Cash and cash equivalents  6  2,128,876   2,350,936  
Trade and other receivables  7  167,007   51,663  

Total current assets    2,295,883   2,402,599  

       
Non-current assets       
Trade and other receivables  8  196,317   196,317  
Property, plant and equipment  9  18,799   15,239  

Total non-current assets    215,116   211,556  

       
Total assets    2,510,999   2,614,155  

  
Liabilities       
       
Current liabilities       
Trade and other payables  10  479,583   609,803  
Employee benefits  11  34,387   22,566  

Total current liabilities    513,970   632,369  

       
Non-current liabilities       
Employee benefits  12  21,421   20,353  

Total non-current liabilities    21,421   20,353  

       
Total liabilities    535,391   652,722  

  
Net assets    1,975,608   1,961,433  

  
Equity       
Retained surplus  13  1,975,608   1,961,433  

       
Total equity    1,975,608   1,961,433  
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  Retained  
Total equity   surplus  

  $  $ 
     
Balance at 1 October 2017  1,722,595  1,722,595 
     
Trading Surplus after income tax expense for the year  238,838  238,838 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  -  - 

     
Total comprehensive income for the year  238,838  238,838 

     
Balance at 30 September 2018  1,961,433  1,961,433 

  
  Retained  

Total equity   surplus  
  $  $ 
     
Balance at 1 October 2018  1,961,433  1,961,433 
     
Trading Surplus after income tax expense for the year  14,175  14,175 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  -  - 

     
Total comprehensive income for the year  14,175  14,175 

     
Balance at 30 September 2019  1,975,608  1,975,608 
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  Note  2019  2018 
    $  $ 
       

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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Cash flows from operating activities       
Receipts from customers (inclusive of GST)    3,069,216   3,194,304  
Payments to suppliers (inclusive of GST)    (3,323,034)  (2,904,842) 
Interest received    39,480   29,410  

       
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities    (214,338)  318,872  

  
Cash flows from investing activities       
Payments for property, plant and equipment  9  (7,722)  (5,000) 

       
Net cash used in investing activities    (7,722)  (5,000) 

  
Cash flows from financing activities       

       
Net cash from financing activities    -    -   

  
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    (222,060)  313,872  
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year    2,350,936   2,037,064  

       
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year  6  2,128,876   2,350,936  
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Note 1. General information 
  
The financial statements cover Manly Warringah Football Association Inc as an individual entity. The financial statements 
are presented in Australian dollars, which is Manly Warringah Football Association Inc's functional and presentation 
currency. 
  
Manly Warringah Football Association Inc is a not-for-profit incorporated association incorporated in New South Wales 
under the Associations Incorporation Act (NSW) 2009, registered and domiciled in Australia. 
  
The financial statements were authorised for issue on _____November 2019. 
  
Note 2. Significant accounting policies 
  
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies 
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
  
New or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted 
The association has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period. 
  
Any new or amended Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early adopted. 
  
Basis of preparation 
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards - 
Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB'), 
New South Wales legislation the Associations Incorporation Act 2009 and associated regulations, as appropriate for not-for 
profit oriented entities. 
  
Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 
  
Critical accounting estimates 
The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the association's accounting policies. The areas involving 
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial 
statements, are disclosed in note 3. 
  
Revenue recognition 
The association recognises revenue as follows: 
  
Revenue from contracts with customers 
Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the association is expected to be entitled in 
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. For each contract with a customer, the association: identifies 
the contract with a customer; identifies the performance obligations in the contract; determines the transaction price which 
takes into account estimates of variable consideration and the time value of money; allocates the transaction price to the 
separate performance obligations on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service to be 
delivered; and recognises revenue when or as each performance obligation is satisfied in a manner that depicts the 
transfer to the customer of the goods or services promised. 
  
Variable consideration within the transaction price, if any, reflects concessions provided to the customer such as discounts, 
rebates and refunds, any potential bonuses receivable from the customer and any other contingent events. Such estimates 
are determined using either the 'expected value' or 'most likely amount' method. The measurement of variable 
consideration is subject to a constraining principle whereby revenue will only be recognised to the extent that it is highly 
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. The measurement 
constraint continues until the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Amounts 
received that are subject to the constraining principle are recognised as a refund liability. 
  
Sale of goods 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is 
generally at the time of delivery. 
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Rendering of services 
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the customers. 
  
Interest 
Interest revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the 
amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest 
rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset 
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. 
  
Other revenue 
Other revenue is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established. 
  
Income tax 
As the association is a tax exempt institution in terms of subsection 50-10 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997, as 
amended, it is exempt from paying income tax. 
  
Current and non-current classification 
Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current classification. 
  
An asset is classified as current when: it is either expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the 
association's normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is expected to be realised within 12 
months after the reporting period; or the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 
to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current. 
  
A liability is classified as current when: it is either expected to be settled in the association's normal operating cycle; it is 
held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or there is no 
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other liabilities 
are classified as non-current. 
  
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
  
Trade and other receivables 
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less any allowance for expected credit losses. Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within 
30 days. 
  
The association has applied the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected 
loss allowance. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on days overdue. 
  
Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses. 
  
Property, plant and equipment 
Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 
  
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the net cost of each item of property, plant and equipment 
(excluding land) over their expected useful lives as follows: 
  
Computer equipment  10% - 25% 
Furniture and equipment  10% - 25% 
Plant and equipment  25% 
Motor vehicles  15% 
  
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date. 
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An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no future economic benefit to the 
association. Gains and losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds are taken to profit or loss. Any 
revaluation surplus reserve relating to the item disposed of is transferred directly to retained profits. 
  
Trade and other payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the association prior to the end of the financial year 
and which are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature they are measured at amortised cost and are not discounted. The 
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. 
  
Employee benefits 
  
Short-term employee benefits 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and long service leave expected to be 
settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities 
are settled. 
  
Other long-term employee benefits 
The liability for annual leave and long service leave not expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are 
measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to 
the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, 
experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields 
at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, 
the estimated future cash outflows. 
  
Defined contribution superannuation expense 
Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 
  
Goods and Services Tax ('GST') and other similar taxes 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not 
recoverable from the tax authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as part 
of the expense. 
  
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST 
recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included in other receivables or other payables in the statement of 
financial position. 
  
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing 
activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the tax authority, are presented as operating cash flows. 
  
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority. 
  
Note 3. Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
  
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in 
relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its judgements, estimates 
and assumptions on historical experience and on other various factors, including expectations of future events, 
management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. There are no critical accounting judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that are likely to affect the current or future financial years. 
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Note 4. Revenue 
  
  2019  2018 
  $  $ 
     
Revenue from contracts with customers     
Administration and finances  534,539   576,258  
Levies collected on behalf of others  1,114,920   1,100,698  
Referee fees  432,074   437,779  
Coach and training fees  -    6,685  
Playing fees  264,062   267,073  
Awards night  26,455   25,455  
Representation funding  284,456   283,953  
Other income  51,751   6,067  
Grants and rebates  21,875   -   

  2,730,132   2,703,968  

     
Development levies:     
Development levies received  184,060   216,455  
Development levies applied  (23,560)  (70,475) 

  160,500   145,980  

     
Revenue  2,890,632   2,849,948  

  
Note 5. Other expenses 
  
  2019  2018 
  $  $ 
     
Accounting fees  10,497   13,981  
Advertising  2,500   2,627  
Auditor's remuneration  18,200   16,960  
Annual report   1,415   1,318  
Bad debts  -    8,875  
Bank charges  370   401  
Computer expenses  9,402   9,216  
Insurance  818   736  
Internet costs  7,705   3,783  
Motor vehicle expenses  2,677   1,010  
Subcontractors cost  2,555   2,370  
Sundry expenses  35,472   1,983  
Consultant expenses  7,200   -   
Legal expenses  28,089   3,312  
Maintenance, Cleaning and security  28,918   28,427  
Entertainment  12,780   7,320  
Meeting & seminars  10,181   9,421  
Printing, Stationary & postage  15,802   16,695  
Telephone expenses  27,931   13,949  
     
  222,512   142,384  
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Note 6. Current assets - cash and cash equivalents 
  
  2019  2018 
  $  $ 
     
Cash at bank  619,990   1,207,479  
Short-term deposits  1,508,886   1,143,457  

     
  2,128,876   2,350,936  

  
Included in the above cash balances is an amount of $887,926 (2018: $727,426) held by the Association to assist its 
affiliated clubs in development of improved buildings and facilities. 
  
Note 7. Current assets - trade and other receivables 
  
  2019  2018 
  $  $ 
     
Trade receivables  175,882   60,538  
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  (8,875)  (8,875) 

     
  167,007   51,663  

  
Note 8. Non-current assets - Trade and other receivables 
  
  2019  2018 
  $  $ 
     
Manly Warringah District Soccer Football Club Ltd (Secured loan)  164,348   164,348  
Manly Warringah Football Club Ltd  31,969   31,969  
     
  196,317   196,317  

  
Note 9. Non-current assets - property, plant and equipment 
  
  2019  2018 
  $  $ 
     
Furniture, fixtures and fittings - at cost  131,653   131,653  
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (125,707)  (124,028) 

  5,946   7,625  

     
Motor vehicles - at cost  5,000   5,000  
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (892)  (142) 

  4,108   4,858  

     
Computer equipment - at cost  12,035   4,313  
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (3,290)  (1,557) 

  8,745   2,756  

     
  18,799   15,239  
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Reconciliations 
Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current financial year are set out below: 
  

 

 Furniture, 
fixtures and 

fittings 

 
Motor 

Vehicles 

 
Computer 
Equipment 

 

Total 
  $  $  $  $ 
         
Balance at 1 October 2018  7,625  4,858  2,756  15,239 
Additions  -  -  7,722  7,722 
Depreciation expense  (1,679)  (750)  (1,733)  (4,162) 

         
Balance at 30 September 2019  5,946  4,108  8,745  18,799 

  
Note 10. Current liabilities - trade and other payables 
  
  2019  2018 
  $  $ 
     
Trade payables  342,470   324,078  
Accrued expenses  97,886   218,239  
Superannuation payable  9,629   9,455  
PAYG tax payable  7,778   7,512  
GST payable  20,824   49,798  
Other payables  996   721  

     
  479,583   609,803  

  
Note 11. Current liabilities - employee benefits 
  
  2019  2018 
  $  $ 
     
Annual leave  34,387   22,566  

  
Note 12. Non-current liabilities - employee benefits 
  
  2019  2018 
  $  $ 
     
Long service leave  21,421   20,353  

  
Note 13. Equity - retained surplus 
  
  2019  2018 
  $  $ 
     
Retained surplus at the beginning of the financial year  1,961,433   1,722,595  
Trading Surplus after income tax expense for the year  14,175   238,838  

     
Retained surplus at the end of the financial year  1,975,608   1,961,433  
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Note 14. Key management personnel disclosures 
  
Compensation 
The aggregate compensation made to Committee members and other members of key management personnel of the 
association is set out below: 
  
  2019  2018 
  $  $ 
     
Aggregate compensation  157,000   161,500  

  
Note 15. Related party transactions 
  
Key management personnel 
Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 14. 
  
Transactions with related parties 
There were no transactions with related parties during the current and previous financial year except for the funding for 
Manly United Football Club Limited for representative teams. 
  
Receivable from and payable to related parties 
Receivable balances – see Note 7 
  
The Association remains confident that any amounts owed by associated entities as at 30 September 2019 as shown in 
note 7 are fully recoverable. 
  
Terms and conditions 
All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates. 
  
Note 16. Events after the reporting period 
  
The Association was incorporated as company limited by Guarantee on 9th September 2019 and the Association will 
commence effectively as Company Limited by Guarantee from 1st October 2019. 
  
No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 September 2019 that has significantly affected, or may significantly 
affect the association's operations, the results of those operations, or the association's state of affairs in future financial 
years. 
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In the Committee members' opinion: 
  
●  the attached financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure 

Requirements, the Associations Incorporation Act (NSW) 2009 and associated regulations; 
  
●  the attached financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the association's financial position as at 30 

September 2019 and of its performance for the financial year ended on that date; and 
  
●  there are reasonable grounds to believe that the association will be able to pay its debts as and when they become 

due and payable. 
  
On behalf of the Committee members 
  
     
     
     
___________________________  ___________________________ 
Joseph Sorbara  Jeffrey Smit 
Treasurer  President 
     
_____November 2019   
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Opinion 

We have audited the financial report of Manly Warringah Football Association Inc (the Association), which comprises the statement of 
financial position as at 30 September 2019, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in 
equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies, and the Committee members’ declaration. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Association is in accordance with the Associations Incorporations Act (NSW) 
2009, including: 

 (i) giving a true and fair view of the Association's financial position as at 30 September 2019 and of its financial performance for the year 
then ended; and 

 (ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the 
Association in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance 

The management of the Association is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance 
with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Associations Incorporations Act (NSW) 2009 and for 
such internal control as the management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and 
fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the management is responsible for assessing the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either 
intend to liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board 
website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/home.aspx. This description forms part of our auditor's report. 
 
 
 

Watson Corporate Services Pty Limited 

Chartered Accountants 

 

 

 

John Watson F.C.A. 

Partner 

Suite 1, Level 1, 205-207 Anson Street 

ORANGE NSW 2800 

 

Dated this ............ of ..................... 2019 
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